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About this Report
We are happy to present our third integrated annual 
report that combines the Global Reporting Initiative’s 
(GRIs) G4 framework in accordance with the GRI’s Core 
reporting standard. This report has been externally 
assured by Ernst & Young, Sri Lanka, Chartered 
Accountants.

Our previous integrated report for the year 2013, 
covered the period from 1 January to 31 December, 
2013. The current report differs from our previous 
annual reports by covering 15 month period, starting 
from  1 January 2014 to 31 March 2015 instead of the 
traditional 12 month reporting period. The difference 
in reporting time frame in the current annual report, 

 G4 - 32

 G4 - 15

 G4 - 29/ 28/ 30/ 15

is to align our future annual reports with the reporting 
time frame of the Hayleys Group. Therefore, all future 
Kelani Valley Plantations annual reports will be 
presented for the 12 months period commencing from 
1 April to 31 March in the flowing year.

Our annual report also acts as our Communication of 
Progress (CoP)for the UNGC. The UNGC COP requirement 
has been met by incorporating specific disclosures from 
what has been designated as relevant to the UNGC’s 10 
principles. Therefore, these disclosures were deemed 
material to this report and have been used to explain 
how we upheld our commitments to the UNGC, during 
the current reporting period.

With thousands of people forming the ranks of Kelani Valley 
Plantations, it is not an easy task to document how much we have 

impacted their lives. As a business that is focused on long term 
sustainability by creating better working and living standards, 

investing in the enhancement of skills and caring for the environment. 
We know that we have taken significant steps in being more 

responsible and productive in the industry. The stories we have to tell 
are ones of hope, resilience and change. Each object that we highlight, 

speaks not only of one individual but the voices of many who have 
been a part of our team and have grown with us over the years. 

These are the stories of Kelani Valley Plantations… 

a story to Tell 

a story to Tell 



“Unilever Sri Lanka recognises Kelani Valley Plantation’s 
commitment to maintain consistently high product quality, whilst 
continuing to be a role model with its sustainability agenda linked 
to the Rainforest Alliance™ certification”

Shamal De Silva
Procurement Manager
Unilever Sri Lanka

It has a    story
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Our Profile
Incorporated as a plantation company in 1992. Today, we have grown to 
a diversified agribusiness entity with interests in production, processing, 

marketing, of plantation crops and hydro power generation. KVPL 
comprises 26 estates covering over 13,000 hectares sharing almost equal 

extents of tea and rubber plantations, on a 53 year lease agreement with the 
Government of Sri Lanka. Our business is managed and operated according 

to internationally acclaimed standards, through an extensive system of 
accreditation on sustainable agribusiness management and food safety.

Spanning across three distinctive agro climatic regions in Sri Lanka, KVPL 
produces traditional Ceylon Tea in thirteen tea processing centres. Our high 

grown estates in Nuwara Eliya produce world renowned light bright teas 
with delicacy of flavor and quality, whilst our estates in Hatton and Dickoya, 

produce strong and coloury liquored teas. Our low grown estates in 
Yatiyantota and Bulathkohupitiya processes orthodox low grown leafy teas. 

Green tea is produced on our highland estates of Oliphant and Glassaugh 
and our instant tea processing centres are located in the  

Nuwara Eliya and Hatton regions.

Sole Crepe, Centrifuge Latex and Crepe Rubber is manufactured at our FSC™ 
certified rubber estates located in the lower elevations of Yatiyantota and 

Bulathkohupitiya.

As a business diversification policy, in association with Eco-Power (Pvt) Ltd., 
we ventured into generating hydro power by incorporating the Kalupahana 

Power Company (Pvt) Ltd., in 2003. The Tea product portfolio was further 
strengthened with the establishment of Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd., 
and Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd., in 2007 and 2013 respectively. In 

order to pursue direct marketing initiatives more aggressively, Mabroc Teas 
(Pvt) Ltd., was acquired in the year 2010.

We provide employment to nearly 12,000 people and our estates are the 
traditional homelands for an estate population of nearly 58,000 men, 

women and children.

Our Vision
“Kelani Valley Plantations - Products of Excellence”

 G4 -  4
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Our Mission

To Optimise Productivity of the Plantations, ensuring 
Highest Quality, by Harnessing and Developing the 

Employees, to improve the Quality of Life of the 
Community, whilst ensuring an Acceptable Return on 

Investment.

Values
We strive to do our best for our stakeholders in the following ways:

Our Customers: We provide consistent good quality products and excellent service, at 

competitive prices, whilst ensuring continuity of supplies. We are conscious of Customer 

requirements and ever changing market trends and orient our production to suit 

   specific needs.

Our Employees: We care for our employees and create a favourable environment for their 

participation in managing our affairs, thereby increasing productivity. We develop and create 

individuals who feel contended and secure in their jobs. We recognise merit.

Our Suppliers: We establish mutually beneficial relationships with our Suppliers based on 

trust, quality and reliability. We treat them as we wish to be treated ourselves.

Our Owners: We enhance the reputation of the Company through conformity to high levels 

of conduct. We generate adequate returns and ensure security of their investments by 

maintaining high viability and long term stability.

Our Competitors: We view our competitors as a source of inspiration to our own 

advancement. We are conscious of their strengths and weaknesses and compete for market 

superiority without resorting to unethical practices but maintain close co-operation on 

common issues.

Our Country and the World: We conduct our business in a socially responsible manner. We 

are aware of the changing environment and contribute towards  enhancing the quality of life 

for a better Sri Lanka and a better world.

 G4 - 56
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Materiality Assessment

Introduction
Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment is based on the G4 guidelines disclosed by the 
GRI for reporting organisations. The four principles of shareholder 
inclusiveness, sustainability context, materiality and completeness have 
been evaluated in conducting the materiality assessment.

All the internal and external stakeholders have been assessed by 
evaluating the supply chain and value chain of the organisation. The 
stakeholders have been analysed based on the assessment as follows.
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Ability to be influenced by KVPL’s  
performance (Power)

Stakeholder assessment by power-interest matrix (L-Low, M-Moderate, H-High)

SuStainabiLity Context
KVPL is very keen on sustainability as our operating environment has 
become very dynamic. We strive to provide maximum shareholder value 
through value creation activities which will be discussed in the value 
creation section in pages 27 to 32.
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StakeHoLder inCLuSiveneSS
One of our primary objectives is to maximise profitability, in order 
to maximise shareholder wealth. Nevertheless, our existence solely 
depends on all stakeholders. Thus, we have paid attention to identify 
our key stakeholders and to address their concerns. The identified 
relevant aspects in terms of economic, social and environment impacts 
on, or within KVPL, and the effect on decision making of stakeholders 
have been plotted as follows.

 G4 - 24

No KVPL StaKehoLder GrouPS
1 Shareholders

2 Employees and Trade Unions

3 Buyers

4 Brokers

5 Certification Agencies

6 Suppliers

7 Regulator and Government

8 Plantation Community

9 Academia and Scientific Community

10 Non Governmental Organisations

11 Environment

12 Competitors

13 Media

14 Investors

Identify aspects 
and indicators 

relevant to KVPL  
in terms of 

sustainability

List all relevant 
topics for KVPL

Determine 
and prioritise 

material aspects 
for reporting

Materiality 
Matrix

 G4 - 18/ 25

MateriaLity identifiCation ProCeSS
In order to identify aspects which are material to the Company, as well as stakeholders, we have adopted the following procedure.
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Materiality Assessment

MateriaLity and aSPeCt boundary

No. aSPect SiGNificaNt to 
KVPL

SiGNificaNce to 
StaKehoLderS

rePortiNG 
criteria 

criteria Not 
rePortiNG

1 Economic Performance H H G4-EC1/G4-EC2/
/G4-EC4

G4-EC 3

2 Market Presence H M G4-EC6 G4-EC5

3 Indirect Economic Impacts H M G4-EC7/G4-EC8

4 Procurement Practices M L G4-EC9

5 Materials H M G4-EN1/G4-EN2

6 Energy H M G4-EN3/G4-EN5/
G4-EN6

G4-EN 4/ G4-EN 7

7 Water M H G4-EN8 G4-EN 9/ G4-EN 10

8 Biodiversity H H G4-EN 11/G4-EN13/
G4-EN14

G4-EN 12

9 Emissions H M G4-EN 15/G4-EN 16 G4-EN 17/ G4-EN 18/ 
G4-EN 19/ G4-EN 20/ 
G4-EN 21

10 Effluent and waste H M G4-EN22/G4-EN23 G4-EN 24/ G4-EN 25/ 
G4-EN 26

11 Product and Services H M G4-EN28 G4-EN 27

12 Compliance H M G4-EN29

13 Transport M M G4-EN30

14 Overall H M G4-EN31

15 Supplier Environment Assessment L L G4-EN32

16 Environment Grievance Mechanism M H G4-EN34 G4-EN 33

17 Employment H H G4-LA1/G4-LA2/
G4-LA3

18 Labour/Management Relations H H G4-LA4

19 Occupational Health and Safety H H G4-LA5/G4-LA6/
G4-LA7

G4-LA 8

20 Training and Education H H G4-LA9/G4-LA10 G4-LA 11

21 Diversity and Equal Opportunity M H G4-LA12

22 Equal Remuneration for Men and Women M M G4-LA13

23 Supplier Assessment for Labour Practices M M G4-LA14/G4-LA15

24 Labour practices and Grievance 
Mechanisms

M H G4-LA16

25 Investment H H G4-HR1/G4-HR2

26 Non Discrimination M H G4-HR3

27 Freedom for Association and Collective 
Bargaining

M H G4-HR4

28 Child Labour H H G4- HR5

 G4 - 19/ 20/ 21
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No. aSPect SiGNificaNt to 
KVPL

SiGNificaNce to 
StaKehoLderS

rePortiNG 
criteria 

criteria Not 
rePortiNG

29 Forced and Compulsory Labour M H G4- HR6

30 Security Practices H L G4- HR7

31 Indigenous Rights M L G4- HR8

32 Assessments L M G4- HR9

33 Supplier Human Rights Assessments L M G4- HR10/G4- HR11

34 Human Rights Grievance Mechanisms M H G4- HR12

35 Local Communities M H G4-SO1/G4-SO2

36 Anti-Corruption H H G4-SO4/G4-SO5 G4-SO3

37 Public Policy L L G4-SO6

38 Anti-Competitive Behavior M M G4-SO7

39 Compliance H H G4-SO8

40 Supplier Assessment for Impact on Society L L G4-SO9

41 Grievance Mechanism for Impact on Society M H G4-SO11

42 Customer Health and Safety H H G4-PR1/G4-PR2

43 Product and Service Labelling H M G4-PR3/G4-PR4 G4-PR 5

44 Marketing Communications H H G4-PR6/G4-PR7

45 Customer Privacy M M G4-PR8

46 Compliance M H G4-PR9
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Significant to KVPL

Materiality Matrix (L-Low, M-Moderate, H-High)

7 1

21332

15 4 30

26 19

945

35 36

14

16 8

32233

37 31

27 20

10

41 39

43

21 17

523

40

29 25

11

46 42

24 18

638

34 28

12

44

Introduction
Materiality Assessment

Materiality Assessment Contd.

CoMPLeteneSS 
In revising the reporting principles from GRI G3.1 to G4 principles, we 
attempted to cover the most material aspects under the financial period 
concerned; where there are no such instruments currently established 
to show the evidence, the aspects will be disclosed from the next 
financial year onwards as progressive development process.
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Introduction
Materiality Assessment

environmental 
Stewardship

Social 
Wellbeing

economic 
Prosperity

financial 
Performance

Global 
operations

Supply Chain

business 
integrity

Human rights

Legal 
framework

Stakeholder 
engagement

Community 
engagement

People

Health and 
Safety

energy use

Land

Water

biodiversity

Governance 
System

Sustainable 
development

SuStainabLe fraMeWork
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KVPL was 
incorporated 
as a Regional 
Plantations 
Company

1992

DPL . Plantations 
(Pvt) Ltd. acquired 
the controlling 
interest of KVPL

1995

KVPL was Listed at 
the CSE & issued  
20 m ordinary shares 
at Rs. 10 each

Obtained FSC™ 
certification for 
Rubber Plantations

1996

Converted 
Debentures to 14 m 
ordinary shares

1998

Implementation of 
mini hydropower 
scheme at 
Battalgalla estate

2000

Expanded the 
Centrifuged latex 
project at Kiriporuwa 
estate

2001

Incorporation of 
Kalupahana Power 
Company (Pvt) Ltd. as 
a BOI project

Strategic alliance with 
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.

Conversion of Black 
Tea processing to 
Green Tea at Oliphant 
Factory – Nuwara 
Eliya

2003

Acquired 40% of 
issued share capital 
of Mabroc Teas (Pvt) 
Ltd. 

2004

Milestones

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 / G4 Reporting

Introduction
Milestones
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KVPL Signs  
UN Global Compact 
with Mabroc  

2006

Commenced 
Operations of 
Kalupahana Power 
Company (Pvt) Ltd.  

2005

Commenced Processing 
of Instant Tea  at 
Nuwara-Eliya estate

ISO 22000:2005, 
HACCP & TASL-SGS 
Certification for 13 black 
tea processing centers

2007

Obtained Global 
G.A. P Certification 
for KVPL Tea estates

Convertion of Black 
Tea factory to Green 
Tea at Glassaugh

2008

Dewalakande and 
Panawatte Sole 
Crepe Factories -  
Certified for FSC™

2009

Mabroc Teas (Pvt) 
Ltd. becomes a fully 
owned subsidiary of 
KVPL

2010

Obtained Rainforest 
Alliance™ 
certification for all 
estates   

2011

 Incorporation of 
Hayleys Global 
Beverages (Pvt) Ltd.

Kiriporuwa 
centrifudge factory 
certified for  FSC™

2013

Invested on 51% 
ownership of Hayleys 
Global Beverages 
(Pvt) Ltd.

2014

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 / G4 Reporting

Introduction
Milestones
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 Highlights

Introduction
Highlights

 Financial Highlights

Rs. m

2013201220112010 2014/15
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Profit after Tax

Consolidated    2014/15 
  2014/15 2013 -2013 2012 
  15 Months 12 Months % change 12 Months

earning Highlights and ratios
Revenue Rs.’000 8,647,349 6,790,012 27 6,518,253
Result from operating activities Rs.’000 225,206 510,858 (56) 741,607
Profit before tax Rs.’000 102,407 465,485 (78) 680,956
Profit after tax Rs.’000 52,495 391,693 (87) 560,732
Operating profit margin % 2.6 7.5 (65) 11.4
Net profit margin % 0.6 5.8 (89) 8.6
Return On Assets (ROA) % 0.8 6.2 (87) 9.2
Return On Capital Employed (ROCE) % 6.2 15.2 (59) 23.5
Interest cover Times 4.8 13.2 (64) 17.6

financial Position Highlights and ratios
Gross dividend Rs.’000 34,000 119,000 (71) 204,000
Shareholders' funds  (Equity holders of the Company) Rs.’000 2,695,056 2,775,888 (3) 2,568,473
Gearing (debt/(equity+debt) % 29 19 38 18
Working capital Rs.’000 470,411 768,531 (39) 906,269
Current ratio Times 1.4 1.7 (18) 1.8

Market capitalisation Rs.’000 2,444,600 2,662,200 (8) 2,720,000
Capital expenditure Rs.’000 1,067,285 553,318 93 453,246

Per share (year end):
Earnings Rs. 1.8 11.3 (84) 16.5
Market value Rs. 71.9 78.3 (8) 80.0
Net assets Rs. 79.3 81.6 (3) 76.0
Dividend Rs. 1.0 3.5 (71) 6.0
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Introduction
Highlights

Non Financial Highlights

 Sath Diyawara project at 
Kebithigollewa 
Investment of
Rs. 1.96 m

purifies 3.2 m Lt. of water
benefits 

 2,400 people

158

Nuwara Eliya Group
Hatton Group
Low Country

214

108

480

Trained 2,439 Personnel

Executives
Non-Executives
Manual 

235

6611,543

2,439

Rs. 

2013201220112010 2014/15
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Net Assets per Share
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Earnings per Share

 G4 -  16

480 National Identity  
Cards issued to workers
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Revenue Distribution Local & Global

Introduction
Revenue Distribution Local & Global

 South America

0.07%
Chile 0.07%

 North America

0.15%
USA 0.14%
Canada 0.01%

 Africa

0.04%
Morocco 0.04%

 Middle East

25.31%
Azerbaijan 11.53%
UAE 12.06%
Iraq 0.94%
Jordan 0.07%
Others 0.71%

 Europe

2.82%
Georgia 0.53%
United Kingdom 0.47%
Ukraine 0.43%
Germany 0.32%
Netherland 0.30%
Belgium 0.26%
Latvia 0.22%
Belorussia 0.18%
Turkey 0.06%
Czech Republic 0.03%
Switzerland 0.02%

 G4 -  8

Global Revenue of  Rs. 3.7 billion      
from  Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.
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Introduction
Revenue Distribution Local & Global

 Asia

12.56%
Japan 4.21%
Taiwan 3.11%
Russian Federation 2.51%
China 2.31%
Hong Kong 0.35%
South Korea 0.06%
Malaysia 0.01%

 Australia

1.27%
Australia 1.27%

 Sri Lanka

57.78%
Sri Lanka 57.78%
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Our Land

2014/15
 extent 
 Hectares elevation Crop
     (ft) kgs'000 kgs'000 
estate tea rubber other total  tea rubber

 1 Pedro 544 - 124 668 6,237 754 -

  2 Nuwara Eliya 186 - 61 247 5,999 428 -

  3 Edinburgh 157 - 22 179 5,075 219 -

  4 Glassaugh 184 - 44 228 5,074 275 -

  5 Uda Radella 183 - 42 225 5,328 277 -

  6 Oliphant 233 - 131 364 6,440 199 -

 ̀ 7 Fordyce 243 - 160 403 4,599 453 -

  8 Ingestre 397 - 252 649 4,723 750 -

  9 Annfield 231 - 144 375 4,297 482 -

  10 Battalgalla 146 - 115 261 4,300 300 -

  11 Robgill 182 - 118 300 4,500 346 -

  12 Tillyrie 191 - 143 334 4,264 310 -

  13 Invery 133 - 173 306 4,310 291 -

  14 Blinkbonnie 139 - 42 181 4,500 212 -

  15 Kelani 27 236 86 349 300 48 174

  16 Halgolle 261 - 935 1,196 3,478 473 -

  17 We Oya / Polatagama 25 748 214 987 1,000 28 757

  18 Panawatte 14 736 280 1,030 1,000 27 563

  19 Kiriporuwa 28 397 162 587 805 35 315

  20 Lavant - 458 111 569 800 - 364

  21 Ganepalla - 390 100 490 1,000 - 251

  22 Dewalakande - 551 166 717 502 - 470

  23 Urumiwella 6 536 180 722 800 10 414

  24 Kitulgala 56 - 526 582 1,003 66 -

 25  Ederapolla 19 437 211 667 338 31 358

26  Kalupahana 70 158 284 512 1,500 112 89

total 3,655 4,647 4,826 13,128  6,126 3,755
                                                   

Introduction
Our Land
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Distribution of Our Land

27%
37%

36%

Tea
Rubber
Others

Introduction
Our Spread

Extent 
Managed

13,128  ha.

Tea 27%
Rubber 36%
Other 37%

Extent 
Cultivated

8,955  ha.

68%

Extent 
Mature

6,763  ha.
52%

Extent of 
Conservation Area
& Infrastructure
 
4,173  ha.
32%

Extent 
Immature

2,192  ha.
16%

Our Spread
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Chairman’s Review

Management Reports
Chairman’s Review

      The story of how we have protected these national ecological treasures 
and support human development in our estates over the years, has never 
been adequately communicated. I hope our recording of this story will 
help relevant policy makers to have a framework in place to ensure a long 
sustenance of this industry

“ “
 G4 -  1
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Management Reports
Chairman’s Review

dear SHareHoLder,
It gives me pleasure in welcoming you to the 23rd Annual General 
Meeting of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (KVPL). The audited 
financial statements and the annual report for the current financial 
year has been extended to a period of 15 months, to bring the 
reporting year in line with the financial year of the rest of the 
Hayleys Group of Companies. Henceforth, KVPL financial year 
would be on a 12 month cycle beginning 1 April to 31 March of the 
subsequent year.

This report follows the integrated reporting format to describe the 
value creation during the period under review. I believe this method 
of integrating financial aspects with non-financial elements gives 
a more comprehensive view of our contribution to the nation. As 
a plantation company, KVPL holds in trust large expanses of land, 
including protected areas which we are under national obligation 
to protect and sustain. In addition, due to Sri Lanka’s unique 
plantation model, we are also responsible for the wellbeing of 
a population of around 58,000 men, women and children who 
reside on our estates where we take care of their health, safety and 
development. The story of how we have protected these national 
ecological treasures and support human development in our 
estates over the years, has never been adequately communicated. 
I hope our recording of this story will help relevant policy makers 
to have a framework in place to ensure a long sustenance of this 
industry.

tHe year in PerSPeCtive
The year 2014 was a turbulent one for all tea producers, with prices 
declining sharply of many categories during the last quarter. Whilst 
2014 commenced on an upbeat note, with prices at attractive levels 
for all elevations, these price levels were not sustained throughout 
the year due to continued instability in the Middle Eastern region 
and the drop in oil prices, particularly towards the latter half of the 
year. Yet the tea industry achieved another milestone by recording 
the highest ever auction average for a calendar year, realising an 
average of Rs. 461.86 surpassing the previous best of Rs.444.42 
per kg realised in 2013, an increase of Rs. 17.44 per kg, despite Sri 
Lanka achieving a crop of 338 m kg of tea by end 2014 showing 
a decrease of 2 m kg over the corresponding year. Earnings from 
tea exports exceeded Rs. 212 b mark for the first time in history. In 

Natural rubber, prices were unfavorable in 2014, and continued its 
declining trend, with average price of RSS1 at the Colombo auctions 
dropping from Rs. 321/34 per kg in January 2014 to Rs. 276/90 per 
kg by March 2015. Lower demand from major consuming countries 
coupled with excess supply from top producing countries and the 
lower synthetic rubber prices as a result of declining oil prices 
created pressure on the world natural rubber prices.

As rubber is KVPL’s largest contributor to profit, the sharp drop in 
rubber prices had a strong negative impact on the bottom line. 
Nevertheless, I am happy to record that KVPL has not only remained 
profitable but has continued to achieve high quality and output 
standards. KVPL closed the period under review with a profit after 
tax of Rs.116. 59 m. However, due to the startup losses of Hayleys 
Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. and losses incurred by our marketing 
arm Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. the consolidated profit after tax ended 
at Rs.52 m. I am pleased to announce that your Directors have 
proposed a dividend of Rs. 1/- per share, for our shareholders even 
at this turbulent times.

rePortinG our Story of reSPonSibiLity         G4 -  13

Since 2006, KVPL has been an active signatory to the UN Charter 
of the Global Compact (UNGC), which promotes responsible 
corporate citizenship. Further, KVPL responded to the UNGC’s CEO 
water mandate by supporting the Hayleys Group in a life sustaining 
project in the North Central Province. Through this project, 
approximately 10,000 liters of purified drinking water is provided 
daily to rural families faced with the threat of Chronic Kidney 
Disease (CKD). The project is expected to save many lives through 
the prevention of CKD.

KVPL together with Mabroc Teas, is the first company in the world 
to advocate UNGC principles to consumers through product 
packaging. This was achieved through the ‘Ethical Tea Brand of the 
World’ branding strategy for KVPL’s single origin teas, which was 
re-launched in Japan during the period under review.

KVPL’s response to the UNGC was not limited to these projects. 
KVPL continued to invest substantially during the period of review 
on its employees and plantation communities, through the 
ongoing “Home for Every Plantation Worker” programme. More 
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information in this regard can be found in the ‘Developing Human 
Capital’ chapter of this report. Meanwhile, KVPL’s environmental 
conservation activities, supporting biodiversity conservation in 
plantations, protecting invaluable ecological assets of the country 
that are faced with extinction, etc., is elaborated on the chapter of 
‘Environmental Sustainability’.

buiLdinG a 21St Century PLantation CoMPany
Whilst Sri Lanka’s plantation business model has hardly changed 
over 125 years and has been slow to adopt, we have set our sight 
on building a modern, 21st century Plantation Company, that 
is well-appointed for long term sustainability. Thus, we focused 
strongly during the period under review , introducing Information 
Communication Technology (ICT) to revolutionise the traditional 
plantation processes. ICT systems not only contribute towards 
eliminating waste, higher productivity and better informed 
decision making, but also support good governance through better 
transparency and objectivity towards all stake holders including 
employees. I am also happy to announce further progress in our 
growth strategy with our latest venture, Hayleys Global Beverages 
(Pvt) Ltd. Already, Mabroc Teas, is supporting KVPL’s forward 
integration strategy by facilitating marketing and export of KVPL 
tea. Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. which will be operational in 
4 Q 2015, will strengthen our value chain by supplying value added 
products for export thus enhancing our value-added revenues.

We will also continue to invest in our core plantation business by 
replanting both tea and rubber. Despite the downward trend in 
rubber prices we continued rubber replanting due to its strategic 
value given the expected positive future trends. During the period 
under review, we invested Rs. 354 m on rubber replanting and Rs. 
104 m on tea replanting.

Management Reports
Chairman’s Review

Chairman’s Review Contd.

The new financial year of 2015/16 however, comes with a significant 
sustainability challenge for entire formal plantation industry, due 
to the impending collective agreement on wages. In principle, we 
are fully supportive of the right for collective bargaining as we have 
endorsed this by being a signatory to the UNGC. However, I express 
my serious reservation on the existing plantation industry collective 
agreement and it is our view that the wage levels should be market 
driven and linked to productivity. This is imperative to be effectively 
competitive in the market place and for the long sustenance of 
the industry. I wish to conclude my message by thanking the 
members of the Board for their advice and guidance during the 
period of review. I gratefully acknowledge the contribution by 
our management team and all our employees in successfully 
navigating a particularly difficult period. I thank all the relevant 
regulatory authorities for their cooperation and my thanks go out 
to our loyal customers for their patronage and our loyal suppliers 
for their continuous association. I look forward to the support and 
understanding of all our stakeholders as we enter a decisive new 
year.

a M Pandithage
Chairman

08 May 2015

 G4 -  15
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     Our high growns were able to summon higher prices from buyers, 
with the sales average ranking improving from the 7th position, to the 3rd 
position, during the year
“ “
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dear SHareHoLder,
The period under review saw the KVPL team unite to overcome an 
extremely challenging environment where both the weather and 
markets were unfavourable to the plantation business. Erratic weather 
patterns throughout the period reduced outputs and disrupted 
productivity. In addition, the unprecedented reduction in natural rubber 
prices caused our plantation earnings to nosedive, as rubber represents 
the largest share of plantation earnings of the Company.

While we benefited from strong tea prices during the first half of the 
year, with the imposition of sanctions on Iran and the fall of the rouble, 
tea prices began a downward trend towards the latter part of the year. 
Nevertheless, we closed the year with gains on the gross sales average 
for our tea. Rubber prices on the other hand, showed no recovery from 
the previous year, and continued its downward trajectory throughout 
the year, due to a global scenario of supplies overshooting demand at a 
time when declining oil prices made synthetic rubber more attractive. 
As a result, the average price of RSS 1 had lost ground by 27%, over the 
15 month period between 01 January 2014 and 31 March 2015.

Corporate Performance
Our plantation income fell by over 7% year-on-year, during the 12 month 
period ending 31 December 2014, largely due to the drop in rubber 
revenues and also lower outputs of tea. Our income from tea, fell by 
1.39% year-on-year, on the back of a production drop of 11.14%, which 
was mainly due to inclement weather. However, I would like to clarify 
that there was no compromise in the quality of our tea. In fact, during 
the current year KVPL’s tea ranking improved, due to strict quality 
conscious harvesting and our ranking moved up from the 5th position in 
2013 to the 03rd position in 2014. In addition, our high growns were able 
to summon higher prices from buyers, with the sales average ranking 
improving from the 7th position to the 3rd position during the year.

Meanwhile, our rubber revenues declined significantly by 21% and our 
rubber production fell by 5% over the 12 month period. Nevertheless, 
to ensure future sustainability of the business, we maintained our field 
development investment at Rs. 395 m and replanted 26 hectares of 
tea and 296 hectares of rubber during the 12 month period. We closed 
the 12 months to 31 December 2014, with a profit after tax of Rs. 59 m, 
which increased to Rs. 117 m by the end of 15 months.

The Group’s bottom line meanwhile, was impacted by start up losses of 
Hayleys Global Beverages, our latest venture into value added tea, and 

lower income from our tea marketing company, Mabroc Teas. During the 
year Group revenue recorded only a marginal growth of 2.8% for the 12 
month period of January to December, to reach Rs. 6.98 b. At the end of 
15 months, total Group earnings stood at Rs. 8.6 b. Group profit after tax 
was Rs. 58 m by end–December 2014, compared to Rs. 392 m as at end 
December 2013. By end March 2015, Group’s profit after tax stood  
at Rs. 52 m.

Strategy evaluation
Whilst concentrating on growing our top line we have been 
simultaneously focusing on containing our costs. I am pleased to 
report of significant productivity improvements both in terms of 
employee productivity and land productivity, that can be credited with 
the profitable outcome of the current year. Despite the unfavourable 
weather conditions, our employees maintained comparatively high 
outputs, while also being mindful of quality.

We are also fully aware of the threat from climate change and commodity 
price volatility. In response, we have already initiated mitigatory steps 
through a diversification strategy. This is supported by our growth 
strategy of introducing new products for new export markets. I will briefly 
touch on our progress in this regard, in the rest of this review.

Crop diversification
Diversifying our plantation crop portfolio has spread our risks 
and enhanced our return on land assets. Our crop diversification 
strategy is still in its early stages. However, over the next five years, 
we will scale up our cinnamon planting to 50 hectares and will also 
add commercial crops for export. Based on initial field results and 
market demand trends, over the short term, we plan to invest in two 
commercial crops - sweet bananas and Philippine avocadoes. The 
commercial crop programme is structured on a buy-back agreement 
with an international company, one of the world’s largest producers, 
distributors and marketers of fresh fruit and vegetables.

Cultivating cinnamon in the low country, avocado and bananas in tea 
estates, will increase overall land productivity. In addition, productivity 
of field workers will improve with prospects of multiple revenue sources.

Our revenues from non-traditional plantation crops of timber, cinnamon 
and other commercial crops represent only a small 0.25% of our total 
revenue. Over the next five years, we plan to expand this to 1.5% of total 
revenue.
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business diversification
KVPL has already successfully diversified into hydropower generation 
and the manufacture of value added instant teas. These businesses 
have opened up new revenue opportunities for the Company. We are 
also planning to enter the tourism market through plantation tourism.

new Product development
The development of new, value added plantation products is a key 
aspect of our future sustainability strategy. Kelani Valley Instant Tea 
for instance, was initiated in 2006, as an experiment to develop value 
added tea in the form of instant tea. We are also adding new products to 
our rubber portfolio.

 G instant tea
 I am pleased to state that our R&D experience in manufacturing 

instant tea, will be put to commercial use, through the latest 
member of the KVPL Group, Hayleys Global Beverages. The new 
company, when operational by end 2015, will produce a range of 
value added beverages for export.

 Simultaneously, we are exploring possibilities for direct exports 
of value added teas. This will not only enhance our revenues but 
will also mitigate impacts of commodity tea price fluctuations. 
Our subsidiary Mabroc Tea, which is involved in marketing and 
exporting Ceylon Tea, will become the initial export channel. We 
will also leverage our Rainforest Alliance™ and UTZ™ certification to 
market our tea as ethical, environmentally friendly products.

 G Coloured Sole Crepe rubber
 In the current financial year, we commenced exports of coloured sole 

crepe rubber to South Africa. This is a growth avenue that we will 
pursue aggressively, We will also explore possibilities of direct exports 
of Forest Stewardship Council™ (FSC™) certified rubber.

PerforManCe of SubSidiarieS
Mabroc teas (Pvt) Ltd.
KVPL is the only plantation company in Sri Lanka to own a tea marketing 
and exporting company-Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. In 2014/15 Mabroc too, 
was impacted by global market conditions. The Middle East and CIS 
countries, Sri Lanka’s main markets for both value added and bulk tea, 
experienced political unrest and also faced cash flow difficulties. This 
situation has not only obstructed tea exports from Sri Lanka, but has 
opened up opportunities for low cost, low quality competition.

During the year, the company continued its market penetration strategy 
to increase both value added and bulk tea exports. Distribution 
channels were expanded in Russia and the Ukraine by tapping into 
supermarket chains and the Mabroc brand was re-launched in Japan in 
a partnership with MC Foods Limited. This has strengthened the channel 
for KVPL’s single origin tea exports into Japan. In the US and EU, the 
focus was on penetrating the market with herbal teas, to cater to the 
growing demand for health foods. The Mabroc herbal tea range was also 
launched in Sweden.

As part of its marketing drive, the Mabroc website was revamped for 
improved online presence, and a booklet was launched for distributers 
and sub-distributers, to create awareness about Mabroc products. Value 
added tea production capacity was increased during the year, with an 
investment into a tea bagging machine. The new machine has a capacity 
of 150 tea bags per minute and has a range of packaging options.

Mabroc saw a 23% drop in profitability against the previous 12 months, 
with a profit after tax of Rs. 24 m by end December 2014. Loss after tax 
stood at Rs. 29.75 m by the end of the 15 month period of 31 March, 2015.

In the new financial year the company plans to enter the Taiwan 
market, thereby strengthening its presence in Asia. Mabroc is also in the 
process of acquiring halal certification, in addition to its already existing 
certifications. The halal certification would allow the Company to enter 
in to this niche segment.

kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd.
Despite a slight decline in generation of power against the previous 12 
months, our subsidiary Kalupahana Power Company saw a revenue 
growth of 12% due to an increase in the electricity tariff, by the Ceylon 
Electricity Board. Kalupahana recorded a profit after tax of Rs. 21 m, 
which is a 10% increase year-on-year.

kelani valley instant tea (Pvt) Ltd.
Kelani Valley Instant Tea, meanwhile, saw a production decline of 36%, 
for the 12 month period, due to lower demand. As a result, at the end of 
the 15 month period, the Company recorded a Rs. 0.9 m loss against the 
Rs. 1.8 m profit in 2013.

achievements
Given the exceptionally difficult operating environment, I believe our 
profitable financial performance in itself, has been an achievement for 
the year. However, I would like to highlight a few other accomplishments 

 G4 -  4
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that I feel are significant indicators of our contributions to the Country 
and the plantation industry.

 G  Recognising our contribution towards human capital development 
of the nation, the Sri Lanka Institute of Training and Development 
awarded KVPL with the silver award at the People Development 
Awards 2014.

 G  KVPL won the silver award in the large scale plantation category at 
the annual National Agribusiness Awards 2014.

 G  Our green tea was awarded the bronze standard for speciality tea by 
the Sri Lanka Tea Board at the Dubai Food Fair.

 G  Our Pedro Estate Tea won gold, silver and bronze awards at the 
Dubai Food Fair in the category of Nuwara Eliya teas.

 G  Our black tea from Glassaugh estate won gold at the Dubai Food 
Fair in the category of Western High teas.

 G  Mabroc Teas won the gold award at the Natural Products 
Scandinavia exhibition, in Malmo, Sweden, for its herbal tea, under 
the ‘Best New Natural Drink’ category.

Challenges
A major challenge facing the Company is the continuously rising worker  
costs. Already worker costs account for nearly 70% of KVPL’s total 
operating costs and have an accelerated annual increase of 11% - 8%. In 
comparison, annual price increases for tea over last five years, is in the 
range of 6% - 7%, while rubber prices have declined by 14% year on year 
over the last two years. These numbers clearly indicate that the current 
rate of wage increase is not commercially sustainable, particularly as we 
have no control over tea and rubber prices and worker productivity in 
Sri Lanka is lower than our competitor countries. However, once again, 
we are bracing for another wage increase in the new financial year that 
will inflate up our production costs even further.

Migration of workers from the plantations has been a cause for concern. 
KVPL has introduced many community development programmes 
and worker welfare programmes to stem this trend. However, I believe 
we need to seriously reconsider the traditional plantation model, to 
develop a more sustainable business model.

future Prospects
I am confident our investments in tea and rubber replanting and our 
growth strategy of diversification and new product development 
will ensure KVPL’s financial sustainability into the future. In the new 
financial year, we project a yield increase of 3% for tea and 10% for 
rubber. As our parent company Dipped Products PLC absorbs nearly half 
of our output of rubber, we have a stable market for this commodity. 
However, the low prices for rubber will have an impact on our revenues. 

Therefore, we will continue to seek direct export opportunities for value 
added rubber and certified rubber. With tea, our prospects are brighter. 
When Hayleys Global Beverages becomes operational, our value added 
export prospects will significantly improve and with it, our revenues.

As an important aspect of value creation, we are also continually 
improving existing technologies and integrating new technologies into 
our plantation operations to modernise the Company. More information 
in this regard can be found in the Value Creation section of this report.
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W G r rajadurai
Managing Director
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“As far as tapping quality is concerned, Kelani Valley is leading, 
in controlling the bark consumption rate, which minimises the 
tapping panel dryness, while improving quality.

The efforts taken by the management of Kelani Valley 
Plantations to improve the condition of clearings with a 
clear objective of increasing the productivity for sustainable 
rubber production for the Company and for the country, is 
commendable.”

Dr. Priyani Senevirathne
Deputy Director Research (Biology)
Rubber Research Institute of Sri Lanka

It has a    story
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In addition to replanting a considerable amount of money has been 
invested for upgrading plant and machinery to conform the process into 
international standards and certifications.

Further, our growth strategy, for sustainable future value creation, 
is based on creating new revenue sources through new product 
development and market diversification.

buSineSS diverSifiCation
Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. (1 Mw) was set up as a joint 
venture between Eco Power Construction (Pvt) Ltd. and KVPL in 2005.

Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. became a fully owned subsidiary in 2010 and 
acts as the marketing and exporting arm of the Group. It was the first 
company in the world to launch an “Ethical Tea” brand in 2006.

Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd. is a fully owned subsidiary involved in 
manufacturing Instant Tea at Nuwara Eliya.

Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. (HGBL) is our latest venture into 
value added tea and other beverages and will begin its commercial 
operations in the new financial year.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Value Creation

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (KVPL) was incorporated as a Regional 
Plantation company in June 1992, consequent to the restructuring 
of the state owned plantation sector in Sri Lanka and the assets 
acquired include, immature and mature plantations, buildings, 
machineries, vehicles and equipment etc. These assets were neglected 
and under utilised. The main objective of our value creation process 
was to manage these in a responsible and profitable manner, to meet 
shareholder expectations.

reinveStMent in oWn aSSetS
As bearer biological assets, these plantations of tea and rubber have 
limited life span. These plantations require replanting to sustain it’s 
revenue generating capacity. As such, KVPL invested Rs. 3,219 m for 
replanting 626.61 hectares of tea and 3,404.69 hectares of rubber since 
1992.

The Company expects to maintain this strategy in the future for its long 
term sustainability.

The immaturity period of three years for tea and six years for rubber 
absorbs a major share of the capital expenditure.

KVPL’s consistent rubber replanting programme has enabled its 
plantations to record the highest yield amongst the Regional Plantation 
Companies for the period under review.
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Monitoring 
and evaluation

 G  our MiS system is fed with daily production data and market information to facilitate fast responses.
 G  a new online Performance Management System (PMS) system was introduced to monitor daily 

operations from Head office through web access. the estate managers are facilitated to access 
the PMS 

 G  the PMS system has improved the efficiency by reducing the estate data entry work and 
provide the estate management with online actual daily reports for their decision making.
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Harvesting  G  new electronic weighing system are being introduced to improve weighing process efficiency 
and  enhance employee satisfaction. 

Production
 G  electronic weighing scales are  being installed in factories and linked with the online system. 
 G  CCtv are installed in selected factories to monitor the factory operations. remote access is 

also available from  Head office.

neW ProduCt deveLoPMent
Over the last few years we have developed a range of new, value added 
plantation based products. These include:

 G Single garden teas
 G Instant tea
 G Coloured sole crepe rubber

Market deveLoPMentS
As the tea trade is a highly competitive market, creating a wider product 
range would be advantageous in reaching new markets and attracting 
new buyers. Therefore, Mabroc is used as a link to reach new markets and 
increase our sales. During the year, Mabroc participated in trade fairs in 
Russia , Ukraine, Japan, Sweden (for herbal teas) and negotiations are 
underway to enter the Taiwan market with branded products.

HGBL has been created solely to penetrate into international export 
markets with a new tea product range and introduce the Hayleys, Kelani 
Valley brand to a wider spectrum of buyers.

Sustainable agricultural practices are used to attract buyers who 
are willing to pay marginally higher prices for different types of 
compliances. KVPL complies with Rainforest Alliance™, UTZ™, FSC™, ISO 
22000 : 2005 ETP (Ethical Tea Partnership) and HACCP certifications.

Innovative rubber products to niche markets attracting higher prices 
overseas, is an avenue that we are pursuing aggressively in spite of the 
declining rubber prices.

Single Garden Teas

Value Creation Contd.
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neW teCHnoLoGieS
Our growth plans are supported by the ICT strategy. we are now 
introducing ICTs further down the value chain and  use ICTs to integrate 
all production related aspects with decision making to enhance value 
creation.

online Performance Management System (PMS)
All estates upload their daily information to the web based PMS system 
from the checkrolls. This data is collated to provide management 
information. A special monitoring unit is setup to monitor and report 
this information.

electronic Weighing System (eWS)
This system is developed in house with external technical support. It 
is designed to improve efficiency in the weighing process and enhance 
employee satisfaction. Workers were given Near Field Communication 
(NFC) ID cards with their picture and details printed on it. As there is no 
manual intervention into the system, human errors are eliminated. The 
system output is linked with the estate checkroll system.
  
installation of CCtv Systems to Selected tea factories
This will ensure better control and supervision of tea manufacture from 
a central control room and enhance the productivity levels by allowing 
detailed monitoring of all actions of the operators and their behaviour.

NFC ID cards with their picture and details printed on it

Electronic weighing scales in operation.Electronic weighing and data processing system.   
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food Health and 
Safety Certification

environmental 
Certification

Social 
Commitments

kvPL Certification
 System

utZ ™
for 2 green tea and 4 black tea 

plantations

ethical tea Partnership (etP)
for tea plantations 

iSo 22000:2005 
for all our black tea factories 

with Swiss accreditation

HaCCP on
  all our black tea factories

forest Stewardship  Council 
(fSC™)  for rubber plantations

GLobaLG.a.P.
 for tea plantations

rainforest alliance™ (ra)
 for tea plantations

ProduCt reSPonSibiLity
KVPL’s product responsibility is in par with our vision statement 
“Products of Excellence”. In such an approach, we are very concerned 
with the quality as well as purity of products and safety of process. We 
ensure these aspects through good agricultural and manufacturing 
practices, and via compliance with third party assurance, through 
external audits.

QuaLity   G4 - Pr  3

Our tea market is spread over thirty four countries in the world and we 
comply with international standards and regulations in accordance 
to FSSC 22000, ISO 22000, ISO 9001, HACCP, EU-Organic, Rainforest 
Alliance™, ETP and Ayurveda Certified. We take all steps possible to 
ensure that our products are free of chemical residues that are harmful. 

Our products are analysed to ensure that physical, chemical and 
microbiological parameters are within the acceptable limits.  

 G4 - Pr  1

Our black tea factories are certified with ISO 22000:2205/HACCP 
certification. In addition, the green tea factory at Glassaugh and the tea 
estates of Udaradella, Pedro, Nuwara Eliya, Edinburgh and Oliphant are 
certified with UTZ™.

 G4 - Pr  2

We are proud to note that to date we have not faced any fines or 
sanctions for non-compliance with health and safety aspects of our 
products, or non-compliance with any other certification body and 
regulations concerning marketing and communication. There were no 
complaints on breach of customer privacy.
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kvPL’s SuPPLy CHain
KVPL sources all its products and services from within the country. All 
these suppliers have been associated with KVPL for a considerable 
period of time.

Packing Materials Suppliers
Fertilizer Suppliers
Dolomite Suppliers
Chemical Suppliers
Machinery & Other Equipment
Stationery Suppliers
Barbed Wire Suppliers
Laboratory Chemical Suppliers
Road Tar (Bitumen) & Roofing Tar Suppliers
Black Poly Bag Suppliers
Latex Collection Cup Suppliers
Plastic  Crate Suppliers
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Supplier Profile 
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Our core products are natural. During the period under review, there are 
no incidents of non-compliance with regulations concerning marketing 
& communication. There were no complaints on breach of customer 
privacy.

 G4 - 15/ 16

During the financial period concerned, KVPL has maintained 
membership in the following associations.
1. Ceylon Chamber of Commerce
2. United Nations Global Compact
3. The Planters’ Association of Ceylon
4. The Employers’ Federation of Ceylon
5. The Food Plus GMBH
6. Sri Lanka Planters’ Benevolent Fund
7. Colombo Tea Traders’ Association
8. Colombo Rubber Traders’ Association
9. Spices & Allied Products Producers & Traders’ Association
10. Japan Sri Lanka Technical & Cultural Association
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Awards and Accolades

Highlights  From Our Awards Diary
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 G  Gold Winner Nuwara Eliya estate won the  Social Dialogue and Workplace Cooperation Award 2014 
(Social Dialogue Excellence Awards- 2014), under the plantation sector medium scale category, awarded by 
The Ministry of Labour and Labour Relations, Sri Lanka.

 G Gold , Silver and    Bronze Awards Pedro Estate tea won  under Nuwara Eliya category, at the Dubai 
Food Fair, held by the Sri Lanka Tea Board.

 G  Gold Award Mabroc Teas herbal range won the Best New Natural Drink at the Natural Products, 
Scandinavia exhibition, held in Malmo, Sweden.

 G Silver Award at the People Development Awards 2014, by the Sri Lanka Institute of Training and 
Development

 G Silver Award, in the large scale plantation category, at the National Agribusiness awards 2014, 
conducted by National Agribusiness Council of Sri Lanka.

 G   Silver Award under the agriculture and plantations sector at the National Business Excellence Awards 
2014, conducted by The National Chamber of Commerce of Sri Lanka.

 G  Silver  Award KVPL’s Annual Report for 2013, won under the plantation companies category, at The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka Annual Report Awards ceremony, 2014,

 G Silver Winner Dewalakande Estate was awarded the Social Dialogue and Workplace Cooperation Award 
2014 (Social Dialogue Excellence Awards- 2014), under the plantation sector medium scale category, 
awarded by The Ministry of Labour and Labour Relations, Sri Lanka.

 G  Bronze Award KVPLs Glassaugh Estate won the ‘Ceylon Specialty Tea Competition’ for green tea 
category, by the Sri Lanka Tea Board, at the Dubai Food Fair.

 G  Bronze  Award Mabroc won the export performance awards by The National Chamber of Exporters, 
under the extra-large category - bulk exports and extra-large category - value added exports  
  

 G  KVPL won the ‘Best Performing Regional Plantation Company’ overall third highest GSA for the year 2014, 
conducted by Forbes & Walker (Pvt) Ltd. 

 G  1st runner up award under the ‘agricultural sector’ at the Best Presented Annual Report Awards and SAARC 
Anniversary Awards for Corporate Governance Disclosures 2013, which was conducted by South Asian 
Federation of Accountants (SAFA/ An Apex Body of SAARC), on 4th December 2014 at Bhubaneswar.
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Operational Environment

GLobaL tea induStry   
overview
Tea is the most consumed beverage next to water in the world, with over three billion cups of tea drunk worldwide each day, surpassing most 
carbonated and non-carbonated drinks. Amongst many a tea producing countries, Ceylon Tea is best known for its unique characteristics, aromas 
and flavour, it is also considered the cleanest tea in the world, in context of pesticide residue and, is the first tea to achieve the ozone friendly tag.
  
World tea production reached 5 b kg in 2014, against 4.9 b kg in 2013. Tea cultivation is limited to certain regions in the world due to specific agro 
climatic reasons. The Asian region contributes the highest proportion to the global tea output. China is the largest producer of tea in the world, 
while India and Kenya post the second and third outputs. Sri Lanka was the 4th largest producer in both 2014 and 2013. However, Kenya is the 
largest tea exporter in the world.

Colombo auction average prices are the highest among major tea auctions around the world recording USD 3.54 per kg in 2014, compared to USD 
3.44 kg, in 2013.

 

top ten tea Producing Countries 2014
couNtry 2014 

Kg. m
2013 

Kg. m
 % chaNGe 
oVer 2013 

2004 
Kg. m

2014 % chaNGe 
oVer 2004

China 1,980.0 1,924.5 3% 835.2 1,980.0 137%
India 1,184.8 1,200.4 -1% 892.9 1,184.8 33%
Kenya 445.1 432.4 3% 324.6 445.1 37%
Sri Lanka 338.0 340.0 -1% 308.0 338.0 10%
Vietnam 170.0 180.3 -6% 119.0 170.0 43%
Indonesia 132.0 134.0 -1% 164.8 132.0 -20%
Bangladesh 64.5 66.2 -3% 55.6 64.5 16%
Uganda 59.5 61.0 -2% 35.7 59.5 67%
Malawi 45.9 46.4 -1% 50.0 45.9 -8%
Tanzania 32.5 32.1 1% 30.6 32.5 6%
Total 4,452.3 4,417.3 1% 2,816.4 4,452.3 58%

Source: Adopted from Forbes & Walkers, (2014), Sri Lanka Tea Review
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GLobaL rubber induStry   
overview
The relationship between synthetic rubber production/price 
and natural rubber production/price, is important for Sri Lankan 
rubber producers as both are substitute products. Out of total 
world demand for rubber in 2014, 59% was supplied by Synthetic 
Rubber  (SR) and 41% from Natural Rubber (NR). The total rubber 
production in 2014, was 29 m MTs, which is a 3% growth compared 
to the previous year. The increased production consists of 8% 
growth in SR, while NR production declined by 3% compared to last 
year. Total rubber consumption increased by 7% in 2014, relative to 
the last year, amounting to 29 m MTs. Consumption of SR increased 
by 9%, whereas the NR increased only by 4%.

East Asian and South Asian countries in the world dominate NR 
production, accounting to around 95% of world NR production. 
Thailand, Indonesia, Malayasia, India and Vietnam are the major NR 
producing countries, while Sri Lanka is ranked at the 10th position and 
ranked as the 7th largest exporter. Sri Lankan crepe rubber is considered 
the best crepe rubber in the world.

Sri Lankan eConoMy
According to the Central Bank Annual Report 2014, the Sri Lankan 
economy grew by 7.4% in 2014, compared to 7.2% in 2013, in a 
background of favourable macroeconomic conditions, including a 
relaxed monetary policy and stable inflation. The rate of inflation 
continued to decline in 2014, with year-on-year and annual average 
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inflation declining to 2.1% and 3.3%, respectively, by end 2014, from 
4.7% and 6.9%, respectively, at end 2013. The exchange rate was 
relatively stable throughout the year with the rupee appreciating 
marginally against most major currencies. The Sri Lankan rupee 
appreciated by 0.29% against the USD during the first nine months 
of the year and depreciated by 0.47 % during the fourth quarter of 
2014. The rupee depreciated by 0.23% against the USD to Rs. 131.05 
by end 2014, although the rupee appreciated against all other major 
currencies as a result of cross currency exchange rate movements. The 
rupee appreciation, although favourable for imports, did not benefit 
plantation companies as exchange rate gains did not accrue during the 
year to cushion domestic cost increases.

Overall, the agriculture sector performance was much lower than 
the previous year with a growth rate of 0.3%, compared to 4.7% in 
2013, mainly due to adverse weather conditions that prevailed during 
the year. As a result, the share of the agriculture sector decreased 
to 10.1% of GDP in 2014, from 10.8% of GDP in 2013. The rubber sub 
sector contracted drastically due to both supply and price reductions, 
while the tea sub sector too slowed down, albeit marginally, due to a 
combination of unfavourable weather conditions and a decline in export 
demand. On the external front, the recovery in the United States and the 
gradual recovery in the Euro zone supported export growth in general. 
However, the plantation sector experienced the negative repercussions 
of falling global commodity prices and lower demand from major export 
destinations for both tea and rubber.

agriculture Product index (2007 - 2010 = 100) 

item 2013 
(reViSed)

2014 
(ProV.)

(%)
chaNGe  

2013/2014
Agriculture and fishing 121.9 118.6 -2.7%

Agriculture 115.2 109.8 -4.7%

Agriculture crops 112.9 106.3 -5.9%

Tea 109.1 108.5 -0.6%

Rubber 97.2 73.5 -24.4%

Coconut 88.7 101.3 14.2%

Paddy 123.6 90.4 -26.8%

Other crops 125.4 133.0 6.1%

Livestock 132.1 136.5 3.4%

Fishing 153.7 160.4 4.3%

Source: Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 2014
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Export earnings from tea, which account for about 15% of total exports, grew by 5.6% in 2014, compared to the 9.2% growth recorded in 2013. The 
slower growth of tea exports reflected destabilisation in the export markets the main export destinations such as Russia and the Middle East, which 
account for about 59% of total tea exports.

Composition of exports

cateGory 2013 2014(a) chaNGe 
iN VaLue 

uSd m

y-o-y 
chaNGe  

%

coNtributioN 
to chaNGe  

%
VaLue  
uSd m

Share  
%

VaLue  
uSd m

Share 
 %

Agricultural exports 2,581.1 24.8 2,793.9 25.1 212.8 8.2 28.9

Tea 1,542.2 14.8 1,628.3 14.6 86.1 5.6 11.7

Rubber 71.3 0.7 45.3 0.4 -26.0 -36.5 -3.5

Source: Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 2014

nationaL tea induStry
national tea Production
Tea production in 2014, at 338 m kg, was marginally lower than the historically highest volume of 340 m kg recorded in 2013. Low grown tea 
production, which accounts for 62.1 % of the total production, increased by 0.8 % to 210 m kg in 2014. However, the production of high grown tea 
dropped by 0.4 % to 78.9 m kg, and the volume of mid grown tea fell by a larger 6.4 %, to 49.2 m kg. Tea production at all elevations declined during 
the first quarter of the year due to drought. Production of mid grown tea showed a significant decrease in the third quarter vis-a-vis the corresponding 
period of the previous year. However, the third quarter saw a significant increase in high and low grown tea volumes.

trends in Principal agricultural Crops
cateGory uNit 2013 2014
tea 340.0 338.0

Production(c) Kg m 222 222

Total extent hectares '000 184 185

Extent bearing hectares '000 422.70 433.97

Cost of production(d) Rs/Kg 444.42 461.86

Average price - Colombo Auction - Export (f.c.b) Rs/Kg 623.91 649.44

Replanting Rs/Kg 1,591 1,195

New planting hectares 263 401

Value added as % of GDP (e) hectares 0.9 0.9

rubber 130.4 98.6

Production Kg m 134 134

Total extent hectares '000 105 111

Extent bearing hectares '000 150.00 160.00

Cost of production(d) Rs/Kg 376.78 285.76

Average price - Colombo Auction - Export (f.c.b) Rs/Kg 389.91 362.96

Replanting Rs/Kg 2,024 1,475

New planting hectares 2,979 1,304

Value added as % of GDP (e) hectares 0.2 0.1

Source: Central Bank of Sri Lanka, 2014

Operational Environment Contd.
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tea Prices - Colombo auction
Tea prices at the Colombo Tea Auction (CTA) remained buoyant in 2014 
except during the last quarter of the year. The relatively high tea prices that 
prevailed in the first nine months of the year were mainly due to global 
supply shortages of orthodox black tea in the first quarter and the improved 
export demand in the second quarter. The average tea price in 2014 
increased to Rs. 461.86 per kg, from Rs. 444.42 per kg in 2013. The Free on 
Board (FOB) average price per kg, also increased by 4.1% to Rs. 649.44, from 
Rs. 623.91 in 2013. The highest increase in tea prices at the CTA, was reported 
on low grown tea at 3.2%, followed by high grown tea at 3.0%. However, the 
average price of medium grown tea showed a marginal decline of 2.4%.

Tea prices started to decline from August 2014, as demand from Russia 
and the Middle East contracted. This was largely due to geopolitical 
tensions in the Middle East and the slowdown in the Russian economy 
due to sanctions and the significant decline in international petroleum 
prices. However, as Sri Lanka supplies high quality orthodox tea, which 
attracts higher demand in international markets, the export price of Sri 
Lankan tea averaged at USD 4.97 per kg, recording an increase of 3.1% 
from the previous year. This price was above the average international 
tea price of USD 2.72 per kg that prevailed in 2014.

nationaL rubber induStry
national rubber Production
National rubber production declined by 24.4% to 98,573 metric tonnes 
(MTs) in 2014, from 130,420 MTs in 2013. This decline was largely due to 
lower prices for rubber and continued dry weather during the first half 
of the year and the heavy rains in the third quarter, which disrupted 
tapping. Rubber smallholders affected by the decline in rubber prices 
slowed tapping operations, resulting in the reduction of smallholders 
share in total rubber production. Overall, the production of sheet 
rubber, which accounts for nearly 50% of the total production, declined 
significantly by 22.7%, to 48,539 MTs, while the production of latex 
crepe, accounting for 12.0 % of total rubber production, reduced by 
23.0 %, to 11,832 MTs in 2014. Due to the production shortfall and lower 
prices in international markets, domestic rubber product manufacturers 
turned towards imported rubber. As a result rubber imports increased to 
29,220 MTs in 2014, from 11,150 MTs in 2013.

rubber Prices - Colombo auction
Global natural rubber prices declined sharply in 2014, reflecting the 
slowdown in global demand and large stockpiles accumulated in major 
consuming countries. The average price of natural rubber in the global 
market declined by 30%, to USD 1,956 per MT, in 2014, from USD 2,795 
recorded in 2013. Natural rubber production in Asia, which caters to 
around 95% of the world demand for natural rubber, is estimated to 
have fallen by around 3% to 10.8 m MTs in 2014, while stockpiles in 
China and Japan have increased. Meanwhile, weakening crude oil 
prices prompted the demand for synthetic rubber, placing further 
downward pressure on natural rubber prices. Reflecting international 
developments, rubber prices at the Colombo Rubber Auction declined 
to its lowest levels since 2008, continuing the decreasing trend 
witnessed during the recent years. The highest price drop of 24.1% was 
seen in ribbed smoked sheet 1, while prices of latex crepe 1X, and scrap 
crepe, declined by 22.0 % and 22.4%, respectively in 2014.
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When the National Gross Sales Avarage (GSA) dropped by Rs. 96 from 
Rs.512 in January to Rs.416 in March, KVPL GSA declined only by Rs. 43 
from Rs. 485 in January 2014 to Rs. 442 in March 2015. This is a 9% drop 
in KVPL averages against 19% drop in national averages. Therefore, 
the impact of lower tea outputs was mitigated by higher prices that 
stabilised revenues. Tea revenues declined by a marginal 1.4% to  
Rs. 2.90 m during the 12 month period in 2014, against 2013. However, 
by end March 2015, the 15 month turnover increased to Rs. 3,587 m.

National high grown sales averages and KVPL’s high grown sales 
averages in 2014/ 15

 

rePortinG Period   G4 - 28

The current reporting period consists of 15 months due to the change 
of the financial year. Therefore, the current annual report provides 
both 12 month (12 M) and 15 month (15 M) figures. Figures for the last 3 
months (3 M), of the 15 month period, are presented separately in some 
instances.

Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. commence construction on it’s 
processing plant to manufacture and sale of value added – Instant Tea, 
Tea Extracts and Ready To Drink beverages in Hatton.

kvPL tea
The financial year 2014/15 was a comparably good year for the tea 
industry in terms of prices. However, KVPL’s tea production saw a 
13% reduction for the comparative 12 month period of the year from 
6.7 m Kgs in 2013, to 5.8 m Kgs in 2014. This drop in production was 
mainly due to erratic weather conditions with the rainfall in upcountry 
recording an excessive of 3,545 mm in 2014/15. Mindful of the quality 
impacts on tea due to excessive rains, we opted for quality conscious 
harvesting. This resulted in a lower outputs, but higher quality of tea 
that contributed towards improved prices for both high grown and low 
grown tea. The amount for the 15 months period is 7.4 m Kgs bought 
crop had slightly declined in par with the low yield due to bad weather 
conditions.

KVPL was able to record an overall Net Sale Average (NSA) of Rs. 452, for 
the 12 month period of January to December, which is a slight increase 
of 3%, relative to the previous year. 

Our overall sales average ranking for high grown tea improved 
from 7th position to the 3rd position by the 4th quarter of 2014. 
Good prices for high grown tea are vital for KVPL, as it contributes 
approximately 75% of revenue. Prices for low grown too, improved 
in 2014/15, with the sales average ranking rising to 2nd position by 
March 2015.
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kvPL rubber
Due to sharp price reductions of natural rubber in international markets, 
prices of RSS1 rubber dropped from Rs. 380 per Kg in 2013, to Rs. 288 
per Kg in the 4th quarter of 2014, which is a 24% reduction. Meanwhile, 
erratic weather resulted in lower production. The number of wet days 
increased from 144 in 2014 to 158 in 2014. This caused a 9% drop in crop 
from 3.4 m Kgs in 2013, to 3.1 m Kgs in 2014. However the 15 month 
period saw an output of 4 m Kgs at KVPL.

 

key Performance areas of tea
Key PerformaNce area uNit 2014/15

(15 m)
2014 

(12 m)
2013

(12 m)
% of chaNGe

(15 m 2014/15 - 12 m 2013)
Revenue Rs. 000' 3,587,379 2,901,256 2,942,274 22%

Gross profit Rs. 000' 191,818 118,586 125,734 53%
Hectarage cultivated Hec 3,627 3,627 3,537 3%
Yield per hectare (YPH) kgs/ Hec 1,802 1,427 1,640 *(13%)
Production (Combined) Kgs 7,369,010 5,830,534 6,731,639 9%
Bearer biological assets (NBV of mature tea) Rs. 000' 663,556 590,183 618,274 7%

*YPH is compared against a 12 month period   

Despite the 13% drop in production, the cost of production decreased only by 1% for the 12 month period due to the fixed nature of costs of tea 
cultivation. Fertilizer programmes and other field maintenance practices have contributed towards land productivity, while motivational programmes 
and training are contributing towards increasing labour productivity.

The Company has taken 
measures to improve prices 
and worker productivity, 

to maintain performance in 
order to face the cost increase 
arising  from the impending 
wage increase due in 2015

2015/16
Outlook

Management Discussion & Analysis
Operational Review
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The cumulative effects of price and quantity decrease weakened our rubber revenues during the year. Revenue from rubber for the 12 months period 
was Rs. 1,089 m and for the 15 month period, Rs. 1,352 m. This is against Rs. 1,380 m in 2013, which is a decline of 21% in the 12 months period. 

 G4 - 9

Key PerformaNce area uNit 2014/15
(15 m)

2014  
(12 m)

2013
(12 m)

% chaNGe
(15 m 2014/15 - 12m 2013)

Revenue Rs. 000' 1,352,401 1,088,570 1,379,770 (2%)
Gross profit Rs. 000' 228,921 181,400 482,775 (53%)
Hectarage cultivated Hec 4,525 4,525 4,563 (1%)
Yield Per Hectare (YPH) kgs/ Hec 1,257 972 1,002 *(3%)

Production (Combined) Kgs 4,025,720 3,078,959 3,451,183 17%
Bearer biological assets (NBV of mature rubber) Rs. 000' 806,559 766,797 824,118 (2%)

*YPH is compared against a 12 month period   

Investments in productivity improvements have been identified as 
mitigation strategies for market risk. The Company focused on a 
high percentage of rubber replanting of to 5% - 6% over a period of 
5 years. This investment in replanting has resulted in a YPH of 972 in 
2014, which is higher than the RPC average of YPH 783. However 2014 
saw a marginal drop over 2013 YPH of 1002, due to adverse weather 
conditions.

Rubber Yield Per Hectare of the RPCs Vs. KVPL

Operational Review Contd.

Natural rubber prices are 
expected to reach USD 2.40 

per kg. In 2015 (source:  
Dr. N. Yogaratnam - Rubber 

Expert, 03 March, 2015,
 Daily Mirror).

2015/16
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Financial Review

financial reporting and achievements
The KVPL Group adopts best practices in its financial reporting and keeps itself updated on new developments in the financial reporting environment. 
The financial reports on pages 140 to 209 have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Framework and Statements 
of Alternate Treatment promulgated by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CASL) and every attempt has been made to provide 
stakeholders, with a clear and comprehensive understanding of the financial statements.

The emphasis on quality and transparent reporting enabled the Company to secure several awards in both local and international reporting 
competitions. The Annual Report for 2013 won the silver award in the plantation sector at the Annual Report Awards competition conducted by the 
CASL for the 5th consecutive year.

2013 Annual Report of  KVPL was adjudged the runner-up for the Best Presented Annual Report in the Agri Sector and Corporate Governance 
Disclosures  at the SAARC Anniversary Awards 2013, conducted by the South Asian Federation of Accountants. The Company continues to give high 
priority to  accuracy and timely delivery of both quarterly and annual financial statements.

finanCiaL PerforManCe
Group financial Performance at a Glance

item

2014/15 2014 2013 chaNGe
*  % 

chaNGe
 Key factor (15 m) (12 m)  (12 m)

rs. m rs. m rs. m rs. m
Revenue 8,647 6,980 6,790 1,857 27%  G  Increase is from Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd (MTPL)

Cost of sales 7,908 6,399 5,904 2,004 34%  G Cost of sales of MTPL, in relation to the 
increased revenue

Other income 104 62 61 43 71%  G  Increase from fair value of biological assets 
and revenue share from hydro power

Administrative 
expenses

520 416 392 128 33%  G  Increase in management and staff salaries

Distribution 
expenses

98 45 44 54 122%  G MTPL costs, corresponding to increased 
revenues

Finance income 10 9 66 (56) (85%)  G  Decrease in short-term deposit of KVPL

Finance 
expenses

133 100 111 22 20%  G  Increase in short-term loan interest of MTPL 
and Interest on government lease of KVPL

Tax expense 50 32 74 (24) (32%)  G  Decrease in income tax and deferred tax

* (15 M 2014/15 – 12 M 2013)

 G4 - 15
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GrouP revenue
The Group recorded a revenue of Rs. 8,647 m for the 15 month period 
which recorded  a 27% increase compared to Rs. 6,790 m in 2013(12M). 
Group revenue for the 12 month period in 2014 was Rs. 6,980 m, 
recoding a marginal increase of 3% mainly arising from MTPL’s revenue.
 

KVPL contributed 56.5%  to total Group revenue, while MTPL 
contributed 43%. The balance was  from Kalupahana Power Company 
(KPC) and Kelani Valley Instant Tea (KVIT).

Segmental revenue
The Group’s tea segment consists of revenues from KVPL, MTPL and 
KVIT. The tea revenue of Rs. 7,254 m was made up of 51% from MTPL, 
48.5% from KVPL and 0.5% from KVIT. Contribution to the Group 
turnover from KVIT was insignificant as to KVIT being an experimental 
project. The revenue for the 12 month period in 2014 was Rs.5,855 m. 
compared to Rs 5,421 in 2013. The Increase in revenue 35% in 15 month 
and 9% in 12 months, was  from MTPL. KVPL’s tea turnover consist of 
76% from high grown and 24% from low grown.

The rubber segment recorded a turnover of Rs. 1,352 m compared to Rs. 
1,380 m in 2013, recording a decline of 2%. The decline in natural rubber 
prices eroded the contribution to Group turnover  by 5% to 15.5% in 
2014/15.

financial Performance Per employee
Revenue per employee provides an indication of the efficiency of our 
workforce. The turnover per employee has gradually increased to 
record Rs. 715,485/- per employee in 2014/15. The cumulative effects of 
increase in revenue  and decline in workforce have contributed to this 
increase.
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Gross Profit
Gross profit for the period under review was Rs. 739 m compared to 
Rs. 886 m in 2013, which is a decline of 17%. When the tea revenue 
increased by 35%, the gross profit from tea increased only by 27%. In 
contrast, when the rubber revenue decreased by 2%, the gross profit 
from rubber decreased dramatically by 53%. Therefore, the decline of 
total gross profit by 17% against a revenue increase of 27%, was mainly 
due to the fall in rubber prices.

Segmental Gross Profit
Tea was the main contributor to gross profit, representing 65%, 
amounting to Rs. 481 m in 2014/15. Rubber contributed to 31% of gross 
profit which was Rs. 229 m. Contributions from other sources was 4%. 
The gross profit from rubber has declined by Rs. 254 m for the period.

  

The gross profit margin of tea 
remained stable while the rubber 

margins decreased by 18%
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Profit before tax
Group profit before tax was Rs 102 m, at the end of 15 months, against 
Rs. 465 m in 2013 (12 M), recording  a decrease of 78% against the 
previous year. This severe decline in PBT was due to low rubber prices 
and lower tea productions.
 

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation (ebitda)
The Group’s EBITDA decreased by 28%, from Rs. 711 m to Rs. 516 m in 
2014/15. The respective amount for the 12 month amounted to  
Rs. 408 m, recording a 43% drop compared to the same period in 2013. 
This resulted in a decline in the operational cash flow position of the 
Group.
 

administrative, trade and distribution Cost
Administrative expenses which increased to Rs. 520 m in 2014/15 is 
approximately a 33% increase from 2013. The cost for the 12 month 
period of 2014 was Rs. 416 m, compared to Rs.392 m in 2013. Distribution 
expenses were mainly attributable to MTPL that saw an increase of 120% 
from Rs. 44 m, to Rs. 97 m, due to brand promotional activities.
 

net finance Cost
The key element in the net finance cost was the interest paid to the 
government on land lease. The respective cost for 2014/15 was Rs. 79 m, 
recording a 36% increase compared to Rs. 58 m for the 12 month period 
of 2014 resulting from the increase in GDP deflater.

The finance cost reflects the interest cost on borrowings. In the period 
under review the finance cost was Rs. 54 m. However finance cost for the 
12 months in 2014 was Rs. 41 compared to Rs. 53 m in 2013. This is due 
to repayment of borrowings. 

Finance income represents interest income from short term deposits. 
The drop in interest income from Rs. 66 m in 2013, to Rs. 10 m in 
2014/15, was due to withdrawal of short term investments.
 

The Group’s average cost of funds decreased from 9.10% to 7.05% 
during the year, due to the decrease in interest rates in debt market.
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return on Capital employed (roCe) and return on equity 
(roe)
ROCE declined from 15% to 6% due to the cumulative effect of decreasing 
profit and higher borrowings. ROE has declined from 18% to 8%.
 

return on assets (roa)
ROA reflects the profitability and efficiency of the Company, relative to 
its total assets. The Company’s ROA declined to 1% in 2014/15 from 6% 
in 2013 due to the decline of profits.

 

Total Replanting Expenditure 
was  

Rs. 458 m

income and deferred taxation
The Group’s total tax charge for the year was Rs. 50 m, recording a 
decrease of 32% compared to the previous year.

Income tax expenses decreased from Rs. 18 m, to Rs. 13 m, in 2014, as 
a result of the decrease in taxable profits of the Group. The deferred 
tax expense decreased from Rs. 62 m to Rs.30 m, due to the deferred 
tax reversals gained from carried forward tax losses. Tax on dividend 
income, of Rs. 2 m, was incurred for the dividend received from MTPL 
and KVIT.

Tax concessions and rates applicable to companies within the Group are 
available in page 174 and 175.

earnings Per Share (ePS) and dividend Per Share (dPS)
The EPS of the Group declined from Rs. 11.30, to Rs. 1.77, in 2014/15. 
The 84% decrease in EPS reflects lower profitability.

The Company has paid attractive dividends in the past. A dividend of Rs. 
1/- per share is proposed by the Company for the current year, against 
Rs 3.50 per share in 2013. The proposed dividend corresponds to 1.5% 
of the revenue reserves of the Company. The Company has fulfilled the 
solvency test requirement for payment of dividends, as per section 56 of 
the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

The Company paid Rs.3.50 dividend per share during the year, while 
prudently reserving a share for future growth. The dividend pay-out 
decreased from Rs. 204 m, in 2013, to Rs. 119 m in 2014/15.
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finanCiaL PoSition
financial Position at a Glance

rs.m 2014/15 2013 chaNGe % of 
chaNGe

Key reaSoNS

Non-current assets
Freehold property, plant & equipment 1,839 1,418 421 30%  G  New additions from HGBL

Improvements to leasehold property 2,796 2,410 386 16%  G  Increase in replanting of Tea and Rubber

Biological assets (Consumables) 105 83 22 26%  G  Increase in fair value

current assets
Inventories 866 864 2 0.2%  G  Increase in bulk tea of MTPL

Trade and other receivables 737 692 45 6%  G  Increase in produce debtors of KVPL

Short Term investment, Short Term 
deposits, cash in hand and bank

94 252 (158) (63%)  G  Withdrawal of short term deposits in KVPL 

equity and liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Deferred income 478 476 2 0.4%  G  Grants Received to KVPL

Deferred tax liability 393 363 30 8%  G  Increase in temporary difference of PP&E and 
Biological Assets

Retirement benefit obligations 1,123 1,046 77 7%  G  Increase in past service cost

Liability to make lease payment 446 448 (2) (0.4%)  G  Repayment of liability

current liabilities
Trade and other payables 430 524 (94) (18%)  G  Decrease in provision for attendance bonus 

and holiday pay of KVPL

Amounts due to other related 
companies

17 6 11 191%  G  Increase in related party payables of KVPL

Income tax payable 8 7 1 6%  G  Decrease in income tax receivable and decrease 
in tax credits

Short-term interest bearing 
borrowings

723 514 209 41%  G  Increase in short-term borrowings of MTPL

Management Discussion & Analysis
Financial Review

Financial Review Contd.
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Shareholders’ funds ratio
The net asset base of the Group increased during previous years. 
However, in 2014/15, it reduced to 41%, compared to 44% in 2013, due 
to the downturn in financial performance.
 

Decline in Natural Rubber prices 
eroded Profitability

Capital Structure
 

Shareholders’ funds attributable to equity holders of the Company 
decreased by 3% from Rs. 2,776 m to Rs.2,695 m. Long term borrowings 
increased by 217% against the previous year due to new loans obtained 
by Hayleys Global Beverage (Pvt) Ltd (HGBL) (Rs. 243 m), KVPL  
(Rs. 150 m) and MTPL (Rs. 27 m).
 

Group short term borrowings consists of Rs.723 m worth of foreign 
currency borrowing by MTPL, and a Rs.51 m overdraft balance in KVPL. 
The short term borrowings have increased by 46% during the year.

New borrowings during the year increased the gearing ratio from 19% to 
29% in the period under review. The prudent management maintained 
the gearing at an optimum level to minimise the cost of capital.

Interest cover declined due to the deterioration of financial 
performance.
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Price earnings ratio (Per)
Market price per share decreased from Rs. 78.30 to Rs. 71.90 in 2014/15. 
Further, the EPS decreased by 84% to Rs. 1.77, as a result of lower 
performance, where the cumulative effect has raised the Price Earnings 
ratio to a higher level of 41 times, compared to 7 times in the previous year.

 
biological assets - Consumable
The existing managed commercial timber was classified as consumable 
biological assets. The value has increased by Rs. 25 m, due to increase 
in fair value.

Working Capital
Working capital decreased from Rs.769 m to Rs.470 m in 2014/15, mainly 
due to the decrease in short term deposits by Rs.160 m and increase in 
short term borrowings and bank overdraft by Rs.244 m.

Current ratio
The current ratio reflects a downward movement. It has reduced to 1.36 
times in the period under review, relative to 1.72 times in previous year. 
The increase in short term borrowings of MTPL was the main reason.
 

Cash flow
Net cash generated from operating activities decreased by  
Rs. 209 m to Rs. 275 m in 2014/15 from Rs 484 m in previous year, as a 
result of lower profitability.

Capital expenditure incurred during the period was Rs. 1,047 m 
compared to Rs. 492 m in year 2013, which was an increase of 113%. 
This was mainly due to acquisition of property plant and equipment for 
HGBL.
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financing Cash flows
Financing cash flows were increased by 335%, to Rs. 580 m from an 
outflow of Rs. 247 m in the previous year. The inflow increased mainly 
because of the share issue in HGBL and new short term and long term 
loans received during the period.

net assets per Share
Net assets per share declined to Rs.79/- from Rs. 82/- in the previous 
year due to decrease in net assets.
 

Performance and Market Capitalisation of Shares
The market price of KVPL shares declined in 2014/15 to Rs. 71.90 per 
share. The highest and lowest prices for the year were Rs. 87.00 and  
Rs. 66.00 respectively.

Consequent to the decline in share prices, the market capitalisation 
declined to Rs. 2,445 m from Rs. 2,662 m in previous year. While the 
number of share transactions declined during the year, there was an 
increase in the number of shares traded. As per the ownership structure, 
the parent Company Dipped Products PLC (DPL) retained 72% of 
ownership and public holdings remained at 28%.

Capital expenditure by Segment
Capital expenditure on replanting of tea reduced marginally from Rs. 110 
m to Rs. 104 m while on rubber increased from Rs. 280 m to Rs. 354 m.

 

Out of the above expenditure Rs. 56 m and Rs. 160 m were on uprooting 
and replanting of tea and rubber respectively, in 76 hectares of tea and 
545 hectares of rubber.

Capital expenditure on others includes investment in property plant and 
equipment including work in progress which has increased by Rs. 445 m to 
Rs. 609 m. This increased due to the construction of  HGBL plant.

QuarterLy PerforManCe
Tabulated below is the quarterly performance of the Group. There are 
five quarters in the current reporting period due to the extension of 
the financial year. The first and fourth quarters recorded the highest 
revenue in 2014/15. The highest gross profit for the quarter was 
recorded in the fourth quarter, while the lowest was in the third quarter.
 

 G4 - 9

(rs. m) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 totaL
Revenue  1,931  1,703  1,590  1,756 1,667     8,647 
GP  177  102  101  201  158  739 
Administrative 
expense

 102  106  99  110  104  520 

PBT  56  (20)  (10)  65  12  102 

PAT  42  (19)  (12)  47  (6)  52

Profit/(loss) 
attributable to 
equity holders

 42  (20)  (16)  43  11  60 

Total Assets  6,477  6,599  6,431  6,848  6,994 6 ,994 
Total Equity  2,719  2,700  2,688  2,735  2,854 2,854
Total Debt  581  587  577  673  916  916
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future outLook   G4 - 14

The agriculture sector is one of the three main areas earmarked for 
future development by the government. Since inception, KVPL has 
sustained steady growth and contributed to the plantation sector. 
We expect to play a key role in the industry in supporting national 
development plans in the decade ahead.

 G  In line with our growth strategy we will increase direct exports 
of value added tea through MTPL.

 G  We will improve the productivity of assets, including land and 
labour, to mitigate impacts of increasing production cost.
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MabroC teaS (Pvt) Ltd
MTPL is a fully owned subsidiary of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC since 
2010. The Company has over 140 exclusive tea products which have 
been successfully marketed in over 50 countries in the world for the past 
25 years. These products can be broadly categorised in to bulk, packets, 
tea bags and exclusive gift presentations packed with black, green, 
herbal and flavoured teas. Mabroc Teas became the first Tea brand 
in the world to be enrolled into the United Nations Global Compact 
initiative and also the first tea export company from a tea producing 
country to be accepted into the Ethical Tea Partnership.

MTPL’s revenue recorded an increase of 51% to Rs 3,726 m in the 15 
months period 2014/15, compared to Rs. 2,468 m in the previous year. 
Bulk tea consists of 78% of total revenue, while 21% of revenue was 
from value added tea, and the balance from other sources. Export 
revenue accounted for 99% of total revenue generated for the period.
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The gross profit increased from Rs.251 m in 2013 to Rs.324 m for the 15 
months period 2014/15. Margins were continuously reduced compared 
to the previous financial year due to the currency crisis in the Russian  
Federation and the instability in the Middle Eastern region.

The capital structure consists of Rs. 282 m equity and Rs.777 m debt 
as at the date of reporting period. The Company’s bank borrowings 
increased substantially for the 15 months period from Rs. 570 m in 2013 
to Rs. 777 m. Total debts consist of Rs.723 m in short term borrowings 
and Rs.54 m from long term borrowing which was obtained to finance 
purchase of machinery.

The average interest rates continuously decreased and remained at 
2.6% during 2014/15 and in the previous year it was 3.55%. The gearing 
ratio of the Company increased from 63% to 73%.
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Our unique blends will  
entice your palate with

 exciting  flavours; 
A range that is truly 

special and mastered to 
perfection
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kaLuPaHana PoWer CoMPany (Pvt) Ltd (kPC)
When higher rainfall becomes a curse to tea and rubber plantations ; 
it becomes a boon for the hydropower sector. As a Group, this inverse 
relationship mitigates business risk to some extent. The higher rainfall 
in water enrichment areas increased hydropower generation. Therefore, 
KVPL benefitted in large margins from its mini hydropower operations in 
the period under review.

Performance
The higher rainfall in the financial period 2014/15 resulted in the second 
highest volume of electricity generation recorded since inception of 
KPC. It contributed 2,735,410 kWh to the national grid compared to 
2,713,028 kWh in the previous year. However, the 12 months generation 
of 2,479,430 kWh is a slight decline of 9% compared to the same period 
in 2013. The higher output during the last three months from January to 
March countered this loss to end the financial year with higher revenues.
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In 2014/15, KPC’s revenue increased by Rs. 8 m, to Rs. 41 m, recording the 
highest revenue for a fiscal year. This revenue growth was mainly due to 
the tariff increase to Rs. 15.90 and Rs. 14.87, from Rs. 12.31 and Rs. 11.61, 
on dry and wet rates respectively. This saw profit before tax increase by 
Rs. 4.5 m to reached the peak highest since inception, of  Rs. 25 m. KPC 
contributed 24% to the KVPL Group’s profits for the year.
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keLani vaLLey inStant tea (Pvt) Ltd (kvit)
KVIT is the value added, instant tea manufacturing venture established 
as an initial step towards developing value added tea based products for 
export. In addition to being a pilot project on value addition, KVIT is also 
a component of the overall sustainability model of the KVPL Group. As a 
small experimental venture, KVIT’s outputs are currently sold to a limited 
number of buyers and are not aggressively marketed. However, in the 
new financial year, KVIT’s experience and learning will be upgraded into 
commercial scale through Hayley’s Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd.

KVIT recorded a turnover of Rs. 8.7 m during the period 2014/15, which 
is a Rs.1.3 m drop against 2013. The lower turnover was due to lower 
demand during the year. KVIT’s production declined by 24%, to 4,432 
Kgs from 5,838 Kgs in the previous year. This resulted in a 189% drop in 
gross profit, leading to a loss before tax of Rs. 1.5 m, compared to the 
profit of Rs.0.9 m in 2013.
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Statement of  Value Addition 

We increased our economic contribution to the country by 6.7% year-on-year, to Rs 3,691 m during the current year, through our business activities. 
A major share (84%) of the economic value created by the Group, was distributed among our employees which was Rs 3,104 m. This investment 
in our employees supports our strategic priority of enhancing productivity by investing in our human capital base and also upholds our UNGC 
commitments towards ensuring the welfare of our employees and estate communities. In addition, during the year, we contributed Rs 84 m to the 
state offers as taxes. Through our business activities we generated Rs 34 m as shareholder wealth that was distributed among our shareholders.

 

Employees
Government of Sri Lanka
Shareholders
Lenders of Capital
Deferred tax impact
Retained for future as Depreciation 
Profit

Distribution of value addition 2014/15

84%

2%
1%

3%
8% 1%1%

2014/15

Distribution of value addition 2013

2%
3%

3%

77%

6%
8%

2013
1%

StateMent of vaLue addition   G4 - eC 1

 Group Company
for the period/year ended 31March/december 2014/15  2013  2014/15  2013 
 rs. m  rs. m  rs. m  rs. m

revenue 8,647  6,790  4,940  4,322
Other income 114  126  130  126
 8,761  6,916  5,070  4,448
Cost of material and services obtained (5,070)  (3,460)  (1,623)  (1,248)
Value addition 3,691  3,456  3,447  3,200

value Created Shared With  %  %  %  %
Employees 3,104 84 2,658 77 2,952 85 2,547 80
Government of Sri Lanka 84 2 53 1 14 1 12 1
Share holders 34 1 119 3 34 1 119 4
Lenders of capital 126 3 98 3 100 3 80 2
Deferred tax impact 34 1 55 2 27 1 43 1
Retained for future as depreciation 291 8 200 6 237 7 170 5
Profit 18 1 273 8 83 2 229 7
 3,691 100 3,456 100 3,447 100 3,200 100



Years of experience 
makes a perfect sole

Kgs 440k
Rs 217 m
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Our stakeholder groups are those who have direct or indirect influence 
on the operations of the Company. KVPL’s stakeholder engagement 
occurs through formal and transparent processes and procedures. 
During the financial year 2014/15, we accommodated many routine 
stakeholder requirements and also responded to unexpected and 
emergency situations. Estate communities in two estates in Yatiyanthota 
were affected by landslides during the year. We responded promptly to 
this emergency situation.

In addition, in January 2015, we launched a quarterly newsletter titled 
Hay-Plan which is our latest method of stakeholder engagement. The 
quarterly newsletter is circulated among all employees and other 
relevant stakeholders, such as brokers and national institutions, to keep 
them informed about KVPL operations.

StaKehoLder 
GrouP

method aNd freQueNcy of 
eNGaGemeNt

toPicS of coNcerN 
raiSed iN 2014/15

our reSPoNSe aNd eNGaGemeNt 
ProceSS

Shareholders We engage with our shareholders 
through:

 G  Interim financial reports - 
Quarterly

 G  Annual General meetings - 
Annually

 G  Golden Shareholder Meetings - 
As and when required

 G  Annual reports - Annually

 G  No topics of concern were 
raised by shareholders 
during the year 

 G  We continued to maintain regular contact and 
communications with our shareholder 

Employees and 
trade unions 

Our employees are 99% unionised. 
We engage with employees and 
unions through:

 G  Performance Appraisals - Annual
 G  CEO s Forums - Monthly
 G  Whistle Blowing Policy - As and 

when required
 G  Monthly management meetings 

- Monthly
 G  Collective Agreements - 
 G  Involvement in negotiations -As 

and when required

 G  Minor labour disruptions 
occurred at the two 
estates of Dewalakande 
in Dehiowita and Robgill 
Estate in Bogawantalawa.

 G  Both situations were resolved through 
negotiations. There was minimum work 
disruption and no damages to life and/or 
property

 G  The Hay-Plan newsletter was launched. The 
multilingual newsletter allows employees 
to contribute in Tamil and Sinhala as well as 
English. 

Buyers We interact with our buyers through:
 G  Buyer visits to our estates and 

factories - on request
 G  Participation in trade fairs
 G  Customer complaint handling - 

As and when required

 G  A large buyer raised 
concerns regarding 
possible additives in 
paper bags used for tea 
packaging that could have 
health impacts.

 G  Routine customer 
inquiries

 G  All our paper bags are certified as food grade. 
However, the supplier was requested to provide 
certification verifying that no potentially harmful 
additives are incorporated.

 G  We responded promptly to all customer inquiries.
 G  Our subsidiary, Mabroc Teas participated in six 

trade fairs and seven client visits overseas.
 G  Businesses and distribution arrangements of the 

“Mabroc” brand were negotiated.
 G  The Hay-Plan newsletter is circulated among 

buyers to keep them informed about KVPL 
activities and achievements

Stakeholder Engagement

 G4 - 24/26/27
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StaKehoLder 
GrouP

method aNd freQueNcy of 
eNGaGemeNt

toPicS of coNcerN 
raiSed iN 2014/15

our reSPoNSe aNd eNGaGemeNt 
ProceSS

Brokers  G  We interact with broker through 
broker get-togethers

 G  Broker visits - on request

 G  Routine inquiries and 
communications 

 G  We responded promptly to all inquiries
 G  All product compliance and quality disclosures 

were made available
 G The Hay-Plan newsletter will be circulated 

among brokers to communicate important news

Certification 
agencies 

 G  Interaction with certification 
agencies occurs through period 
compliance audits - Annual

 G  Communications were 
limited to compliance 
related inquiries 

 G  Participated in all annual compliance audits

Suppliers  G  Our suppliers include tea and 
rubber small holders and 
fertiliser suppliers. We engage 
with them through

 G  Supplier audits - As and when 
required

 G  Real time field visits

 G An issue concern during 
the year was with regards 
is low rubber prices 
realized by small holders. 
Although the government 
announced a guaranteed 
minimum price for rubber 
small holders, the subsidy 
payment process had 
many deficiencies. This 
was subsequently resolved 
and the subsidy payment 
process made simple

 G  KVPL paid its suppliers the market rates and 
submitted claims for the variances under the 
guaranteed price. The difference will be paid to 
suppliers from the Government.

Regulators and 
government 

 G  KVPL deals with various 
government agencies and 
regulators. We engage with 
them by complying with 
regulatory requirements.

 G  No topics of concern were 
raised. Communications 
were limited to routine 
engagements and 
inquiries 

 G  We responded to all inquiries and followed 
all compliance requirements promptly. 
(Environment as Stakeholder is addressed in this 
group)

Plantation 
community 

 G  Dialogues with community 
representative groups

 G  During the year 24 estate 
families were displaced by 
landslides 

 G We provided relief and rehabilitation support
 G  We relocated families and are assisting in 

building new homes in collaboration with the 
government and relevant NGOs. 
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StaKehoLder 
GrouP

method aNd freQueNcy of 
eNGaGemeNt

toPicS of coNcerN 
raiSed iN 2014/15

our reSPoNSe aNd eNGaGemeNt 
ProceSS

Academia 
and scientific 
community

We regularly collaborate with the 
Tea Research Institute (TRI), Rubber 
Research Institute (RRI) and the 
National Institute of Plantation 
Management (NIPM) through:

 G  Knowledge sharing workshops
 G  Internship programmes
 G  Collaborative industry research

No topics of concern were 
raised.

However, the Rubber Research 
Institute recognised some 
of our estates for good 
agricultural practices.

 G We conducted nursery practices training in our 
estates

 G  Accommodated five interns from the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants

 G Accommodated one intern from University of 
Kelaniya.

 G  KVPL executives are sent for training to the NIPM, 
the TRI and RRI.

 G  Modified drier according to TRI specifications for 
higher efficiency

 G  KVPL attended TRI symposium every three 
months

 G The Hay-Plan newsletter will be circulated 
these national agencies to communicate new 
developments

NGOs  G We engage with various NGOs on 
community welfare programmes 

In 2014/15 we worked with a 
number of NGOs (Berendina, 
World Vision, Red Cross, 
Sarvodaya) and the Plantation 
Human Development Trust 
(PHDT) on estate community 
welfare projects. 

 G A unique community development programme 
by KVPL, ‘a home for every Plantation Worker’ 
is driven by collaboration with other resource 
groups.

 G We continued to support other NGOs by 
providing access to plantation families and with 
partial funding for projects. 

Management Discussion & Analysis
Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder Engagement Contd.

Our leading 
concept to enhance 
the quality of life 
of our plantation 

community
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Human Capital Development

deveLoPinG HuMan CaPitaL
Human capital development is interconnected with KVPL’s strategic 
priority of enhancing productivity and upholding our commitment 
to the UNGC. KVPL contributed to the national human capital 
development process by:

i. Upholding and strengthening human rights (inclusive of labour 
rights) at the work place and among the wider society of the estate 
population.

ii. Training and development of employees and the estate population
iii. Improving quality of life and quality of work life

Under Sri Lanka’s unique plantation model, estate employees and 
their families, are permanent residents of estates. Therefore, while 
KVPL’s workforce totals nearly 12,000, the KVPL community adds up to 
nearly 58,000 men, women and children. These 58,000 individuals are 
our traditional estate population. While some members of this estate 
population work in our estates, a majority do not. However, KVPL’s 
business model incorporates this traditional communal system and treats 
both employees and non-employees as part of the KVPL community. 
Therefore, our community engagement is far more extensive than that of 
traditional business organisations. 

Our community engagements extend from birth to death in our estate 
communities. 

“A Home for Every Plantation Worker” Initiative launched in 2006 
covers many programmes which we discussed under Human Capital 
Development. It consists four areas concerning living environment 
health and nutrition, community capacity building and empowerment 
of Plantation Youth.

uPHoLdinG HuMan riGHtS  G4 - Hr 1, Hr 2

investments
 G  Total number of significant 

investment agreements and 
contracts that include human rights 
clauses and screening

There were no significant 
investment agreements 
and contracts that 
specifically included 
human rights clauses

 G  Total number of hours on training on 
human rights policies/ procedures 
concerning aspects of human rights 
that are relevant to operations.

 G  Percentage of employees trained in 
human rights policies or procedures 
concerning aspects of human rights 
that are relevant to operations.

No specific programmes 
only on human rights were 
conducted during the year. 
However, many training 
and welfare programmes 
related to human rights 
were conducted during 
the year.

anti-corruption initiatives  G4 - So 4, So 5, So 6

At KVPL, we conduct continuous training programmes that cover 
different topics, including corruption related subjects. In addition, 
as part of the Hayley’s Group, we are governed by the Hayley’s Anti- 
Corruption Policy. Employees are sensitised to the Anti-Corruption 
Policy as part of their work environment and orientation and 
our governance body is fully aware of the Group Anti-Corruption 
Policy. However, during the year we did not conduct any dedicated 
anticorruption training programmes. No political donations were made 
during the reporting period.

non discrimination  G4 - Hr  3

We do not discriminate on the provision of estate welfare facilities and 
estate utilities such as water, electricity and housing. These facilities 
are available even to estate families who do not work in our estates and 
with no difference to gender, age or religion.

There were no incidents of discrimination in the KVPL Group during 
the reporting period.

 G4 - La 13

We recruit employee only on merit.

However, in recruitment of estate workers and other employees, priority 
is given to persons from KVPL estates. This is in order to contribute 
towards poverty alleviation and to ensure the economic welfare of our 
estate population.

Strengthening  
human rights

Training and  
development

Improve quality of life and 
quality of work life

Employees
+

Estate 
communities

Develop 
human 
capital
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In addition, the traditional gender division of labour is maintained in our 
estates, where tea plucking is mainly done by women workers and other 
field work done by male workers. However, KVPL is trying to address this 
discrimination through educating our estate population.

freedom of association  G4 - Hr  4

Majority of KVPL employees are unionized and are covered by collective 
agreement.

Child Labour  G4 - Hr  5/ Hr 10/ Hr 11

Child labour is illegal under Sri Lankan law. KVPL does not use or 
promote the use of child labour in our offices, factories, plantations, 
subsidiary companies and/or suppliers. There were no incidents 
reported of child labour in the KVPL Group during the reporting period.

We also actively discourage sending children to work as child labour 
outside the estates, by educating estate families and by providing a 
range of services in childcare. These services include:

 G Providing educational support through scholarships, for children to 
continue their education, instead of being forced to work to support 
their families.

 G Free crèche facilities at Company expense, for mothers who work in 
our estates. This prevents abuse that could occur if toddlers/young 
children are left unsupervised.

 G Not accepting child labour for estate work. When recruiting labour 
for KVPL estates, applicants must produce their birth certificate to 
establish their age.

 G Free family counseling services discouraging child abuse, 
child marriage and domestic violence. Our full time, Human 
Development staff category includes Estate Medical Assistants, 
Welfare Officers and Child Development Officers, who give advice to 
estate families.

forced Labour  G4 - Hr  6

There were no incidents of forced labour in the KVPL Group during the 
reporting period. The KVPL Group does not use or promote the use of 
forced or compulsory labour in any of our activities or plantations or 
among our suppliers.

 G  Forced labour and compulsory labour is illegal in Sri Lanka. The 
national labour laws and fundamental rights under the Constitution 
of Sri Lanka, this is applicable to the plantation sector as well.

 G The best proof is that all of KVPL plantation workers are unionised.
 G KVPL estate workers are under no compulsion to work in our estates. 

In fact, a majority of working age men and women from KVPL 
plantations are already working in urban areas and some residents 
have also migrated. However, KVPL’s social welfare benefits and 
estate utilities are made available even to families who do not work 
in our estates.

uPHoLdinG Labour riGHtS  G4 - 9/ 10/ La 1/ La 2/ La 3/ La 4

emPLoymeNt 2014
Report the percentage of total employees 
covered by collective bargaining agreements

99% of total
100% of plantation 
employees

Report whether a substantial portion of the 
organisation’s work is performed by workers 
who are legally recognised as self-employed, 
or by individuals other than employees or 
supervised workers, including employees 
and supervised employees of contractors.

No. 

Total employees
Permanent employees
Contract/short term 

11,767
11,762
5

Executive and above 153

Non-Executive (Clerical, supervisory, 
Production, supportive, Medical & Welfare)

690

Manual grades 10,924

Human Capital Development Contd.

 G4 - eC 5
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aGe and Gender diStribution of eMPLoyeeS   G4 - 9/ 10/ 11 La 12

cateGory < 30 yearS 30 – 50 yearS >50 yearS totaL GraNd  
totaL

% out of 
totaL maLe femaLe maLe femaLe maLe femaLe maLe femaLe

Executives 30 7 78 12 20 6 128 25 153 1%

Non- Executives 181 55 236 76 107 35 524 166 687 6%

Manual 1493 1904 2185 2791 1100 1451 4778 6146 10924 93%

Total 1704 1966 2499 2879 1227 1492 5430 6337 11767

  La 1, La 2, La 3, La 4

emPLoymeNt 2014
Total number of new recruits during the year 119  

This number 
comprises only 
executive and non-
executive categories. 
Manual grade 
recruitments change 
according to seasonal 
crop patterns

new recruits < 30 years
new recruits 30-50 years
new recruits < 50 years

20
77
22

new recruits Male
new recruits Female 

99
20

Employee turnover 141  
(Only Ex & Non-Ex)

Employee turnover < 30 years
Employee turnover 30-50 years
Employee turnover < 50 years

26
83
32

Employee turnover male
Employee turnover female 

127
14

Employeebenefits not available to 
temporary/part time employees

Maternity benefits

Total number of employees entitled to 
maternity leave (2014)

591 cases budgeted

Total number of employees that took 
maternity leave (2014)

313

Total number of employees who returned to 
work after maternity leave ended (2014)

313

emPLoymeNt 2014
Total number of employees who returned 
to work after maternity leave and are still 
employed (2013/14)

Same as above

Retention rate of employees who took 
maternity leave (2013/14)

99 %

Labour/management relations
Minimum number of weeks’ notice typically 
provided to employees and their elected 
representatives prior to the implementation 
of significant operational changes that could 
substantially affect them.

1 month

report whether the notice period and 
provisions for consultation and negotiation 
are specified in collective agreements

Yes 

occupational Health and Safety   G4 - La 5

Workplace safety is implemented through
1. Continuous training on health and safety: In the reporting period, 

we conducted a total of 16 major health and safety related training 
programmes for 155 employees to fulfill international accreditation 
requirements.

a. We conducted first aid training in collaboration with the St 
John’s Ambulance Service.

b. Two employees enrolled in the National Diploma in 
Occupational Health and Diseases

2. Provision of safety equipment.
a. All KVPL tea plucker have been provided lightweight canvas 

sacks to carry tea leaves, instead of the traditional bamboo 
baskets that caused head, back and neck injuries.

b. All chemical fertilizer handlers are provided uniforms, 
gloves, boots and masks. Chemical cans are stored and 
disposed under segregated, supervised conditions.
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3. KVPL maintains medical centres in all estates, free of charge for 
estate workers and estate families. Some medicines are provided 
by the Ministry of Health of Sri Lanka and the Plantation Human 
Development Trust, while the Company also makes a significant 
contribution. Our medical centres are staffed with qualified

a. Estate medical practitioners(selected estates)
b. Midwives (selected estates)
c. Supporting staff 

4. Maintaining a 24-hour ambulance service that is accessible to all 
estates in emergency situations. The ambulance is also available for 
estate families

 G4 -  La 6, La 7

WorKPLace Safety record for KVPL 
GrouP (aLL emPLoyeeS iNcLudiNG 
eState WorKerS)

2014

Types of injury Minor accidents in 
factory and field 

Injury rate (IR) 6.23 %
Occupational diseases rate (ODR) 0.00 %
Lost day rate (LDR), 3.87 %
Absentee rate (AR) 21.95 %
Work-related fatalities 0
% of workers involved in high risk activities 0.0 %

Grievance Mechanisms  G4 -  La 16/ Hr 12/ So 11

Total number of grievances about labour practices 
filed through formal grievance mechanisms during the 
reporting period

None

Issues resolved during the reporting period N/A

traininG and deveLoPMent 
Due to the rapid increase in plantation labour costs, KVPL’s training 
and development goals are focused on productivity improvement to 
ensure sustainable development of plantation operations. Productivity 
improvements are identified through

 G  Employee surveys
 G  Work study assessments
 G  Resource use monitoring

Causes of Poor Productivity  G4 -  eC 8

An employee survey undertaken in July 2014 identified a number of 
causes leading to poor productivity. Significantly these factors are 
more a result of estate culture, than work conditions. For instance, 
alcoholism, which is a leading cause of poor labour productivity, is 

mainly because of the prevailing estate environment of alcohol abuse 
by men. High expenditure on alcohol leads to poor household cash 
management and inadequate allocation to health and education, which 
in turn, results in poor health and absenteeism.

Labour migration for employment abroad leads to high absenteeism 
and work disruption. However, available statistics indicate harsher 
living and working conditions for migrant workers, with little or no 
legal protection in migrating countries. Migration of women also has an 
overall social backlash due to neglect of children and family matters. 
However, migration is also driven by cultural factors such as social 
stigma against estate population. Domestic and foreign migration 
provides estate youth with opportunities to attain higher social status 
by distancing themselves from estates.

However, KVPL’s productivity improvement strategy will target each 
of these factors at both the work environment and the wider social/
community level.

cauSe of LoW 
ProductiVity 

KVPL reSPoNSe 

Absenteeism  G  Improve transparency in existing system of 
rewards and recognition

 G  Strengthen existing communication and 
motivation strategies

Alcoholism  G  Expand family counselling services
 G  Expand existing recreational facilities for 

plantation communities 

Poor health 
conditions

 G  Increase focus on housing and sanitation 
facilities

 G  Increase focus on health and nutrition 

Leaving for foreign 
employment

Educate estate communities of the benefits of 
working in the estates

 G  Free housing
 G  Free utilities such as electricity, water
 G  Free medical facilities
 G  No transport cost to come to work
 G  All statutory benefits under labour laws 

such as EPF, ETF and gratuity payments
 G  Opportunities to increase income through 

multi-tasking, home based work, home 
gardening etc..

 G  Importance of keeping the family together 
which enhances quality of life 
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cauSe of LoW 
ProductiVity 

KVPL reSPoNSe 

Poor knowledge 
of household cash 
management

Practical programmes to educate families 
on household cash management Discourage 
alcoholism 

employee training for the Current year  G4 -  La 9

We conducted many different training programmes across our estates, 
factories and offices. These programmes are managed by a dedicated 
official who identifies training needs and designs the required training 
programmes. Training programmes were conducted in house as well as 
in the related institutes such as NIPM, TRI and RRI.

Grade aVeraGe traiNiNG hourS Per 
emPLoyee

maLe femaLe oVeraLL
Executives 6.44 7.25 6.45

Non-Executives 4.53 3.75 4.05

Manual 5.25 6.21 5.93

Overall 5.38 5.53 5.47

type and Scope of training  G4 -  La 10

During the current reporting period, we incurred nearly Rs 2 m 
on employee training, including overseas training. Our training 
programmes were on the subject areas of:

 G  Tea plucking and skill development training for 940 tea pluckers
 G Rubber tapping and skill development programme for 448 rubber 

tappers
 G  Health and safety training programmes that benefited 155 workers

 G  Management development programmes on the areas of leadership 
development, motivation and communications. These programmes 
benefited 235 management personnel

eQuaL reMuneration   G4 -  La 13/ eC 5

There is no discrimination of wages and remuneration on the basis of 
gender at KVPL as wages are set according to the Collective Agreement.

SuPPLier aSSeSSMent for Labour  
PraCtiCeS    G4 -  La 14, La 15

These criterions are not applicable as KVPLs main raw material 
suppliers are small holders.

Market PreSenCe    G4 -  eC6

All senior management are hired from the local community, i.e. Sri Lanka.

exposure to Japanese Management Systems
KVPL’s Manager Human Resources and Corporate Sustainability, was 
selected for a fellowship programme on ‘Corporate Management for Sri 
Lanka (LKCM),’ conducted by the Overseas Human Resources and Industry 
Development Association (HIDA) of Japan, in 2014.

kvPL Plantation Management training Programme
In August 2014, KVPL launched a specialised training programme on 
plantation management. The programme has a structured training 
agenda with trainee evaluation schemes and a final written examination.

Six planter trainees in 1st batch at the inaguration session (Before training)Planter trainees in 1st batch,at the concluding session (After training)
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traininG and eduCation for our eState 
PoPuLationS  G4 -  La 10  

tyPe of traiNiNG No. of ProGrammeS 
coNducted

Alcohol awareness 26
Household cash management 70
Livelihood training 59
Street dramas 03
Gender awareness 142
Talent building 02
Youth empowerment programmes 567

We conduct a range of training and educational activities for the estate 
population targeting families, men, women and youth, on a wide range 
of topics. During the current financial year we spent Rs. 1.4 m on such 
community oriented training programmes that benefited 2,429 persons.

iMProvinG QuaLity of Life  G4 -  So 1/ So 2

improving Work Life for our employees
Majority of training programmes were conducted for the community. KVPL 
conducted a well-structured disaster management programme to support 
local communities.
During the current financial year we continued to improve facilities at work, 
to ensure a comfortable working environment. We constructed five new 
worker restrooms with hot water facilities and a new factory worker rest 
room. Investments on worker welfare related activities were Rs 35 m in 
2014/15.

 G4 -  So 1/ eC 7

emPLoyee WeLfare actiVity coSt rS. m
Re-roofing worker houses 1.7

Access roads 5.2 

Building upkeep 6.2

Worker housing 22.5

iMProvinG QuaLity of Life
Crisis intervention
During the current financial period, families of the estates of Kiriporuwa 
and Dewalakande in Yatiyanthota, were affected by landslides. The 
Company responded by providing preventive and relief assistance for 
these families through our trained Crisis Management Team.

 G Preventive action: Landslide risk localities and families in danger were 
identified by the Crisis Management Team and families in immediate 
danger were relocated to other available lodging within the estates.

 G  Relief and recovery assistance: In instances when houses were 
damaged due to landslides, financial and other support was 
provided by the Company to repair their homes. Families living in 
danger zones were relocated and provided with new plots of land to 
build new houses.

A programme to Issue national identity cards - Lighting of oil lamp Issuing national Identity cards to our valuable employees

Human Capital Development Contd.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Human Capital Development
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Community Welfare activities   G4 - eC 8

During the current financial year we spent Rs. 118.9 m, on community 
welfare programmes.

 G  Upholding civil and political rights : In 2014, we conducted a 
programme to facilitate to obtain National Identity Cards (NIC) for 
the residents of all our plantations. The NIC is a legal requirement 
of all Sri Lankan citizens to prove their identity and is essential to 
vote, obtain estate facilities, for legal assistance and for financial 
transactions. However, many persons living in estates do not own 
NICs. At the conclusion of our programme 480 persons received 
their NICs.

 G  Facilitating housing: Under our ongoing ‘A Home For Every 
Plantation Worker programme’ a housing scheme project in 
collaboration with the PHDT, we facilitated new housing for 15 
estate families. The Company provided seven perches of land for 
each estate family to build a new home.

 G  Health and nutrition programmes : The Company organised 
and implemented many health related activities for the estate 
population during 2014 to improve their health. Under nutritional 
interventions, at least 12 free feeding programmes, where foods 
such as milk powder distribution to estate families, were conducted 
during the year. These programmes targeted children of estate 
communities between the ages of 0-10 years. About 2,246 children 
benefited from these programmes.

Housing schemes in progress Child development centre “ How we are on our Future”

Estate worker housing Co-operative societies in the estates

actiVity No
No of dental clinics 145

 No of eye operations 88

No of pairs of spectacles provided 106

No of ayurvedic clinics 37

 G  Supporting Estate Worker Housing Co-operative Societies : Estate 
Worker Housing Co-operative Societies are active in all KVPL estates 
and are a channel for micro credit for estate families. During the 
financial year 2014/15, these Co-operative societies disbursed over 
Rs. 65 m to estate families as loans,and collected Rs. 28m through 
savings deposits.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Human Capital Development
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Welfare activities for estate Communities during 2014/15   G4 - eC 8

actiVitieS for imProVemeNt of  
LiViNG eNViroNmeNt

No of  
uNitS

New worker rest rooms with hot water facilities 5

New factory worker rest rooms 1

New Housing units 15

Estate land released for housing (perches) 7

Sanitation - Toilets 112

Number of new electricity connections 188

Number of new water schemes 7

Upgraded house 41

Ramps and Drains 120

Play Grounds 3

 G4 - So 8

Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non monetary sanctions for non compliance with laws and regulations not reported in current 
Financial Year

Empowering our employees - Estate worker housing Co-oporative society,Dewalakanda, Dehiowita
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kvPL- aS a SoCiaLLy reSPonSibLe CoMPany.
Chronic Kidney Disease (CKD) is waterborne and fast spreading, 
affecting many people in the North Central Province. CKD is preventable 
and curable if detected during the early stages. The Hayleys Group 
initiated a Corporate Social Responsibility programme named “Sath 
Diyawara” to provide quality drinking water to the people affected and 
to educate them on preventive measures.

KVPL as a socially responsible company, is not only concerned about 
people who live within our estate boundaries, but also have engaged in 
extending a hand to the villages of Kiriketuwewa of Kabithigollawa by 
participating in the Sath Diyawara Project, in addition to the activities 
covering the entire nation and the environment. 

The preliminary objective is to mitigate the spread of CKD by providing 
quality drinking water through the establishment of a Reverse Osmosis 
(RO) plant in the area and uplift the socio-economic conditions of the 
people of the North Central province of Sri Lanka.

View of the Purification Plant. The Chairman and the Board at the Opening Ceremony.

Searching beyond the 
traditional plantation 

boundaries.



70

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Environmental Sustainability

Our plantations have grown in harmony with its environment from inception, moving away from fossil fuel to cleaner energy, a commitment 
underpinned by its robust environmental accreditation and by upholding its commitment to the CEO’s water mandate. By protecting our biodiversity 
we have mitigated serious threats towards crop destruction and added immensely towards a lower carbon foot print.

Our environmental sustainability efforts are guided by our commitment, Environment, Ecosystem and biodiversity conservation policies.

 

We concentrate on seven major areas in implementing our environmental sustainability strategy.

kvPL environmental impact assessment system.
KVPL Environmental impact assessment system, interlines the business activities and the environmental strategy guided by an assessment system 
that includes; identification and assess environmental impacts from business activities and implementation of corrective and preventive action.

Material

effluent & Waste

energy

biodiversity

Compliance

Water

Products & Services
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kvPL’s environmental impact assessment Process

our environMentaL SuStainabiLity StrateGy
Our environmental sustainability strategy contributes towards our strategic priorities of enhancing productivity and maximising value of land assets, 
while minimising environmental impacts. Our environmental strategy is shown below:

SuStainabLe reSourCe ManaGeMent : Good aGriCuLturaL PraCtiCeS
Our tea and rubber estates are certified in compliance with sustainable agricultural practices that are adopted around the world. All KVPL tea estates 
are Rainforest Alliance™ and GLOBALG.A.P. certified, whilst the rubber estates are FSC™ certified.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Strategy investment in 2014/15environmental 
sustainability

implementation

Good agricultural 
practices rs. 28.5 M

rs. 2.4 M

Conservation  of 
protected areas

awareness programmes

Sustainable 
resource 

management

environmental 
conservation 

practices 

 G reduce, reuse, 
recycle  

 G Sustainable 
energy 
management 

approach to 
environmental 
sustainability

 G  internal & external 
logistics

 G Processing 

 G  Production & 
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Environmental Sustainability Contd.

Soil Conservation
Our laboratory in Dickoya ensures all fertilizer and agrochemical 
uses are in line with the recommendations of the respective research 
institutes.

reduCe, reuSe and reCyCLe (3r)
Monitoring Material usage
Inventories of material are maintained in order to control the usage of 
production inputs such as fertilizer, agrochemicals, packaging material etc.

Further, 52% of the renewable energy requirement is sourced from rubber 
wood extracted from our own rubber cultivations. KVPL has reduced it’s 
non-renewable material usage over the years.

Material usage at kvPL   G4 - en 1

NoNreNeWabLe materiaL uSe % chaNGe iN  
materiaL uSaGe  

(comPare to year 2013)
year

materiaL uNitS 2012 2013 2014/15
Quantity of material

Fertilizer  Kg 3,705,858 3,518,691 2,991,811 -15.0%
Dolomite  Kg 813,933 1,382,873 1,193,186 -13.7%
Agro Chemicals (Liquid form)  Liters 22,386 22,558 17,893 -20.7%
 Agro Chemicals (Solid Form)  Kg 3,920 5,030 3,626 -27.9%
Fuel

 G  diesel Liters 445,684 356,911 388,540 8.9%
 G  Petrol Liters 58,869 56,320 53,259 -5.4%
 G  firewood m3 57,256 49,745 12,934 -74.0%

renewable material use
Bought leaf Kg 3,672,325 4,131,245 3871,344 -6.3%
Bought latex Kg 616,392 527,311 280,211 -46.9%
Packing Materials Nos. 145,738 144,704 127,293 -12.0%

Cultivation of Mucana bracteata in rubber fields KVPL soil analysis laboratory, Dickoya, Hatton 
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reprocessing   G4 - en 2

The Reprocessing factory in Blinkbonnie estate in Dickoya reclaims the 
black tea from the high fibrous off grade teas of our estates.

During the period under review, 285,250.5 Kg of black teas was extracted 
from 916,776 Kg of high fibrous off grade teas.

recycling
A waste segregation programme, designed in compliance with 
Rainforest Alliance™ (RA) certification, is operational in all our RA 
estates. Waste is segregated into organic, glass, plastic and polythene 
waste, with the participation of estate community. Environmental 

awareness programmes have been conducted to educate estate 
population in waste management and maintenance of a clean living 
environment.

In estates where garbage is not collected by the Government authorities, 
arrangements have been made to convert garbage into compost and 
used in the fields as organic fertilizer.

reducing
Reducing energy consumption
We invested in hydro power and other energy conservation activities to 
curtail costs and reduce environmental impacts. The table below shows 
the direct and indirect energy utilization.

1. electricity Consumption - kWh
Indirect energy consumption by primary source ( During the year 2014 )

 LocatioN amouNt of eNerGy 
coNSumed iN 2014 /15 

GJ

amouNt of eNerGy 
coNSumed iN year 2013 

/ GJ

% chaNGe iN 
eNerGy uSe

 1. Factory 32224 22330 44%

 2. Office 834 484 72%

 3. Workshop/s 95  Not recorded  Not recorded

 4. Bungalow/s 2536 897 183%

 5. Quarters 4974 2617 90%

 6. Others 906 396 129%

Total Energy consumption from Indirect Energy sources (GJ) 41,572 26,726

Waste collection bins, Halgolla estate, Yatiyanthota.Fibrous Tea reprocessing centre, Blinkbonnie Estate, Dickoya

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability
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direct energy Consumption by primary energy source (during the year 2014) 
immoVabLe

aSSetS
 tyPe of 

fueL uSed 
uNitS  fueL 

coNSumed / 
2014/15 

aSSociated 
eNerGy 

utiLity iN 
(GJ) -2014/15

fueL 
coNSumed / 

year 2013

aSSociated 
eNerGy 

utiLity iN 
(GJ)-2013

% chaNGe 
iN eNerGy 

coNSumPtioN

1. Stationary equipment 
 factory      GJ  GJ 
 Power Generator  Diesel Litres 27,691 1,318 37,672 1,793 -26%

 Hot water generator/
Furnace 

 firewood m3 12,934 526,190 49,745 569,455 -74%

 If any other  Diesel Litres 27,504 1,309 Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

 office      GJ 
 Power Generator  Petrol Litres 263 9 Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

 Workshop    
 Oxyacetylene Oxyacetylene Litres 9,446 0.06 Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

 bungalows    
 LPG  LPG Litres 6,998 321 Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

 Generators  Petrol Litres 730 26 Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

 2. movable assets 
 diesel    

 G Field machinery  Diesel Litres 3,025 144 1,458 69 108%

 G Field transport & 
worker related running 

 Diesel Litres 195,889 9,322 231,223 11,003 -15%

 G Supervisory vehicles & 
Others 

 Diesel Litres 134,430 6,397 86,558 4,119 55%

 Petrol      
 G Field machinery  Petrol Litres 17,266 618 20,208 723 -15%

 G Field transport & 
worker related running 

 Petrol Litres 2,046 73 28,052 1,004 -93%

 G Supervisory vehicles & 
Others 

 Petrol Litres 32,954 1,180 36,111 1,293 -9%

Total Energy Consumption from direct energy sources 548,116 589,460

 G4 - en 3/ en 5/ en 6
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In current financial period, the total energy consumption from direct 
and indirect energy sources was 588,480.26 GJ. It is observed that there 
was a 19.76% increase in indirect activities. This is due to the change of 
comparison period from 12 month to 15 months.

eNerGy 
Source 

2014/15 2013 2012

amouNt (GJ)
 Total diesel 
Usage (Litres) 

18,490 16,984 21,209

 Total Petrol 
Usage (Litres) 

1,907 2,680 2801

 LPG 321 Not recorded Not recorded

 Fire Wood 526,033 569,455 655,434

Total 
Nonrenewable 
fuel usage 

546,750 589,120 679,444

electricity from renewable energy Sources
In the period under review, Kalupahana Power Company generated 
2,735,410 kWh of electricity that was sold to Ceylon Electricity Board. The 
mini hydropower plant at Battalgalla estate generated 344,796 kWh units of 
which balance 46,551 kWh units was used by the estate activities. Several 
abandoned micro-hydro power plants

in our estates have been rehabilitated and are in operation, and has 
immensely contributed towards reducing the power cost at those 
processing centers.

LocatioN tyPe caPacity 
(mW)

Battalgala Estate Grid connected 0.1 MW
Kalupahana Estate Grid connected 1.0 MW
Kelani Estate Off-grid 40 kW
Edinburgh Estate Off-grid 60 kW
Udaradella Estate Off-grid 40 kW
Tillyrie Estate Off-grid 70 KW
Invery Estate Off-grid 70 KW

other fuel and energy Conservation activities
 G Usage of fossil fuel was switched to renewable energy by installing 

hot water boilers.
 G Our tea estates use rubber firewood from our own estates for 

withering and dryer operations. In the period under review, KVPL 
sourced 24,123 m3 of energy through the use of rubber wood.

 G We conserve energy by reusing exhaust heat energy generated 
by hot water boilers, for tea withering. The efficiency of energy 
transmission has improved by insulated ducting.

 G Experimental trials were done on using fibre-briquettes and cashew 
nut shells in selected tea manufacturing factories. All KVPL tea 
driers are now operating on renewable energy sources.

 G Energy efficient machinery, capacity banks, lighting and VSDs have 
been installed in all factories.

 G All the estate managers’ bungalows in Hatton region have solar 
panels to reduce cost of heating.

Operation site - Kalupahana Hydropower Plant

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

electricity consumption in the Quarters: 4,974.87 GJ
electricity consumption in the bungalows: 2,536.87 GJ

electricity consumption in the office: 834.33 GJ
electricity consumption for other purposes: 906.64 GJ

electricity consumption in the Workshops: 95.53 GJ

electricity consumption in the factory: 32,224.57 GJ
indirect energy by Primary source: 41,572.81 GJ

diesel for transport & worker related running: 9,321.82 GJ
 diesel Supervisory vehicles & other: 6,397.13 GJ

Power Generator(factory): 1,317.74 GJ
other factory: 1,308.84 GJ

Power Generator(office): 9.42 GJ
LPG(bungalows): 320.75 GJ

diesel for field machinery: 143.97 GJ
oxyacetylene(Workshops): 0.06 GJ

diesel Supervisory vehicles & other: 6,397.13 GJ
Generators(bungalows): 26.13 GJ

field machinery (petrol):618.15 GJ
field transport and work related running (petrol)73.25 GJ

Supervisory vehicles & other(petrol):1179.77 GJ

Hot Water generator/fumace: 526,190.42 GJ
direct energy by Primary source: 548,116 GJ
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Water
KVPL estates are situated in ecologically sensitive areas, where our 
actions will impact lower elevations. As a responsible Company, we take 
all measures possible to protect ecosystems and enrich water sources. 
This commitment of the Company towards conserving the environment 
is reinforced through an extensive environmental certification systems 
implemented across our estates.

 G4 - 15
We subscribe to the CEO’s Water Mandate, which is an initiative 
launched by the UNGC, the government of Sweden and a group of 
socially responsible companies and specialised organisations, who have 
united to address problems dealing with water scarcity and sanitation. 
According to the UNGC, the risk of water scarcity is most likely to impact 
businesses in the future through decreased water supplies for business 
activities, increased water costs, operational disruptions and associated 
financial losses, impacts on future growth and licenses to operate.

Our commitment to CEO’ s water mandate demonstrated by the 
following:
Safe discharge of waste water

 G Comprehensive effluent treatment systems in all our rubber 
factories, ensuring that any discharge to inland waterways meet 
stringent standards mandated by the Central Environmental 
Authority.

 G Waste water filtration units are established at Rainforest Alliance™ 
certified processing centers. Quality of waste water is monitored 
by analyzing for chemical and microbiological parameters, keeping 
with the standards

identify and protect natural water sources and riparian ecosystems
 G All water sources are identified by mapping them and identifying 

ecosystems within the estate boundaries in all estates certified by 
Rainforest Alliance™ and UTZ™ certification.

 G Periodic analysis of drinking water and waste water, on chemical 
and microbiological parameters

 G We preserve the catchment areas by protecting ecological 
reserves and setting natural vegetative barriers and buffer zones. 
Furthermore, natural water bodies in estates certified with FSC™,  
Rainforest Alliance™ and UTZ™, were protected by establishing 
natural vegetative barriers and buffer zones to curtail agrochemical 
drift which results water contamination

 G Water usage monitoring and recording is done in tea processing 
centers, certified by the above certification schemes. This is an 
initiative to evaluate water foot print in our estates.

Effluent treatment plant at Panawatte Estate, Yatiyantota

Water map displayed at scrubs division, Pedro estate Nuwara Eliya

Effluent treatment plant at Dewalakande Estate, Dehiowita

Environmental Sustainability Contd.
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How Water Consumption is Managed
As our estates are home to large resident plantation community, KVPL’s 
total water consumption is used for production as well as for domestic 
purposes. Traditionally water consumed by estate families have been 
higher than for production. We have introduced several measures to 
prevent water wastage and conservation of water resources within our 
estate premises.

reducing Water Consumption
KVPL’s approach to reduce water consumption, is through minimizing 
water wastage. Seven water schemes were established to ensure that 
water drawn from water sources are utilised efficiently and effectively.

Possibilities to measure total water drawn from the sources is being 
perused.

effluent and Waste
All natural resources are managed at all KVPL estates and factories as 
a means of limiting environmental impacts. Our 3R principle extends 
towards waste management to reduce environmental impacts. During 
2014, Rs 2,204,395 was directly spent on waste management activities 
and around Rs. 1,294,286 spent as licensing and conformity analysis 
activities, to restrict/reduce the impact on the environment. Hazardous 
waste, such as empty chemical containers, are collected to two central 
collection points at Invery estate, Dickoya and Polatagama Estate, 
Yatiyantota. Because of hazardous residues in this waste, we dispose all 
chemical cans through the Central Environmental Authority approved 
waste recyclers. This also reduces our contribution to landfill.

recycLiNG hazardouS WaSte  
(KG)

2013 2014/15

Empty chemical cans send for the recycling 1,207 1,132
recycling non-hazardous waste
Recycled organic waste (Crop waste / 
domestic waste) 

119000 131000

Recycled plastic/polythene/metal 22003 23203
Recycled glass waste 2900 2725

Water distribution tank, Gonagala Division, Fordyce Estate, Dickoya

2.02%1.74%

82.69% 83.48%

15.29%
14.79%

Organic waste (Crop waste / Domestic waste) 
Inorganic waste (Plastic/polythene/metal) 
Glass waste 

Recycled waste material by type  G4 - en 23

2012

2013

2014

29 30 31 3228.5 29.5 30.5 31.5

Annual water usage in Processing Centers

Year

Water  Usage (m3)

 G4 - en 8

(,000)
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integrated Waste Management initiatives

engagement of Local Community

Central waste collection point, Oliphant Estate,  Nuwara  Eliya Eco friendly waste bins for collection of crop refuse, Fordyce 
Estate, Dickoya

Eco friendly waste bins for collection of crop refuse, Ingestre 
Estate, Dickoya

Awareness raising notices displayed in estate muster shed, 
Scrubs Division, Pedro Estate, Nuwara Eliya

The waste segregation bins, displayed in local language Waste collection and segregation method used to collect 
waste at tea field level, Nuwara Eliya Estate, Labukelle

Safe disposal of Waste

The regional store point of empty chemical containers, Invery 
Estate, Dickoya

Transferring hazardous waste to CEA approved recyclers, Invery 
Estate, Dickoya

The waste water treatment unit, Dewalakanda Estate, Dehiowita

Waste water generated in the tea factories are diverted into filtration units 
and are treated to conform to Central Environmental Authority approved 
standards before being released to the environment. At rubber factories, 
waste water is treated at treatment plants before they are released to the 
outside environment. All treatment plants are approved by the Central 
Environmental Authority for their performance and the treated water is 
constantly monitored for water quality. In the current year, about 1,473,600 
Cu.m of waste water was treated through those treatment plants.

We have extended our commitment to conserve water resources by 
installing domestic waste water filtration systems at a community level. 
The objective was to purify the domestic waste water generated from 
community activities, within the operational boundaries. The programme 
was initiated with the Rainforest Alliance programme in 2010. Under this 
programme 87 soaking pits have been constructed in domestic waste 
water discharge points which lead to natural water streams. Awareness 
programmes are conducted in the certified estates.

 G4 - en 22
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Protected Forest in Halgolla estate Yatiyantota 

biodiverSity
environmental Conservation Practices
Sustainable Development is an embryonic concept for the ‘greener 
economy’ which all industries are moving towards. In such an era, 
we are way ahead. Biodiversity and associated ecosystems can be 
interpreted as the cornerstone of sustainable development.

KVPL is the guardian of rich biodiversity treasures located within out 
estates. In all our operations we ensure to protect this inheritance.

KVPL is a unique company with estates in three agro-ecological zones. 
The species diversity varies on climatological, and geographical factors. 
However, Halgolla estate is a unique location where we could see all 
these variation in a very close array.

Our biodiversity practices are four pronged;
1. Identification
2. Conservation
3. Enrichment
4. Training and awareness

identification 
At the time the RA certification was introduced, areas for conservation 
was identified.

Conservation 
Many tributaries stem from our estates which also acts as watersheds.
Our conservation initiatives are,

 G Good Agricultural pratices
 G Planting of denude areas with native species
 G Reforestation

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability
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No eState 
Name

LocatioN Protected area/deSiGNated 
biodiVerSity area

deScriPtioN of Protected areaLocated 
WithiN the 

eState

Located 
borderiNG 
the eState

1 Pedro Estate Kadapola, in the 
Nuwara Eliya 
district 

√ √  G Bordering Forest reserves of Piduruthalagala, Hakgala, 
Kirigalpotta

 G Protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, 
and National Environmental act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G The reserve is also a designated an IUCN protected area
 G All trees dedicatedly conserved on Pedro estate are also 

protected by the Plant Protection Ordinance and Forest 
Ordinance of Sri Lanka

 G 32 floral species, and 63 faunal species including 10 endemic 
species have been recoded within the estate. 

2 Nuwara Eliya 
Estate

Labukelle, in the 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G Bordering Piduruthalagala forest reserves and is protected 
under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, and 
National Environmental act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G Above reserve is a water shed to Puna Oya and sub water 
shed to Mahaweli river 

 G All trees dedicatedly conserved on the estate are also 
protected by the Forest Ordinance of Sri Lanka

 G According to initial survey results the estate is a habitat for 
38 floral species, including 14 endemic species, and 91 faunal 
species and 26 endemic species

3 Udaradella 
Estate

Nanu Oya, in the 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G Estate is bordering the Kikiliyamana mountain range which 
is protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, 
and National Environmental act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G As per survey results in the estate, it has found 32 floral 
species, and 60 faunal species including 08 endemic species 

4 Glassaugh 
Estate

Nanu Oya, in the 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G The estate is bordering the Kikiliyamana mountain range, 
which is protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection 
ordinance, and National Environmental act, No. 47 of 1980 of 
Sri Lanka.

 G 34 floral species, and 60 faunal species, including 8 endemic 
species, are found in the estate

5 Oliphant 
Estate

Shanthipura, in 
the Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G The estate is bordering to Kikiliyamana forest reserve which 
is protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, 
and National Environmental act, No. 47 of 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G According to initial biodiversity assessments, 31 floral 
species, and 58 faunal species including, 8 endemic species, 
are found in the estate

 G4 - en 11
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No eState 
Name

LocatioN Protected area/deSiGNated 
biodiVerSity area

deScriPtioN of Protected areaLocated 
WithiN the 

eState

Located 
borderiNG 
the eState

6 Edinburgh 
Estate

Nanu Oya, in the 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G The estate is bordering the forest reserves of the 
Piduruthalagala mountain range and is protected under 
the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, and National 
Environmental Act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G The reserve is also a designated an IUCN protected area
 G All trees on Edinburgh estate are also protected by the Plant 

Protection Ordinance and Forest Ordinance of Sri Lanka of 
Sri Lanka

 G 32 floral species, and 59 faunal species including 8 endemic 
species are found in the estate

7 Fordyce 
Estate

Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G Estate land area acts as a water shed for KehelgamuwaOya 
and sub water shed for the Kelani River.

 G Protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, 
and National Environmental act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G 25 plant species belonging to 14 families and 107 faunal 
species, belongs to 54 families were recorded. 

8 Annfield 
Estate

Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G The estate is a water shed for Kehelgamuwa Oya and a sub 
water shed for the Kelani River.

 G Based on biodiversity assessments, 26 floralspecies including 
2 endemic species and 101 faunal species, with 24 endemic 
species were recorded.

9 Battalgalla 
Estate

Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G Protected under the Fauna and Flora Protection Ordinance, 
and National Environmental Act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G Estate is a water shed for Kehelgamuwa Oya and sub water 
shed for the Kelani River.

 G Hosts 27 floral species belonging to 16 families and 104 
faunal species belonging to 54 families.

10 Invery Estate Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G Bordering protected forests under Forestry Department, 
which are under the Fauna and Flora Protection ordinance, 
and National Environmental Act, No. 47 OF 1980 of Sri Lanka.

 G Hosts 28 floral species belongs to 12 families and 111 faunal 
species belonging to 57 families.

11 Ingestre 
Estate

Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G Estate land area is a very sensitive and important water shed 
for Kehelgamuwa Oya and sub water shed for the Kelani 
River.

 G Hosts 36 floral species belongs to 17 families and 110 faunal 
species belonging to 57 families.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability



82

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Environmental Sustainability Contd.

No eState 
Name

LocatioN Protected area/deSiGNated 
biodiVerSity area

deScriPtioN of Protected areaLocated 
WithiN the 

eState

Located 
borderiNG 
the eState

12 Robgill Estate Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G The estate owned land is a very important water shed for 
Kehelgamuwa Oya and sub water shed for the Kelani River.

 G As per assessment done by KVPL, there are 33 floral species 
belonging to 17 families and 104 faunal species belonging to 
54 families.

13 Tillyrie Estate Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√ √  G Estate is Located in Bogawanthalawa Valley, which is a very 
important water shed for Kehelgamuwa Oya and a sub water 
shed for the Kelani River.

 G KVPL biodiversity assessments have identified 32 floral 
species belongs to 18 families; with 06 endemic species and 
107 faunal species belonging to 57 families.

14 Blinkbonnie 
Estate

Dickoya, in 
Nuwara Eliya 
district

√  G Estate is a water shed for Kehelgamuwa Oya and a sub water 
shed for the Kelani River.

 G As per assessment done by KVPL, there are 48 floral species 
from 24 families; with 9 endemic species and 105 faunal 
species belonging to 53 families.

15 Panawatte 
Estate

Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

√ √  G Two tributaries of the Kelani River are inside the estate. Thise 
area is a highly sensitive water shed.

 G Based on KVPL biodiversity assessments, there are 60 floral 
species belongs to 34 families; with 9 endemic species and 91 
faunal species belonging to 39 families.

16 Kiriporuwa 
Estate

Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 14 floral species belonging 
to 10 families and 58 faunal species belongs to 38 families.

17 Lavant Estate Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 32 floral species 
belonging to 20 families and 62 faunal species belonging to 
41 families.

18 Dewalakanda 
Estate

Dehiowita, 
Kegalle District

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 39 floral species 
belonging to 26 families and 103 faunal species belonging to 
54families.

19 Ganepalla 
Estate

Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

 G There are 47 floral species belonging to 31 families and 70 
faunal species belonging to 30 families.

20 Urumiwela 
Estate

Bulathkohupitiya, 
Kegalle District

√  G There are 18 floral species belonging to 13families and 86 
faunal species belonging to 51 families.

21 We Oya/ 
Polatagama 
Estate

Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

√ √  G Estate is in close proximity to We Oya, which is the main 
water body in Yatiyantota area.

 G There are 51 floral species belonging to 21 families and 55 
faunal species belongs to 38 families.
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No eState 
Name

LocatioN Protected area/deSiGNated 
biodiVerSity area

deScriPtioN of Protected areaLocated 
WithiN the 

eState

Located 
borderiNG 
the eState

22 Kelani Estate Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

√  G There are 48 floral species belonging to 19 families; and 52 
faunal species belonging to 35 families found in the estate.

23 Halgolla 
Estate

Yatiyantota, 
Kegalle District

√ √  G In the estate a major water catchment area is located at 
Punugala, Halgolla and Ullswater divisions. The Oluella the 
5th highest waterfall in Sri Lanka, (about 127 meters), is 
nurtured with water streams from the above water sheds for 
the We Oya, which is the main tributary to the Kelani River.

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 102 floral species 
belonging to 52 families and 62 faunal species belonging to 
39 families found until now.

 G A collaborative project with the IUCN has been implemented 
on enhancing the Ecological Integrity and Ecological Services of 
Halgolla Estate, and 48 endemic faunal species, 16 endangered 
species, and 49 vulnerable species and 7 near threatened 
species have been identified. 106 endemic floral species, 277 
indigenous species, 31 exotic species, 24 nationally threatened 
(CR-3/En-6/Vu-15) and 26 globally threatened floral species, 
are identified. The species Vertical lewisiana, which is a 
critically endangered species and its viable last remaining 
population was also found in the area. Also, live specimens 
of Gordoniaspeciosa were found after 100 years, in the area. 
A special water shed management programme was initiated 
after field surveys with IUCN, Sri Lanka.

24 Kitulgala 
Estate 

Kitulgala, Kegalle 
District

√ √  G Inside the estate, a 147.04 ha land area is managed as a 
watershed conservation area.

 G Liyan Oya and Lotigala Oya which are tributaries of the 
Kelani River are enriched from the catchment areas in the 
estate.

 G The protected archaeological site Kitulgala Beli Lena is 
located inside the land area of the estate.

 G The Ampana Forest reserve which is protected under the 
Flora and Fauna Act of Sri Lanka, is borders to the estate.

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 74 floral species 
belonging to 38 families and 70 faunal species belonging to 
43 families.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability
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No eState 
Name

LocatioN Protected area/deSiGNated 
biodiVerSity area

deScriPtioN of Protected areaLocated 
WithiN the 

eState

Located 
borderiNG 
the eState

25 Ederapola 
Estate

Bulathkohupitiya, 
Kegalle District

√ √  G Patana grass lands and small forest patches are present 
inside the estate.

 G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 55 floral species 
belonging to 24 families and 57 faunal species belonging to 
37 families.

26 Kalupahana 
estate

Bulathkohupitiya, 
Kegalle District

√ √  G As per initial studies by KVPL, there are 70 floral species 
belonging to 32 families and 68 faunal species belonging to 
45 families.

Habitat enrichment
 G Various conservation activities were initiated to enrich the 

identified areas by improving the micro-environment suitable for 
the subsequent introduction of native flora.

 G Human activities with these areas are closely monitored
 G KVPL has commenced initial research on identifying the roaming 

grounds of native, endangered Sri Lankan leopards (Panthera 
parduskotiya) and enriching their habitats associated with the 
estates.

Summary of floral Species recorded on ohe 
Wewalthalawa Watershed   G4 - en 14

cateGory Number

Endemic species 106

Indigenous species 277

Exotic species 31

Invasive species 11

Nationally threatened species 24 (CR-3, EN-6 and VU-15)

Globally threatened species 26 (CR-6 and VU–20)

Source:Enhancing the Ecological Integrity and Ecological Services of 
Halgolla Estate, Final Report

(CR- Critically Endangered, EN- Endangered and VU- Vulnerable, 
according to the 2007 National Red List)

Various conservation activities initiated to enrich the place by improving 
the micro-environment suitable for the subsequent introduction of 
native flora. KVPL maintains the above conservation activities and 
protects those areas with close monitoring of human activity.

 G4 - en 13

KVPL has taken partnership Biodiversity Platform Sri Lanka, 
a sustainable business movement to conduct a programme 
on the conservation of native, endangered Sri Lankan 
leopards(Pantheraparduskotiya) by identifying the roaming grounds 
and enriching their habitats associated with the estates.

Leopard trapped at the outskirt of Ingestre Estate, Dickoya
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Biodiversity assessment report, Dewalakande estate, Dehiowita

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

A comprehensive assessment was carried out at Dewalakande, 
Ganepalla, Urumiwela and Kelani estates covering flora and faunal 
species and their habitats and conservation status. The assessment was 
done by a team of experts from the Foundation for Nature Conservation 
and Preservation.

The above assessment will be carried out once in 5 years to monitor 
growth dynamics and biodiversity of our estates. All rubber fields that 
are to be uprooted are taken into 1:50000 topographic maps and with 
the use of handheld GPS devices. The site map shall contain information 
on topography, water sources, and existing estate roads and planned 
skidding routes. This helps to minimize the soil erosion, protect water 
sources, and minimise the sedimentation in water sources along the 
production fields and to save the top soil.

This report can be found on our website and summery is given below.

(CR- Critically Endangered, EN- Endangered, VU- Vulnerable, NT- 
Nationally threatened, Conservation status of all below flora and fauna 
species are referred to IUCN Red List, 2012)

Summary of the floral Species recorded.

eState No. of 
SPecieS

eNdemic 
SPecieS

exotic 
SPecieS

NatiVe 
SPecieS

NatioNaLLy 
threateNed

Dewalakande 50 05 15 30 04

Ganepalla 60 09 20 31 04

Urumiwela 61 07 24 30 04

Kelani 54 05 18 35 03

Summary of the fauna Species recorded dewalakande estate, dehiowita

aNimaL GrouP recorded iN eState coNSerVatioN StatuS of SPecieS
totaL eNdemic NatiVe cr eN Vu Nt

Dragonflies 07 02 05 - - 03 01

Butterflies 20 - 20 - - - 01

Amphibians 06 03 03 - 01 01 01

Reptiles 05 02 03 - - - -

Birds 41 04 37 - - - 02

Mammals 04 03 01 - 01 01 -

(CR- Critically Endangered, EN- Endangered, VU- Vulnerable, NT- Nationally threatened, Conservation status of all below flora and fauna species are 

referred to IUCN Red List, 2012)
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Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Environmental Sustainability Contd.

Summary of the fauna Species recorded urumiwela estate, bulathkohupitiya

aNimaL GrouP recorded iN eState coNSerVatioN StatuS of SPecieS
totaL eNdemic NatiVe cr eN Vu Nt

Dragonflies 07 02 05 - - 03 01

Butterflies 20 - 20 - - - 01

Amphibians 06 03 03 - 01 01 01

Reptiles 05 02 03 - - - -

Birds 41 04 37 - - - 01

Mammals 04 03 01 - 01 01 -

Summary of the fauna Species recorded kelani estate, yatiyantota
aNimaL GrouP recorded iN eState coNSerVatioN StatuS of SPecieS

totaL eNdemic NatiVe cr eN Vu Nt
Dragonflies 23 04 19 - 02 08 04

Butterflies 37 02 35 - - 02 02

Amphibians 04 01 03 - - - 01

Reptiles 08 02 06 - - - -

Birds 63 07 56 - - 01 02

Mammals 03 02 01 - 01 - -

Summary of the fauna Species recorded Ganepalla estate, yatiyantota
aNimaL GrouP recorded iN eState coNSerVatioN StatuS of SPecieS

totaL eNdemic NatiVe cr eN Vu Nt
Dragonflies 18 04 14 01 02 05 03
Butterflies 25 02 23 - - 02 -
Amphibians 08 06 02 - 02 02 02
Reptiles 08 03 05 - 01 - -
Birds 56 08 47 - - 01 01
Mammals 04 01 03 - 01 - 01
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training and awareness raising
Training and awareness is an effective way of engaging employees and the local community in initiatives taken by the estates. Awareness is given 
through visual display of material or participatory activities. We consider children’s involvement as important as they are the messengers of 
information to the families and they are the future. Children are engaged through art competitions and tree growing programmes, etc.

Mabroc, Rainforest Alliance™ tea range

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Awareness board, moon plains division, Pedro estate,  
Nuwara Eliya

A drawing from an art competition, Pedro estate,  
Nuwara Eliya

Community Awareness Programme, under Rainforest Alliance™ 
certification scheme

emissions   G4 - en 15/ 16/ 21

GHG emissions were identified as moderately material in reporting and 
will not be reported in this financial period. Being a plantation company 
there are extensive areas covered with carbon sequestration sources. As 
per literature, it is 7.69 MT of Carbon ha/Yr and for agroforestry crops it is 

2.09 MT of Carbon ha/Yr for Grevillea robusta and, 1.1 - 466.4 MT of Carbon 
ha/Yr or Tectona grandis and for tea it is 2.81MT of Carbon ha/Yr for low 
country and 1.03 MT of Carbon ha/Yr for mid country and 0.37 MT of 
Carbon ha/Yr for Upcountry tea. The emissions are compensated with the 
carbon sequestration which makes a surplus of carbon in the sector.

the natural environment is being restored by Planting trees in our estates.

deScriPtioN (iN hectareS) totaL
2012 2013 2014/15

Native species in natural forest 0.00 0.00 9.59

Replanting bamboo 4.00 1.50 1.00

Hedge row planting 230.00 219.00 227.50

Protected area (where have biodiversity value/high conservation areas) 650.46 650.46 649.46

Products & Services
Being a plantation company we are very concerned on the 
environmental impact of our production. This commitment is assured 
by third party audits. The Rainforest Alliance™ certification, UTZ™ 
certification and FSC™ certification used to promote product sales. 
Our products (Tea and rubber)can be traced to the source through 
traceability systems established by the accreditation bodies. Mabroc, 
also has a product range with the above certification.
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 G4 - en 28

There is no process to reclaim packaging material after the sale of 
products. However we use recyclable multi-walled craft paper bags in 
our bulk tea packing and corrugated boxes are used in packing rubber 
products that are environmentally friendly. The end user can recycle the 
products.

Compliance   G4 - en 29/ en 30  
There were no monetary fines, or non-monetary sanctions for non-
compliance, recorded in the financial year concerned. As per energy 
utilisation of the Company, the total energy used for products and 
material transportation under the respective financial year was 10,157.2 
GJ .a This is only 1.9% of the total energy which is in significant  figure 
compared with the total energy use of the organisation.

overall view of environment Commitment   G4 - en 30/ 31

The following monetary values are associated costs for the 
environmental conservation implements in KVPL.

actiVity exPeNditure (LKrS)
Construction/repair of waste collection 
points 

10,250.00 

Waste disposal  311,981.00 

Maintenance of Waste water treatment 
plants (Rubber factories) 

 1,416,589.00 

Maintenance of Waste filtration systems 
(Tea factories) 

 365,575.00 

Expenditure on licensing cost of Central 
Environmental Authority Certification

 332,267.05 

 Expenditure on obtaining waste water 
analysing reports (From accredited 
laboratory) 

 587,997.88 

 Expenditure on obtaining Drinking Water 
Analysis Reports 

223,478.70 

 Expenditure on Vehicle Emission Testing 150,543.00 

 Other environmental protection costs  1,155,298.35 
Total Expenditure 30,969,409.74 

Management Discussion & Analysis
Environmental Sustainability

Supplier environment assessment   G4 - en 32

When procuring production inputs, such as fertiliser, pesticides and 
other agrochemicals into the Company, there is a series of screenings 
on the product quality on food safety aspects on the traceability of 
materials. In the current financial year we are not reporting on this 
criteria as no quantitative figures are reported. 

environmental Grievance Mechanism   G4 - en 34

KVPL has formal grievance reporting  mechanism and all contact details 
are displayed in the estate. During the reporting period there were no 
formal grievances received from interested parties.

Environmental Sustainability Contd.

Untouched Reserves
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Management Discussion & Analysis
Independent Assurance Report on the Sustainability Report

Independent Assurance Report on the 
Sustainability Report

indePendent aSSuranCe rePort to tHe board 
of direCtorS of keLani vaLLey PLantationS PLC 
on tHe SuStainabiLity rePortinG under tHe 
inteGrated annuaL rePort- 2014-15

introduction and Scope of the engagement
The management of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (“the Company”) 

engaged us to provide an independent assurance on the following 

elements of the sustainability reporting indicators under the annual 

report- 2014-15 (“the Report”).

 G  Reasonable assurance on the information on financial performance 

as specified on page 56 of the Report.

 G  Limited assurance on other information presented in the Report, 

prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Global 

Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core guidelines.

basis of our Work and Level of assurance
We performed our procedures to provide limited assurance in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Standard on Assurance Engagements 

(SLSAE 3000): ‘Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews 

of Historical Financial Information’, issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka (“CASL”).

The evaluation criteria used for this limited assurance engagement are 

based on the Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (“GRI Guidelines”) and 

related information in particular, the requirements to achieve GRI G4 

‘In accordance’ - Core guideline publication, publicly available at GRI’s 

global website at “www.globalreporting.org”.

Our engagement provides limited assurance as well as reasonable 

assurance. A limited assurance engagement is substantially less in scope 

than a reasonable assurance engagement conducted in accordance 

with SLSAE-3000 and consequently does not enable to obtain assurance 

that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 

identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.

Management of the Company’s responsibility for the 
report
The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of 

the self-declaration, the information and statements contained within 

the Report, and for maintaining adequate records and internal controls 

that are designed to support the sustaining reporting process in line 

with the GRI Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

ernst & young’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion as to whether we have 

become aware of any matter that causes us to believe that the Report 

is not prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Global 

Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core guidelines. This report 

is made solely to the Company in accordance with our engagement 

letter dated 28 April 2015. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility 

for any reliance on this report to any person other than the Company 

or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared. In 

conducting our engagement, we have complied with the independence 

requirements of the Code for Ethics for Professional Accountants issued 

by the CASL.

 G4 - 33
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Management Discussion & Analysis
Independent Assurance Report on the Sustainability Report

key assurance Procedures
We planned and performed our procedures to obtain the information 

and explanations considered necessary to provide sufficient evidence to 

support our limited assurance conclusions. Key assurance procedures 

included:

 G Interviewing relevant the company’s personnel to understand the 

process for collection, analysis, aggregation and presentation of data.

 G  Reviewing and validation of the information contained in the 

Report.

 G  Checking the calculations performed by the Company on a sample 

basis through recalculation.

 G  Reconciling and agreeing the data on financial performance are 

properly derived from the Company’s audited financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2015.

 G  Comparison of the content of the Report against the criteria for a 

Global Reporting Initiative G4 ‘In accordance’ - Core guidelines.

Our procedures did not include testing electronic systems used to 

collect and aggregate the information.

Limitations and Considerations
Environmental and social performance data are subject to inherent 

limitations given their nature and the methods used for determining, 

calculating and estimating such data.

Independent Assurance Report on the  
Sustainability Report Contd.

Conclusion
Based on the procedures performed, as described above, we conclude 

that;

 G  The information on financial performance as specified on page 

56 of the Report are properly derived from the audited financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.

 G  Nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that 

other information presented in the Report are not fairly presented, 

in all material respects, in accordance with the Company’s 

sustainability practices and policies some of which are derived from 

GRI-G4-‘In accordance’ Core Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

Chartered accountants
08 May 2015

Colombo



“I saw how my parents contributed their skills and energy 
towards the success story of the estate and my dream was 
to invest my parents earnings on my studies. I worked hard 
towards achieving my target and always thought that nothing 
is impossible. I always remember, and am grateful to, the 
environment that helped create a favourable foundation and 
is an integral part of my success story.”

Dr. Palani Thirishtabala, son of Mr. M. Palani and  
A. Walliammah from Halgolla Estate, Yatiyantota.

Dr. Palani Thirishtabala 

It has a    story
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Board of Directors

Stewardship
Board of Directors

Chairman and Chief Executive of Hayleys PLC. Appointed to the Board of Kelani Valley Plantations 
PLC in July 2009. Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics & Transport (UK). Honorary Consul 
of United Mexican States (Mexico) to Sri Lanka. Committee Member of the Ceylon Chamber of 
Commerce. Council Member of the Employers’ Federation of Ceylon. Member of the Advisory 
Council of the Ceylon Association of Ship’s Agents. Recipient of the Best Shipping Personality 
award by the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers. Corporate Excellence Leadership Recognition – 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Managing Director of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC and Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC from January 
2013 and a member of the Hayleys Group Management Committee. Prior to rejoining, served as 
Director/CEO of Kahawatta Plantations PLC and held Senior Plantation Management positions 
in Kelani Valley Plantations PLC from 1993 to 2001. Holds a BSc. in Plantation Management and 
holds an MBA from Post Graduate Institute of Agriculture, Peradeniya. Fellow Member of National 
Institute of Plantation Management. Currently serves as the Chairman of the Planters’ Association 
of Ceylon. Member of the Sri Lanka Tea Board, Rubber Research Board, Tea Council of Sri Lanka 
and Director Tea Small Holdings Development Authority.

Director of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC since October 2008. Holds a B.Sc. in Mathematics, 
University of London and a M.Sc. in Econometrics, London School of Economics. Former Deputy 
Secretary to the Treasury and Director General, External Resources Department, Ministry of 
Finance and Planning.

Joined Kelani Valley Plantations PLC in 1995. Appointed to the Board in June 2009. Fellow, 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Institute of Certified Management 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Sri 
Lanka. Held senior management positions in many private sector organisations.

Director of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC since September 2009. Re-joined Hayleys in March 
2007. Appointed to the Boards of Hayleys PLC in October, 2009. Fellow, The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Member, Institute of Certified Management Accountants 
of Australia and holds an MBA from the Postgraduate Institute of Management, University of 
Sri Jayawardenepura, Sri Lanka. Worked for Hayleys PLC and Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC 
between 1987 and 2002 and ultimately as an Executive Director of the latter. Subsequently held 
several senior management positions in large private sector entities in Sri Lanka and overseas. 
Has responsibility for Group Corporate Strategic Business Development and the consumer sector 
within the Hayleys Group.

A.M. Pandithage
Chairman

Executive Director

Roshan Rajadurai
Managing Director
Executive Director

F. Mohideen
Independent Non-Executive 

Director

S. Siriwardana
Executive Director

S. C. Ganegoda
Non-Executive Director
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Stewardship
Board of Directors

Director of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC since November 2009. Managing Director of Amaya 
Resorts and Spa’s and The Kingsbury Colombo. An internationally qualified Hotelier having 
gained most of his Management experience in the UK, working for large international hotel chains 
over a long period of time. First Sri Lankan Manager to be appointed by the Beaufort International 
Chain of Hotels to run the first seaside boutique resort in the Island. Member of the Institute of 
Hospitality, UK (formerly HCIMA) and of the Royal Society of Health, London. He counts over 
considerable experience in the trade. Having specialised in Hotel Designs and developments, has 
been responsible for the planning and execution of Amaya Resorts & Spa’s refurbishment and 
rehabilitation programmes. Director of Hayleys PLC, Fortress Resorts PLC, The Kingsbury PLC, 
Hunas Falls PLC and Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC.

Director of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC since October 2011. Joined DPL in August 2010 as an 
Executive Director and took over as Managing Director from April 2011. Appointed to the Hayleys 
Group Management Committee in January 2011 and to the Board of Hayleys in April 2011. Former 
Country Chairman/Managing Director of Shell Gas Lanka Ltd. and Shell Terminal Lanka Ltd. 
Holds First Class Honours Degree in Engineering from the University of Peradeniya, Sri Lanka, a 
Doctorate from Cambridge University, UK and an MBA with Distinction from Wales University,UK.

Appointed to the Board in January 2013. A Graduate (with Honors) in Mechanical Engineering 
from the University of Missouri Science and Technology in 2010. Served as an Engineer working 
with the Energy and Environment Division of Brandix Lanka Ltd. Main functions include analysis 
of new equipment for the factories, renewable energy projects, solid waste management and 
sustainability reporting. Upon his return to Sri Lanka in 2010 worked as a management trainee 
with Keells Hotel Management Services till 2011 in the Projects and Engineering Department.

Appointed to the Board of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC in July 2013. Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Sri Lanka and counts over thirty-five years of experience in Finance 
and General Management both in Sri Lanka and overseas. Former Group Finance Director of 
Richard Pieris PLC and also held senior management positions at Aitken Spence & Company, 
Brooke Bonds Ceylon and Zambia Consolidated Copper Mines Limited. Serves as a member of the 
Quality Assurance Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and a former member of the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards Monitoring Board. An Independent Director of several listed and 
unlisted Companies.

L. T. Samarawickrama
Non-Executive Director

Dr. K. I. M. 
Ranasoma

Non-Executive Director

C. V. Cabraal
Independent Non-Executive 

Director

L N De S Wijeyeratne 
Independent Non-Executive 

Director
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Corporate Management Profiles

Stewardship
Corporate Management Profile

board of direCtorS
kelani valley Plantations PLC
Tea & Rubber Plantations
Incorporated in 1992 in Sri Lanka
Stated capital – Rs.340 m

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage - Chairman
 W G R Rajadurai – Managing Director
 F Mohideen
 S Siriwardana
 S C Ganegoda
 L T Samarawickrama
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma
 C V Cabraal
 L N De S Wijeyeratne

dPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.
Plantation Management, Managing Agent
Incorporated in 1992 in Sri Lanka
Stated capital – Rs.350 m

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage - Chairman
 W G R Rajadurai - Managing Director, KVPL
 S Siriwardana
 S C Ganegoda
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma

kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd.
Generates Hydro Power
Incorporated in 2003 in Sri Lanka
Stated capital – Rs.30 m, Group interest – 60%

 Directors :
 S Siriwardana
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma
 W G R Rajadurai
 R A B Ranatunga
 M F M Ismail

kelani valley instant tea (Pvt) Ltd.
Manufactures Instant Tea
Incorporated in 2007 in Sri Lanka
Stated Capital - 30 m, Group Interest 100%

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage
 N R Ranatunga
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma
 W G R Rajadurai

Mabroc teas (Pvt) Ltd.
Exports Bulk & Retail Packed Tea
Incorporated in 1988 in Sri Lanka
Stated capital – Rs.90 m, Group interest – 100%

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage - Chairman
 J A G Anandarajah
 N R Ranatunga - Managing Director
 R M Hanwella
 W G R Rajadurai
 D S Wijesekera
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma

Hayleys Global beverages (Pvt) Ltd.
Manufacturing Instant Tea and Tea Extracts
Incorporated in 2014 in Sri Lanka
Stated capital – Rs.294 m, Group interest – 51%

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage - Chairman
 G K Seneviratne - Managing Director
 Dr. K I M Ranasoma
 W G R Rajadurai
 K D D Perera - Appointed wef 10.02.2015
 G A R D Prasanna - Appointed wef 10.02.2015
 S Rajapakse - Appointed wef 10.02.2015
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 Managers :
 K A R Alles - Corporate Affairs
 A T Gamage - Human Resources & 

Corporate  Sustainability
 W A C S Walimuni - Finance
 W L P S Wijesinghe - Information 

Technology
 R M S U Jayathileke - Regional 

Administration
 C D Ikiriwatte - Marketing

 Estate Managers :
 Up Country (Nuwara Eliya & Hatton 

Group)
 Y A Hettiarachchi - Robgill
 A M C B Attanayake * - Invery
 W W Wijekoon * - Uda Radella
 J T Wijayasundara - Tillyrie

 Low Country (Tea & Rubber Group)
 M W N de Silva - Kitulgala
 D W M M R B Madawala - Urumiwela
 V C Hewage - We-Oya
 S S B Bulumulla - Ganepalla
 W P S B Abeywardena - Ederapola
 T M N D B Tennakoon * - Kalupahana
 
 * Acting Estate Managers

Stewardship
Corporate Management Profile

ManaGeMent teaM
kelani valley Plantations PLC
 

 Directors :
 A M Pandithage - Chairman
 W G R Rajadurai - Managing Director
 S Siriwardana - Chief Financial Officer

 General Managers :
 Y U S Premathilake - Rubber
 A Weerakoon - Tea
 J A Rodrigo - Marketing & Corporate 

Affairs

 Regional General Managers :
 B C Gunasekera - Panawatte
 S F Fernando - Dewalakanda

 Deputy General Managers :
 D I Gallearachchi - Blinkbonnie
 A P Senanayake - Nuwara Eliya
 K de J Seneviratne - Regional 

Administration
 R D G Fernando - Rubber Marketing & 

Administration
 D W Vedamuttu - Ingestre
 N A A K Nissanka - Finance
 R B S Douglas - Pedro

 Group Managers :
 W M P Wanasundara - Oliphant
 D E P K Welikala - Halgolla
 U K Tennakoon - Edinburgh
 C B Dharmakirthy - Kelani

Mabroc teas (Pvt) Ltd.

 Directors :
 N R Ranatunga - Managing Director
 R M Hanwella - Operations
 D S Wijesekera - Marketing

 General Managers :
 N Weeraratne - Finance
 T M L J Peris - Marketing
 R S Samarasinghe - Marketing

Hayleys Global bevarages (Pvt) Ltd.

 Managing Director :
 G K Seneviratne

 Head of Business Development :
 D De Mel

 General Manager Finance :
 A R Wijesekera

 Deputy General Managers :
 K A P Dalpathadu
 M M S Marasinghe



Cinnamon 
the master spice
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Corporate Governance

StateMent froM tHe CHairMan on CorPorate 
GovernanCe
A well-defined and enforced corporate governance provides a structure 
that works for the benefit of everyone concerned by ensuring that, 
the firm adheres to accepted ethical standards and it provides a 
better financial standing and status. KVPL believes that this is a solid 
foundation for a sustainable growth, a way to a long term success.

We strive to align good governance in all our efforts and we are fully 
aware that exemplary governance maximises transparency and hence, 
the Company has put in place strategies and procedures which facilitate 
good ethical behaviour and a sound ethical culture.

The Board consists of a diverse mix of individuals with required 
competence and experience to optimise its effectiveness and to respond 
greatly to the current and future business scenario. Their collective 
experience and varied perspectives have enabled the Company to 
implement a number of strategic initiatives to enhance performance 
as the environment was challenging for the entire sector during the 
period under review. Along with regular structured interactions with 
the corporate management team, the Company was able to achieve 
strategic objectives.

I am proud to state that the Company is not only focusing on the 
economic efficiency but also endeavours at ethical business practices, 
at the heart of our operations. We are in compliance with the updated 
Code of Best Practice of Corporate Governance, which was issued jointly 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC) and the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CASL). We also comply 
with the Company’s Act No. 07 of 2007.

Over the prolonged period of time we have ensured that we are 
committed to promote fairness and to benefit a greater majority 
of stakeholders. We stress the values of good governance, honesty, 
integrity and fairness at all levels of our staff and our business principles 
reflect the standards set out to ensure that we operate lawfully.

This section of the Annual Report demonstrates the governance 
framework in practice at KVPL and how it adheres to the regulatory 
framework. I hope that this brief message will be of value to you in 
assessing how the regulatory requirements and best practices are being 
put into action in the Company.

I assure you that we make every effort to continuously improve our 
corporate governance practices by complying with the relevant 
regulatory and governance framework to achieve ethical and 
stewardship obligations while supporting the creation of long term 
sustainable stakeholder value.

a M Pandithage
Chairman

08 May 2015

Stewardship
Corporate Governance
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Stewardship
Corporate Governance

oWnerSHiP

 G4 - 13

KVPL is a subsidiary of DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. (DPLP), which is a 
subsidiary of Dipped Products PLC (DPL). Hayleys PLC is the ultimate 
parent of KVPL. Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. (MTPL) and Kelani Valley Instant 
Tea (Pvt) Ltd. (KVIT) are fully owned subsidiaries of KVPL. 60% of 
Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. (KPC) is owned by KVPL. Hayleys 
Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. (HGBL) is a newly incorporated company 
with 51%  ownership to KVPL.

CorPorate GovernanCe fraMeWork
KVPL Governance Guidelines provide Directors and the Management 
with a road map of their respective responsibilities. These guidelines, 
which will be updated periodically, detail those matters requiring Board 
and Committee approval, advice or review. The Company adopts the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2013 jointly issued by 
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CASL), which are applicable 
to listed companies via the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules 
(Amended 2013). While we are adhering to the legal framework for 
Corporate Governance provided by listing rules, the Code is used as 
a guideline for operational structures and processes for discharging 
Corporate Governance.
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A M Pandithage  
- Chairman

Ex √ √ √ √ √ √ 6/6

W G R Rajadurai Ex √ √ √ √ √ √ 6/6

Faiz Mohideen INEx √ √ √ X  √ √ 5/6

S Siriwardana Ex √ √ √ √ √ √ 6/6

S C Ganegoda NEx √ √ √ X √ √ 5/6

L T Samarawickrama NEx X √ X √ X X 2/6

Dr. K.I.M Ranasoma NEx √ √ √ √ √ √ 6/6

C V Cabraal INEx √ X √ √ √ X 4/6

L N De S Wijeyeratne INEx X √ √ √ √  √ 5/6

Ex: Executive, INEx: Independent Non-Executive , NEx: Non-Executive

kvPL CorPorate GovernanCe StruCture   G4 - 34
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Governance Structure

internal Governance 
Structure

external Governance 
Structure

dPL Plantations (Pvt) Limited

kelani valley Plantations PLC

kPC  
(60%)

kvit 
(100%)

MtPL 
(100%)

HGbL 
(51%)
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Stewardship
Corporate Governance

internaL GovernanCe StruCture
KVPL Board of Directors have established the system of policies, processes and rules to be followed in order to achieve effective and efficient decision 
making and to meet corporate governance standards. It includes the roles various stakeholders play in achieving organisation’s goals.

CorPorate ManaGeMent teaM
The Corporate Management Team consists of the Managing Director, 
Director/CFO and the Senior Management Team. The Corporate 
Management Team formulates strategies, seeks Board approval for this 
strategies, and implements it within the policy framework established 
by the Board. The Management Committee reviews the annual budget, 
operational targets, monthly performance against budget and capital 
expenditure proposals prior to recommending to the Board.

The Audit Committee and the Corporate Management Team are 
responsible for reviewing management of risks and internal control 

systems designed to safeguard Company assets, and to ensure accurate 
and reliable system of record keeping and timely dissemination of 
critical management information.

CorPorate ManaGeMent
The Board has delegated the primary authority to the Managing Director 
for the implementation of policy and achieving of strategic objectives of 
the Company. The Managing Director exercises this authority within the 
policy framework established by the Board and the ethical framework 
and business practices inherent to the Company, which demands best 
practices are followed in dealing with employees, customers, suppliers 
and the community at large.

SHareHoLderS

board of direCtorS

ManaGinG direCtor 

externaL audit 

audit CoMMittee

CHief finanCiaL 
offiCer 

internaL audit

appoint

appoint

appoint

appoint

report to

report to

report to report to

report to

report to

report to

report to
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The Managing Director is entrusted with optimising the use of 
Company’s resources within the framework of corporate and financial 
strategies, the annual corporate plan and the budget. The Company 
employs a continuous planning process with the active involvement 
of all executives. A system of regular review of operations is in place to 
ensure close monitoring of performance and prompt corrective action.

MontHLy revieW CoMMitteeS
Meeting of Finance, Corporate Communications and HR clusters of the Hayleys 
Group bring together representatives from different sectors of the Group, 
communicate relevant matters, areas of special interests and concerns and 
share best practices. The Managing Director is a member of the Hayleys Group 
Management Committee and he participates at monthly review meetings.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company reports to the Hayleys Group 
CFO on a quarterly basis on any significant risks or concerns affecting 
the business activities of his sector and the financial therein. This 
reporting may be more frequent if warranted. The Chief Financial  
Officer’s forum of the Hayleys Group enables relevant matters to be 
debated among the CFOs of the Hayleys Group.

Executive Management Meetings were held every month  to discuss 
the performance, new initiatives, problems and strategies etc. The 
Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and all other Head Office 
executives above the Managerial Level are involved in this meeting. This 
works as a brainstorming session and most of the matters pertaining to 
Company’s performance, growth, governance, administration etc., are 
discussed.

Both the General Managers, Upcountry and Low Country, held monthly 
review meetings at regional levels. Estate level performance, issues, 
strategies and initiatives were discussed at this level. It enables to 
enhance and fine-tune the communication process between estate level 
management  and the corporate management. The decisions taken at 
these meetings were reported to Head Office through minutes.
 
externaL GovernanCe StruCture
We adhere to the regulations, codes and best practices adopted by 
different governing bodies.

 G Companies Act No. 7 of 2007
 G  Listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (Amended 2013)
 G  Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance (Amended 2013)
 G  Inland Revenue Act No 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments
 G  Customs Ordinance
 G  Exchange Control Act

internaL audit and ControL
The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control and its 
effectiveness. Internal controls are established with emphasis on 
safeguarding assets, making available accurate and timely information 
and imposing greater discipline on decision making. It covers all 
controls required, including financial, operational and compliance 
controls, and risk management. However it is important to recognise 
that any system can provide only reasonable, but not absolute 
assurance that errors and irregularities are prevented or detected within 
a reasonable time.

inforMation teCHnoLoGy (it) GovernanCe
KVPL’s investment in IT covers resources operated and managed 
centrally and resources deployed on the various estates. Computerised 
Accounting packages, utility software and networking facilities are used 
at Head Office in addition to the hardware. The estate accounts were 
prepared using a computerised accounting package. Internet and relevant 
devices are used to interconnect Head Office with estates. Online estate 
Performance Monitoring Unit is a recently developed infrastructure that 
provided critical information on a daily basis to the management.

it value and alignment
Investment in IT projects and systems are made after considering their 
suitability for the related projects. Further aspects such as cost savings, 
the provision of timely information and the balance between cost and 
benefits are also considered when decisions are taken. Increasing the 
productivity has been identified as a growth factor of the organisation 
and the IT function is aligned to this. The Management of the Company 
was able to reduce the paper usage, reduce the human errors, control the 
manipulation of data and further it enabled to increase the relevance and 
reliability of data and speed up the decision making and feedback process.

it risk Management
Risks associated with IT are assessed in the process of Risk 
Management. Use of licensed software, close monitoring of internet 
usage (to comply with the IT Use Policy), mail server operations, the use 
of antivirus and firewall software, are some practices in place.

externaL audit
The external auditors of the company are Messrs. Ernst & Young working 
with the Company for the third consecutive year. The knowledge and 
experience of the Audit Committee ensured effective usage of the expertise 
of the auditors while maintaining independence in order to deliver a 
transparent set of Financial Statements. The auditors certify this on an 
annual basis.

Stewardship
Corporate Governance
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WHiStLebLoWer PoLiCy
Whistleblower policy provides a mechanism for employees to raise concerns if a person of the organisation engages in an unlawful or immoral activity 
such as financial fraud, incorrect financial reporting, improper conduct, breach of values and policies of the organisation. It is expected to provide an 
assurance that employees raising such concerns will be protected from reprisals and victimisation. This applies to all employees working at KVPL.

The extent of compliance to the Code describes as follows.

refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Section 1: the company
a. directors
Principle: a.1 the board 
during the year under review, the board consisted of nine directors- six Non-executive directors and three executive directors 
including the chairman.  
the board considered that the present composition and expertise is sufficient to meet the needs of the Group. the Non-
executive directors contribute with their knowledge and experience collectively gained from experience in serving a variety 
of public and private organisations. the profiles of the directors are found on pages 92 and 93 of this report. details of 
directors shareholdings in KVPL and the directorates they hold in other companies are given on page 132 and 94 respectively.
A.1.1 Board meetings Complied The Board meets quarterly. Ad-hoc meetings are held as and 

when required. During the year under review the Board met on six 
occasions. The attendance at these meetings has been depicted in 
the table given in this section.

A.1.2 Responsibilities of the 
Board

Complied The Board of Directors are responsible for setting up the governance 
framework within the Company.  
The Board has engaged DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. as Managing Agent 
to manage the business and assets of the Company.  
The Board is responsible to:
a. Enhance shareholder value.
b. Ensure all stakeholder interests are considered in corporate 

decisions.
c. Formulate and communicate business policy and strategy to 

ensure sustained growth, and monitor its implementation.
d. Approve any change in the Group’s business portfolio and 

sanction major investments and dis-investments in accordance 
with parameters set.

 e. Ensure Executive Directors have the skill and knowledge 
to implement strategy effectively, with proper succession 
arrangements in place.

f. Ensure effective remuneration, reward and recognition policies 
are in place to ensure employee commitment and motivation.

 g. Set and communicate values/standards, with adequate 
attention being paid to accounting policies/practices and 
fostering compliance with financial regulations.

Stewardship
Corporate Governance
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

h. Ensure effective information, control, risk management and 
audit systems are in place.

i. Ensure compliance with laws and regulations.
j. Ensure that ethical standards are in place.
k.  Approve annual budgets and monitor performance against 

provisions made. 
l. Adapt annual and interim results before they are published.
m. Consult and consider inputs from ‘experts’ in relevant areas.
n.  Approve key appointments within the company and ensure 

all senior management staff receives appropriate training 
ensuring the adoption of an effective CEO and Key Management 
Personnel succession strategy.

o.  Recognise sustainable business development in Corporate 
Strategy, decisions and activities.

p. Adequacy and the integrity of the Plantation’s Internal control 
systems over financial reporting and Management Information 
Systems are reviewed by the Board Audit Committee.

q. Exercising due diligence in the hiring and overlook of External 
Auditors.

A.1.3 Compliance with the 
laws of the country 
and agreed to 
obtain independent 
professional advice

Complied The Board collectively, and Directors individually act in accordance 
with the laws and regulations of the country and group policies. All 
the members of the Board obtained professional advice within and 
outside the company about corporate planning, financial reporting, 
tax and legal advice, at the Company's expense. 

A.1.4 Access to the advice 
and services of the 
Company Secretary

Complied The services and advice of the Company Secretary are available to all 
the Directors.
The Company Secretary keeps the Board informed of new laws and 
revisions, regulations and requirements coming into effect which are 
relevant to them as Individual Directors and collectively to the Board.
The removal of the secretary is a matter for the Board as a whole.

A.1.5 Independent judgment 
of the Directors

Complied  Non-Executive Directors are independent from the Management 
and free from any business and other relations. None of the other 
Directors are related to each other. This enables all the members 
of the Board to bring independent judgment to bear on issues of 
strategy, performance, resources and standards of business conduct. 

Stewardship
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Contd.



103

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

A.1.6 Dedication of adequate 
time and effort of the 
Directors

Complied The Board of Directors dedicates adequate time and effort to ensure 
their duties and responsibilities towards Company and Board are 
discharged.

Sufficient time is dedicated before a meeting to review Board papers 
and call for additional information and clarification and to follow 
up on issues consequent to the meeting. Hence, they are able to 
familiarise with the business changes, operations, risks and controls 
which ultimately help to satisfactorily discharge the duties and 
responsibilities owed to the Company. 

A.1.7 Training for new and 
existing Directors

Complied Every new and existing Director is given appropriate training 
when first appointed and subsequently as necessary. This training 
curriculum encompasses both general aspects of directorship and 
matters specific to the plantation industry. The Board is of the view 
that continuous training and development of skills and knowledge 
are vital for effective performance of duties and these requirements 
are reviewed regularly.

The Directors have attended training programmes such as Crisis 
Management, Performance Management and Health and Safety at 
workplace conducted by the Head of Human resources during the 
year. 

Principle: a.2 chairman and chief executive officer (ceo)  
chairman and the chief executive officer are two different positions which clearly distinguishes the power and authority 
when conducting the business of the board and facilitating executive responsibility for the management. managing 
director acts as the chief executive officer of the company. therefore no person has unfettered decision making.
A.2.1 Division of 

responsibilities of 
Chairman and CEO

Complied The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are 
two different personnel with clearly distinguished the power and 
authority. The Chairman of the Company is also the Chairman of 
DPL Plantations (Pvt) Limited, Dipped Product PLC and Hayleys PLC. 
The Chief Executive authority is vested in the Managing Director 
of Plantation sector. The separation between the position of the 
Chairman and officers with executive powers in the Company ensure 
a balance of power and authority. 

Stewardship
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Principle: a.3 chairman's role  
the chairman is the most responsible person for guiding the board in formulating the appropriate business strategies 
and gives direction to the company. he preserves the good corporate governance in the company. 

A.3.1 Chairman's role Complied The Chairman is responsible for the efficient conduct of Board 
meetings and ensures, inter alia, that: 
a. The effective participation of both Executive and Non – Executive 

Directors are secured.
b. All Directors are encouraged to make an effective contribution, 

within their respective capabilities for the benefit of the 
Company.

c. A balance of power between Executive and Non – Executive 
Directors is maintained.

d. The view of Directors on issues under consideration are 
ascertained.

e. The Board is in complete control of the Company’s affairs 
and alert to its obligations to all shareholders and other 
stakeholders.

f. The Chairman maintains close contact with all Directors and, 
where necessary, holds meetings with Non - Executive Directors 
without Executive Directors being present.

g. Approving the Agenda for each meeting prepared by the Board 
Secretary.

h. Ensuring that the Board members receive accurate, timely and 
clear information about the Plantation’s performance in order to 
take sound decisions, monitor efficiently and provide advice to 
promote success.

i. Ensure regular meetings , the minutes of which are accurately 
recorded and is available for inspection there of by the directors.

Principle: a.4 financial acumen
A.4.1 Financial acumen Complied The Board includes three senior Chartered Accountants, who 

possess the necessary knowledge and competence to offer the 
Board guidance on matters of finance. Two of them serve as Finance 
Directors of Hayleys PLC and KVPL and the other as Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. Other members of the Board are having enough 
experience in handling the matters of finance by serving in different 
organisations. Hence, the Board is with sufficient financial acumen 
and knowledge to offer guidance on matters of finance.

Stewardship
Corporate Governance
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Principle: a.5 board balance
A.5.1 Non-Executive Directors Complied Six out of nine Directors on the Board are Non-Executive Directors. 

The composition of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors (the 
latter are over one third of the total number of Directors) satisfy the 
requirements laid down in the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange.

A.5.2 Independence of Non-
Executive Directors

Complied Three of six Non-Executive Directors are independent. The Board has 
determined that three Non-Executive Directors satisfy the criteria for 
“independence” set out in the Listing Rules. 

A.5.3 Independence of Non-
Executive Directors

Complied Non-Executive Directors’ profiles reflect their calibre and the weight 
their views carry in Board deliberations. Each is independent of 
management and free from any relationship that can interfere with 
independent judgment. The balance of Executive, Non-Executive 
and Independent Non-Executive Directors on the Board ensures that 
no individual Director or small Group of Directors dominates Board 
discussion and decision making.

A.5.4 Annual declaration of 
independence –of Non-
Executive Directors

Complied Each Non-Executive Director has been submitted declarations 
stating the independence or non-independence in a prescribed 
format. This information is made available to the Board

A.5.5 Board determination of 
independence of Non-
Executive Directors and 
disclosure in Annual 
Report

Complied The Board considered the declaration of independence submitted by 
each Non-Executive Director with the basis for determination given 
in Code of Best Practices as a fair representation and will continue to 
evaluate their independence on this basis annually. Brief resume of 
all the Directors is available in pages 92 and 93.

A.5.6, Appointment of 
alternate Director

Not applicable There were no appointments of alternative Directors in this year. 

A.5.7
A.5.8

Requirement to appoint 
Senior Independent 
Director

Not Applicable This is not applicable as the Chairman and the Managing Director is 
not the same person. 

A.5.9 Chairman’s meetings 
with Non-Executive 
Directors

Complied The Chairman holds meeting with the Non-Executive Directors, 
without Executive Directors, at least once in each year and at any 
other time when and where necessary.

A.5.10 Record in the Board 
minutes of Concerns 
not unanimously 
resolved 

Complied All the matters of the Company which cannot be unanimously 
resolved are recorded in the Board Minutes, if applicable.

Stewardship
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Principle: a.6 Supply of information
the board is provided with timely information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable them to discharge their 
duties.
A.6.1 Timely and appropriate 

information to the 
Board

Complied Management provides the Board with appropriate and timely 
information. When information volunteered by management is 
not enough Directors make further inquiries. Chairman ensures all 
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at meetings.

A.6.2 Information provided 
in advance to the Board 
meetings

Complied The Board meetings are arranged in advance and all Directors are 
informed. The Directors are provided with minutes, the agenda and 
the Board papers in advance to prepare and clearly comprehend with 
the matters discussed or consent. 

Principle: a.7 appointments to the board
there should be a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors to the board
A.7.1, A.7.2 Appointment to the 

Board
Complied The Board as a whole decides on the appointment of Directors. The 

Board annually assesses the Board composition to ascertain whether 
the combined knowledge and experience of the Board matches the 
strategic demands facing the Company.

A.7.3 Disclosure of new 
appointments

Complied There were no new appointments of new Directors during the 
reporting period. 

If there were new appointments, a brief resume of the Director, nature 
of his experience, names of the companies in which the Directors hold 
the Directorship and the independency is informed to the Colombo 
Stock Exchange and disclosed in the Annual Report Pages 92 and 93.

Principle: a.8 re-election
all directors submit themselves for re-election at regular intervals and at least once in every three years.
A.8.1, A.8.2 Re-election of Directors Complied The provisions of the Company’s Articles require a Director 

appointed by the Board to hold office until the next Annual General 
Meeting and seek re-appointment by the shareholders at that 
meeting. The Articles call for one third of the Directors in office to 
retire at each Annual General Meeting. The Directors who retire are 
those who have served for the longest period after their appointment 
/re-appointment. Retiring Directors are generally eligible for re-
election. The Managing Director does not retire by rotation.

Principle: a.9 appraisal of board Performance
board periodically appraises their own performance in order to ensure that board responsibilities are satisfactorily 
discharged.
A.9.1, A.9.2, A.9.3 Appraisal of Board 

performance
Complied The performance of the Board and Sub Committee is evaluated 

annually on self-assessment basis.

Stewardship
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Principle: a.10 disclosure of information in respect of directors
A.10.1 Disclosures about 

Directors 
Complied Name, qualifications, brief profile, and nature of expertise are given 

in the pages 92 and  93 of this annual report.  
Director’s interests in contracts are given in the pages 199 to 202 of this 
report. 
The numbers of Board meetings attended by the Directors are 
available in the page 98 of this report.

Principle: a.11 appraisal of chief executive officer
A.11.1, A.11.2 Evaluating the 

performance of the CEO
Complied The short, medium and long-term objectives including financial 

and non-financial targets that should be met by the CEO are set 
and evaluated at the commencement of each fiscal year. The 
performances were evaluated in each quarter and ascertained 
whether the targets were achieved or whether achievement is 
reasonable in the circumstances. 

b. directors remuneration
Principle: b.1 remuneration procedure
B.1.1 Remuneration 

Committee
Complied The Remuneration Committee is responsible to assist the Board 

in recommending the remuneration payable for the Executive 
Directors and Corporate management. The Board makes the final 
determination after considering such recommendations.

B.1.2, B1.3 Composition of 
the remuneration 
committee

The Remuneration Committee of Dipped Product PLC, which is 
the ultimate parent of the Company, acts as the Remuneration 
Committee of KVPL. The Remuneration Committee comprises of 
following Independent Non-executive Directors.

Mr. S Rajapakse (Chairman)
Mr. F Mohideen

B1.4 Remuneration of 
the Non- Executive 
Directors

The board as a whole decides the remuneration of the Non-Executive 
Directors including the members of the remuneration committee 
which the Board believes is in line with the market rates and which is 
within the limits set in the Articles of Association.

B1.5 Consultation of the 
Chairman and access to 
professional advice.

Remuneration committee consults the Chairman about its proposal 
regarding the remuneration of other Executive Directors. Both 
internal and external professional advice has been taken during the 
year under review. 
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

Principle: b.2 the level and make up of remuneration
B.2.1, B.2.2 Levels of remuneration 

for executive Directors
Complied Remuneration package is designed to attract, retain and motivate 

the Directors needed to run the Company successfully but avoid 
paying more than necessary for this purpose.

The Remuneration Committee takes into account market practices. 
Their remuneration comprises a fixed salary component, which 
include perquisites and allowances.

B.2.3 Positioning Company 
remuneration levels 
relative to other 
companies

Complied The Remuneration Committee structures and reviews the Company’s 
remuneration levels in relation to the other companies and other 
parts of the Group.

B.2.4 Performance 
related elements of 
remuneration for 
executive Directors

Complied The performance based incentives have been determined by 
the remuneration committee to ensure that the earnings of the 
executives are aligned with the achievement of objectives and 
budgets of the Group companies.

B.2.5 Share option schemes Not applicable Presently the Group does not have an Executive Share Option 
scheme.

B.2.6 Designing performance 
related Remuneration

Complied Performance-related remuneration is designed by the Remuneration 
Committee based on the provisions set out

B.2.7, B.2.8 Compensation, 
commitments in 
the event of early 
termination and 
dealing with early 
termination

Complied There are no provisions for compensation for early termination in the 
letter of contract. However, the Directors would determine this on a 
case by case basis.

B.2.9 Levels of remuneration 
for Non-Executive 
Directors

Complied The Remuneration Committee determines the levels of remuneration 
for Non-Executive Directors taking into account the time 
commitment and responsibilities of their role and market practices. 
Remuneration for non-executive Directors does not include share 
options.

Principle: b.3 disclosure of the remuneration
B.3.1 Disclosure of the 

remuneration
Complied The total of Directors’ Remuneration is reported in note 9 to the 

Financial Statements.

c. relations with Share holders
Principle: c.1 constructive use of the aGm and conduct of General meetings
C.1.1 Use of proxy Complied The Company ensures that all proxy votes are counted and the 

level of proxies are lodged on each resolution and conveyed to the 
Chairman
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

C.1.2 Separate resolution for 
substantially separate 
issue

Complied A separate resolution proposed at an Annual General Meeting on 
each substantially separate issue.
Adoption of the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the 
affairs of the Company, Statement of Compliance and the Financial 
Statements with the Independent Auditor’s Report is considered as a 
separate resolution.

C.1.3 Answer questions at 
the AGM

Complied The Board arranges the Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration 
committees to be available to answer the queries at the AGM when 
necessary.  
 
The active participation of shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting is encouraged. The Board believes the AGM is a means of 
continuing effective dialogue with shareholders.  
The Board offers clarifications and responds to concerns 
shareholders have over the content of the Annual Report as well as 
other matters which are important to them. The AGM is also used to 
adopt the financial statements for the year.

C.1.4, C.1.5 Notice of Annual 
General Meeting and 
General Meetings

Complied The Notice of Meeting is included in the Annual Report. The Notice 
contains the Agenda for the AGM as well as instructions on voting for 
shareholders, including the appointment of proxies. A Form of Proxy 
is enclosed with the Annual Report. The period of notice prescribed 
by the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 has been met. 
 
The notice and the agenda of the Annual General Meeting together 
with the Annual Report with all other relevant documents are sent to 
the shareholders within 15 working days prior to the meeting.

Principle: c.2 communication with shareholders 
C.2.1 Channel to reach all 

shareholders of the 
Company

Complied The modes of communication between the Company and 
the shareholders are the Annual Reports, Quarterly Financial 
Statements, Interim Reports, other press releases and Annual 
General Meetings.

Shareholders may bring up concerns they have, with the Chairman, 
the Managing Director or the Secretaries, as appropriate. 
The soft version of the Annual Report is posted on its website as soon 
as they have been released to the Stock Exchange and post news and 
latest updates. 

C.2.2 Disclosure of the 
communication policy

Complied The communication policy and methodology for communication 
with the shareholders are given in the stakeholder engagement. 

C.2.3 Implementation 
of the policy and 
methodology for 
communication with 
Shareholders

Complied Shareholders are consulted on their preference to receive the Annual 
Report from the Plantations either by means of CD or in hard copy 
form. 
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

C.2.4 Disclosure of contact 
person

Complied Shareholders can forward their inquiries via electronic media (e-mail, 
telephone call or in writing) to the relevant person to raise queries. The 
contact person for such communication is the Company Secretary.

C.2.5 Major issues 
and concerns of 
shareholders

Complied All the major issues relating to shareholders are brought to the 
attention of the Board. 

C.2.6 Person to be contacted 
with regard to 
shareholders’ matters

Complied The Company Secretary holds the responsibility to be contacted in 
relation to shareholders’ matters. 

C.2.7 Process for responding 
to shareholder matters

Complied The Board formulated the process of responding to shareholder 
matters. 

Principle: c.3 major and material transactions
C.3.1 Disclosure of Major 

Transactions to 
shareholders

Complied There have been no transactions during the year under review which 
fall within the definition of “Major Transactions” as set out in the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

d. accountability and audit
Principle: d.1 the board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the company’s financial position 
and performance and prospect
D.1.1 Balance and 

understandable 
information to 
shareholders 
 
 
 
 
 

Price Sensitive 
Information 
 
Shareholder Value and 
Return

Complied The Board places great emphasis on complete disclosure of financial 
and non financial information within the bounds of commercial 
reality, and on the adoption of sound reporting practices. Financial 
information is disclosed in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards. Revisions to existing accounting standards and adoption 
of new standards are carefully monitored. 
 
The Annual Report includes descriptive, non financial content 
through which an attempt is made to provide stakeholders with 
information to assist them make more informed decisions. 
 
Due care is exercised with respect to share price sensitive 
information. 
 
The Board strives to enhance shareholder value and provide a total 
return in excess of the market. It has been the policy of the Board to 
distribute a reasonable dividend to the shareholders whilst retaining 
sufficient resources for capital needs. 

D.1.2 Statement of Directors 
Responsibility

Complied The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for the financial 
statements is given in page 141 of this report.
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refereNce to 
caSL & Sec code

reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce detaiLS of comPLiaNce

D.1.3 Responsibilities of 
Board for preparation 
of Financial Statements 
together with Auditors 
Report

Complied Chief Financial Officer and two other Directors have signed the 
Financial Statements on behalf of the Board.

Responsibilities of Board of Directors are disclosed in page 141
The Auditors’ Report for the period ended 31 March 2015 is available 
on page 145 of this report.

A statement on Internal Control is included on page 134.

D.1.4 Management 
Discussion and Analysis

Complied A comprehensive coverage of key initiatives undertaken during the 
year, external impacts, sector performances, achievements and 
future outlook, awards won and certifications received are available 
in the Management Discussion (page 27 to page 90) of this Report. 

D.1.5 Declaration of Going 
Concern

Complied The Directors have reasonable expectations that the Company has 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Arriving that, the Directors make necessary inquiries and 
reviews for all the aspects that effect on financial performance 
and position i.e. budgets for the ensuing year, capital expenditure 
requirements, future prospects and risks, cash flows and borrowing 
facilities. Therefore, the going concern basis has been adopted in 
the preparation of the financial statements. This has been disclosed 
under the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the 
Financial Statements. 

D.1.6 Summon an EGM to 
notify serious loss of 
capital

Complied In the event the net assets of the Company fall below 50% of 
the value of the Company’s shareholders fund, the Directors will 
forthwith summon an Extra Ordinary General Meeting to notify 
shareholders the remedial action being taken. However such an 
event has not taken place since the adoption of the New Companies 
Act No 07 of 2007.

D.1.7 Related party 
transactions

Complied All the transactions with related parties to the organisation are 
disclosed adequately and accurately in pages 199 to 202.

Principle: d.2 internal control
D.2.1 Requirement of sound 

system of internal 
control

Complied The Directors hold responsibility to conduct reviews of the risks 
facing the company and the effectiveness of the internal controls to 
be reported to shareholders.

The Audit Committee executes this function; evaluate the 
effectiveness on behalf of the Board. 
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D.2.2 Review need for 
Internal Audit function

Complied The Company has an internal audit function at Head Office and at  
sub office. Audits were conducted in accordance with the programme 
prepared at the beginning of the year.

The Group Management Audit and System Review Department 
(MA&SRD) carried internal audits according to the annual plan. The 
internal audit function is also outsourced to leading audit firms 
according to the annual audit plan. 

D.2.3 Review of the process 
and effectiveness of risk 
management

Complied The Board holds responsibility of getting the Audit Committee 
to carry out reviews of the process and effectiveness of risk 
management and internal controls, and to document it to the Board.
The disclosure of internal controls are on page 134.

D.2.4 Sound system of 
internal controls

Complied The responsibilities of the Directors in maintaining a sound system of 
internal control and the contents of the Statement of Internal control 
are reported in page 134.

Principle: d.3 audit committee
D.3.1 Composition of Audit 

Committee
Complied The Audit Committee was established in 2008. The Committee 

consists entirely of Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by 
Mr. L.N.De.S.Wijeyeratne. He is a Fellow Member of The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. All three Directors are 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. 

D.3.2 Committees’ 
purpose, duties and 
responsibilities

Complied The Committee is empowered to examine any matters relating to the 
Financial Reporting systems of KVPL, and its external and internal 
audits. Its duties include the detailed review of Financial Statements, 
internal control procedures and risk management framework, 
accounting policies and compliance with applicable accounting 
standards and other rules and regulations.
 
It reviews the adequacy of systems in place for compliance with 
relevant legal, regulatory and ethical requirements and company 
policies.
 
The Audit Committee makes recommendations to the Board 
pertaining to appointment, re –appointment of External Auditors 
after assessing the independence and performance, and approves 
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the External Auditors.

The Chairman, the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company are invited to attend meetings. Other Directors 
and Senior Managers attend meetings as required. The input of the 
External Auditors is obtained where necessary. 
The Audit Committee helps the Group to achieve a balance between 
conformance and performance.
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D.3.3 Written Terms of 
Reference

Complied Terms of References (TOR) provides proper guideline duty and 
authority to deliver the responsibilities. 

D.3.4 Disclosures of the 
members of the Audit 
Committee

Complied Mr. L.N.De.S.Wijeyeratne - the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  
Mr. F. Mohideen
Mr. C V Cabraal. 
Annual report contains a compliance report of Audit Committee in pages 142  
and 143.

Principle: d.4 code of business conduct & ethics
D.4.1 Disclosure on presence 

of Code of Business 
Conduct and Ethics

Complied The Directors and members of the Senior Management team are bound 
with a Code of Business Conduct & Ethics which is developed by the 
Hayleys Group. The Code consists of important topics such as conflict 
of interest, corporate opportunities, confidentiality, fair dealing, 
protection and proper use of Company assets, compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations etc. The Board ensures the compliance with the 
code and noncompliance may cause to take disciplinary actions.

D.4.2 Affirmation of Code in 
the Annual Report by 
the Chairman

Complied The Chairman affirms that he is not aware of any violation of any of the 
provisions of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics in the Annual 
Report. Please refer  the Statement from the Chairman on Corporate 
Governance in page 97 of this report. 

Principle: d.5 corporate Governance disclosures
D.5.1 Disclosure of 

adherence to Corporate 
Governance

Complied The extent to which the Company adheres to established principles 
and practices of good Corporate Governance are disclosed from page 
97 to 116 of this report.

Section 2: Shareholders
e. institutional investors

Principle: e.1 Shareholder voting, e.2. evaluation of governance disclosures
E.1.1 Use of the vote of 

Institutional Investors
Complied All investors are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting 

and they are free to make comments/suggestions . The Company 
encourages dialogues with institutional investors. The Company 
appreciates the way of using the votes in AGM on the weight they had 
regarding all relevant factors noted. 

E.2 Evaluation of 
governance disclosure

Complied Institutional investors are encouraged to give due weight to all relevant 
factors drawn to their attention when evaluating company’s governance 
arrangement particularly in relation to Board structure and composition.

f. other investors
Principle: f.1 investing/divesting decisions f.2 Shareholder voting
F.1 Individual shareholders 

are encouraged to 
do their own analysis 
or seek independent 
advice

Complied Annual Report provides sufficient information to carry out their 
own analysis in investing or divesting decisions. In addition, KVPL 
encourages individual shareholders to seek independent advice for 
their investing and divesting decisions.
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F.2 Encourage shareholders 
to participate and vote 
at AGM

Complied All shareholders are encouraged to actively participate in the AGM 
and they have the independence of using their votes as they wish.

Principle: G. Sustainability reporting
G.1 Principles of 

sustainability reporting
Complied Recognition, measurement, disclosure and accountability to internal 

and external stakeholders for organisational performance towards 
the goals of sustainable development in the context of the overall 
business activities of the organisation are being reported in the 
Sustainability report.

G.1.1 Economic sustainability Complied The Company takes responsibility for impact of the strategies, 
decisions and activities on economic performance and how this is 
integrated throughout the organisation.

G.1.2 The environment Complied The organisation adopts an integrated approach that takes into 
account the direct and indirect economic, social, health and 
environmental implications of their decisions and activities, 
including pollution prevention, sustainable resource use, climate 
change, protection of environment, bio-diversity and restoration of 
natural resources. 

G.1.3 Labour practice Complied The Company encompasses all policies and practices in relation to 
work performed by or on behalf of the Company.

G.1.4 Society Complied Company engages in supporting and building relationships with 
the community and striving for sustainable development. This 
includes responsible public policy participation, fair competition and 
responsible community involvement.

G.1.5 Product Responsibility Complied Company manufactures quality tea and distributes them ensuring 
that the products are safe for the consumers so that they can make 
an informed choice. Company complied with the international food 
safety standards.
HACCP and ISO 22000 Certification, Rainforest Alliance (RA) 
Certification, GLOBAL G.A.P, Forest Stewardship Council (FSC™)

G.1.6 Stakeholder 
identification, 
engagement 
and effective 
communication

Complied Internal and external stakeholder groups are identified in relation to 
Company’s sphere of influence, impact and implication. Communication 
with them is proactive and transparent. Communications with 
stakeholders include reporting on economic, social, and environmental 
issues which are relevant, material, comparable with past performance 
and focuses on substance over form.

G.1.7 Sustainable reporting 
and disclosure 

Complied Sustainable reporting and disclosure is formalised as part of 
the Company’s reporting process on a regular basis. Company’s 
sustainability reporting is done based on the GRI standards G4 version. 
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Levels of compliance with the CSE’s Listing Rules- Section 7.10, Rules on Corporate Governance are given in the following table.

ruLe No. SubJect aPPLicabLe reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce 
StatuS

aPPLicabLe SectioN iN 
the aNNuaL rePort

7.10.1(a) Non-Executive 
Directors

At least one third of the total number of Directors 
should be Non-Executive Directors 

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.1

7.10.2(a) Independent 
Directors

Two or one third of Non-Executive Directors, 
whichever is higher, should be Independent

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.2

7.10.2(b) Independent 
Directors

Each Non-Executive Director should submit a 
declaration of independence/non-independence in 
the prescribed format

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.4

7.10.3(a) Disclosure relating 
to Directors

Names of Independent Directors should be disclosed 
in the Annual Report

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.5

7.10.3(b) Disclosure relating 
to Directors

The basis for the Board to determine a Director is 
Independent, if criteria specified for Independence 
is not met

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.5

7.10.3(c) Disclosure relating 
to Directors

A brief resume of each Director should be included in 
the Annual Report and should include the Director’s 
areas of expertise

Compliant Corporate Governance A.5.5

7.10.3(d) Disclosure relating 
to Directors

Forthwith provide a brief resume of new Directors 
appointed to the Board with details specified in 
7.10.3 (a),(b) and (c) to the Exchange 

Compliant Corporate Governance A.7.3

7.10.5 Remuneration 
Committee

A listed company shall have a Remuneration 
Committee

Compliant Corporate Governance B.1.1, 
B.1.2, B.1.3, B.1.4, B.1.5

7.10.5(a) Composition of 
Remuneration 
Committee

Shall comprise Non-Executive Directors a majority of 
whom will be independent 

Compliant Corporate Governance B.1.1, 
B.1.2, B.1.3, B.1.4, B.1.5

7.10.5(b) Functions of 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall recommend the 
remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Executive 
Directors

Compliant Corporate Governance B.1.1, 
B.1.2, B.1.3, B.1.4, B.1.5

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report 
relating to 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Annual Report should set out;
 G  Names of Directors comprising the Remuneration 

Committee
 G  Statement of Remuneration Policy
 G  Aggregated remuneration paid to Executive & 

Non-Executive Directors 

Compliant Corporate Governance B.1.1, 
B.1.2, B.1.3, B.1.4, B.1.5

7.10.6 Audit Committee The company shall have an Audit Committee Compliant Corporate Governance D.3.1, 
D.3.2
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ruLe No. SubJect aPPLicabLe reQuiremeNt comPLiaNce 
StatuS

aPPLicabLe SectioN iN 
the aNNuaL rePort

7.10.6(a) Composition of 
Audit Committee

 G  Shall comprise of Non-Executive Directors a 
majority of whom will be independent

 G  Non-Executive Directors shall be appointed as 
the Chairman of the committee

 G  Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
should attend Audit Committee Meetings

 G  The Chairman of the Audit Committee or one 
member should be a member of a professional 
accounting body

Compliant Corporate Governance D.3.1, 
D.3.2

Audit Committee Report is 
available in pages 142 and 143

7.10.6(b) Audit Committee 
Functions

Functions shall includes:
 G  Overseeing of the preparation, presentation 

and adequacy of disclosures in the financial 
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards

 G  Overseeing of the compliance with financial 
reporting requirements, information 
requirements of the Companies Act and other 
relevant financial reporting related regulations 
and requirements.

 G  Overseeing the processes to ensure that the 
internal controls and risk management are 
adequate to meet the requirements of the Sri 
Lanka Auditing Standards

 G  Assessment of the independence and 
performance of the external auditors

 G  Make recommendations to the Board pertaining 
to appointment, re –appointment and removal of 
external auditors, and approve the remuneration 
and terms of engagement of the external 
auditors

Compliant Corporate Governance D.3.3

7.10.6 (c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report 
relating to Audit 
Committee

a) Names of Directors comprising the Audit 
Committee

b) The Audit Committee shall make a determination 
of the independence of the Auditors and disclose 
the basis for such determination

c) The Annual Report shall contain a Report of the 
Audit Committee setting out of the manner of 
compliance with their functions

Compliant Corporate Governance D.3.4
Please refer Audit Committee 
Report on page 142 and 143
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Risk Management

is very sensitive to weather patterns and the global market fluctuations. 
Our risk management processes intend to ensure that risks are taken 
knowingly and with forethought.

kvPL’S riSk ManaGeMent SySteM
KVPL’s risk management system is a dynamic process that integrates 
strategic level risk management with ground level developments. The 
model is made highly responsive by integrating estate communities and 
employees into the overall risk management framework, through an 
Estate Level Risk Management Process. The overall risk management 
system is supported by our MIS system that links all our estates for daily 
operational updates.

riSk ManaGeMent ModeL
The KVPL Group uses the COSO Model and the Risk Management 
Industry approach to design, implement, conduct and assess the  
effectiveness of internal controls, as the conceptual framework of ERM. 
The framework consists of identifying and profiling significant risks, 
modelling and measuring, determining Group appetites, mitigating and 
sharing, measuring of performance and monitoring of the execution of 
the process.

Our business is exposed to a wide range of risks. The categories of risk which are  strategic, financial, operational and compliance are  illustrated below.
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Principles

Risk is a measure of the Group’s inability to achieve system life 
cycle objectives. Risk arises in all business activities. It is a inherent 
characteristic and may be unknown to the business. It comprises of two 
components as given in the diagram below.

KVPL has a structured and transparent Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM) process that enable management to identify, assess, manage and  
prioritise risks in an informed, controlled and transparent manner. 

The Group operates in an evolving environment and is exposed to 
different types of risks especially being in the Agriculture Sector which 
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our approach to risk management:
 G  bottom-up approach : At regular meetings, the Company’s results, 

potentials, opportunities and risks at operational/ground level are 
discussed. Targets and necessary actions are agreed upon.

 G  Hayleys Groups’ risk Management function : Internal Audit of 
Hayleys PLC, the ultimate parent, co-ordinates the identification 
and documentation of controlled risk areas, enhancing the risk 
management systems and monitoring its effectiveness at regular 
intervals.

 G  internal Systems review : Our internal systems review team 
carry out regular  system evaluations in order to monitor the 
effectiveness and compliance of existing systems and controls 

 G external auditor’s Management Letter : The management latter 
issued by the external auditors on the year end audit findings 
highlights the possible risks. The outcomes of these audits are used 
for continuous enhancement of our risk management system.

 risk architecture

board of directors
overall responsibility for risk management, ensure risk management is embedded into all processes and review group risk profile

direct and  
monitor

Plantations
Processing of tea 

powder
Hydropower

export value 
added tea

export instant tea 
and tea extract

 G receive reports from Management team and external/internal auditors
 G Set annual audit programme and priorities
 G Monitor progress with audit recommendations
 G Provide risk assurance to the board and oversee risk management structures and  processes

 G identification of  business unit risk
 G Set risk priorities for business units
 G Monitor and   prepare reports for Management team
 G Manage and Control risk and self-certification activities

 G receive reports from business units and external /internal auditors
 G formulate strategy and policy based on risk appetite, risk attitudes and risk exposures
 G review risk management activities and comply with the Group risk register
 G Make reports and recommendations to the board
 G track risk management activities and keep the risk management context under review

direct and  
monitor

Level 3: audit Committee  

direct and  
monitor

Level 2: Management team

Level 1: kvPL Group  business units/estate level  

Risk Management Contd.
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riSk ManaGeMent ProCeSS
The Group has established and adheres to a comprehensive risk management framework illustrated as follows.

 

 G business units/estates : Divisional business units/estates are 
responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing risks that 
originate within approved risk appetites and policies. They are 
required to establish and maintain appropriate risk management 
controls, resources and self-assurance processes.

 G Management team/ executive Committee : The management 
team is  responsible for developing division-specific risk appetite 
statements, policies, controls, procedures, monitoring and 
reporting capability, which is aligned to the Board’s statement of 
risk appetite and the risk management framework approved by the 
Board of Directors.

review and 
refine process 

and repeat

Communicate,
implement and 

monitor 
controls

develop risk 
response 
strategies

implement 
strategy 

and allocate 
responsibilities

identify 
risk areas

Set goals

understand, 
assess and 

prioritise risk

information for 
decision making

accept

avoid

reduce

Share

 G audit Committee : Group Audit Committee leads the optimisation 
of risk-reward by overseeing the development of risk appetite 
statements, risk management framework, policies and risk 
concentration controls and monitoring risk profile for alignment with 
approved appetites and strategies.
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 G Set Goals on risk Management: After a comprehensive evaluation 
of risk and opportunities the Board sets annual targets which support 
the organisation’s mission and which are consistent with the risk 
appetite. These targets are conveyed to the operational levels. 

 G  identify risk areas: The responsibility for setting up the overall 
framework for risk management lies with the Board of Directors. 
Line managers are responsible for the identification, measurement 
and management of risks in their areas of responsibility. Monthly/
quarterly review meetings and internal systems reviews are key 
instruments in identifying possible risks arising from one-off events 
and more gradual trends that could result in changes in risk. 

 G  understand and assess the Scale of risk: Risks mentioned in the 
report are ranked as high, medium and low risk events based on the 
impact and likelihood. A higher risk event requires a more urgent 
and concerted management response.

 G  develop risk response Strategies: Depending on the tolerance 
of risk, decisions are taken to manage risk by accepting, 
reducing, sharing or avoiding it. Such decisions are influenced 
by the company’s risk appetite. The Managing Director, with the 
management team responsible, initiates risk mitigation actions. 
The KVPL Group has obtained insurance coverage where available, 
on economically viable terms to minimise the financial losses 
arising from uncertainty and risk. These covers are frequently re-
examined and adjusted accordingly with the advices of experts. The 
sound system of internal controls within the Group ensures proper 
action to be taken in responding to risk.

 G  information and Communication: Quarterly review reports with Key 
Performance Indicators and possible risk and mitigatory actions are 
presented to the Board. Audit reports on levels of compliance with 
risk mitigating actions are tabled at the Audit Committee and are 
then reviewed and acted upon. Risk areas that are relevant to staff are 
communicated with them on a regular basis at staff meetings.

 G  Monitoring: The ultimate responsibility for monitoring risk 
management process lies with the Senior Management Team/ 
Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. This includes 
regular and annual review of risk management and monitoring the 
efficiency and effectiveness of internal control.

 G  review Process and refine: There is no substantial diversion of 
the risk profile which occurred during the year. The process will be 
continuous and will be reviewed annually.

estate level risk management process
The estates have identified most of the field level risks that workers and 
estate communities can be exposed to. These include environmental 
risks and housing & workplace risks. Environmental risks include earth 
slips, cyclones, floods, lightning strikes and bee attacks and others. 
Housing and workplace risks include factory fires and factory accidents, 
fires at worker houses, field accidents and sudden illnesses, violence 
and strikes etc. For each risks, the estate risk management process 
identifies :

 G  How risk could occur
 G  Who might be harmed
 G  What is being done already
 G  Is anything else required to control this risk
 G  Action by who
 G  Action by when

Stewardship
Risk Management

Risk Management Contd.

3

1

2

6

2

4

9

3

6

High (3)

Mid (2)

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

impact
Likelihood x impact = risk

Low (1)

Low (1) Mid (2) High (3)

High (3)

Mid (2)

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

impact

Low (1)

Low (1) High (3)Mid (2)

Risk within Risk appetite

Risk exceeding Risk appetite



121

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

Process of managing risks at estates

Based on the possible location of a hazard, estate risk management is classified into field level and worker housing & environment. Field level risk 
management applies to workers, while worker housing & environment risk management covers the estate community. Response actions to hazards 
are assigned at divisional, field and work gang levels to reach the lowest level. Responsibilities are assigned between working hours and non-working 
hours. The communication process is a bottom up approach.

estate  risks

field level risks Worker housing/environment

Gang a Gang b

upper division

Cluster 1 Cluster 2

Lower division

Gang a

Lower division

n/W/HW/H

n/W/H

Gang b

n/W/HW/H

Cluster 1 Cluster 2

upper division

n/W/HW/Hn/W/HW/Hn/W/HW/Hn/W/HW/Hn/W/HW/Hn/W/HW/H

W/H Working Hours non Working Hours
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field risk Management at tillyrie estate 
Three workers have been assigned as hazard monitors. Workers report field hazards to the hazard monitors. Then hazard monitors report to the Field 
Officer or the Kangani, who informs the Estate Manager, Assistant Estate Manager or the Ambulance Driver as needed for action. If required the Estate 
Manager will inform the General Manager and the Managing Director. 

k. Palaniamma 
Plucker

M. Sandanamary
Plucker

J. Magretmary 
Plucker

t. J.Wijesundara
estate Manager 

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

dinesh kumar 
asst. estate 

Manager
tP: 0772-xxxxxx

k. Logaselvam
ambulance driver

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

H
az

ar
d 

M
on

ito
rs

if necessary

k. ravichandran
field officer 

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

P. kumaravel
kangani 

tP: 0772-xxxxxx
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Worker Housing and environment risk Management, tillyrie estate
The risk management process is triggered when the Watcher reports the hazard to the Estate Manager, Assistant Manager or the Field Officer. They 
inform the ambulance driver, or other drivers to move affected parties to safety/medical care. 

k. Logaselvam
ambulance driver

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

k. thamilselvam
driver

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

r. Sanjeewa
driver

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

k. ravichandran
field officer 

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

t. J.Wijesundara
estate Manager 

tP: 0772-xxxxxx

dinesh kumar 
asst. estate 

Manager
tP: 0772-xxxxxx

if necessary

S. Jeyaram 
Watcher

tP: 0772-xxxxxx
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kvPL Group risk Management in 2014/15   G4 - 14/ eC 2

No significant changes to risk status was observed during the current period, compared to the previous year. Climate change and wage structure 
remained the only high risk areas.
 

riSK factor riSK ratiNG reSPoNSe
2014/15 2013

Strategic risk
Climate Changes
Both tea and rubber crops fluctuate 
due to adverse weather conditions, 
changes in ambient temperature and 
natural disasters. This affects the yield, 
quality, market share, earnings and 
profitability of the product.

H H Climate change remained a high risk area. We responded by monitoring tea and 
rubber crop variance and used sustainable agricultural practices to minimise effects 
of climatic changes.

 G Rest rubber plants during heavy rainy days to get maximum output during dry periods.
 G Reserve forests and water sheds to retain the moisture content.
 G Foliar spraying to prevent excessive transpiration during dry seasons.
 G Planting of shade trees.
 G Diversify crop (cinnamon, timber and fuel wood.)
 G Deep draining and Sloping Agriculture Land Technology [SALT] to avoid soil erosion.
 G Maintain a laboratory for soil analysis.
 G Diversified into hydro power to maximise  revenue from hydro power generation on heavy 

rains and compensate adverse impacts on the tea and rubber sectors.

Production risk
Inconsistency in product quality leads 
to reduced demand, resulting in a 
drop in market price, market share and 
reputation and in number of quality 
claims poor quality Input materials 
and old factory machineries reduce 
profitability and efficiency. 

M M  G Production risk remained a mid level risk controlled through:
 G Close supervision of plucking rounds and manufacturing process,
 G Obtaining regular advice from industry experts, brokers and customers,
 G Diversification of marginal land and optimising outputs in productive areas
 G Making arrangements with other factories to transfer excess leaf to get optimum output 

and price (Centralising tea factories according to high NSA and reduce COP by optimum 
capacity).

 G KVPL teas are distributed in different agro-climatic regions giving the opportunity to 
produce seasonal quality teas to cater to different markets competitively.

1,000

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Rainfall  
(mm)

Estate

pe
Dr

O

n’
el

iy
a

Ol
ip

ha
n

ti
ll

yr
ie

e’
bu

rg
h

g’
SS

au
gh

in
ge

St
re

b’
bO

nn
ie

rO
bg

il
l

b’
ga

ll
a

in
ve

ry

FO
rD

yc
e

an
nF

ie
lD

u’
ra

De
ll

a

Jan - Dec 2014 Jan - Dec 2013

Rainfalls - Up country Estates 

H High M Medium L Low



125

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

Stewardship
Risk Management

riSK factor riSK ratiNG reSPoNSe
2014/15 2013

 G Maintain quality assurance systems such as ISO 22000 : 2005 and HACCP along with Rain 
Forest Alliance™ certifications.

 G We produce a range of single origin Garden Fresh Teas and market through our subsidiary  
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.

 G Innovations through our Instant Tea/RTD tea manufacturing plant in Nuwara Eliya.

Political risk 
Political intervention in wage 
negotiations and major industrial 
relations inhibit the resolution of issues 
on the basis of economic viability 
alone. 

M M Political risks remained a mid-level risk during the year. Management initiatives 
to improve labour productivity were not supported as expected and unplanned 
acquisitions of land aggravated the situation. However, we make representations 
to key members of Government and the bureaucracy in negotiating Collective 
Agreements with major plantation trade unions, in which wages and parameters of 
the operation are agreed.  

Commodity Cycles
Fluctuations in global supply and 
demand, consumer preferences, close 
substitutes and competition from 
other major low cost producers ( India, 
China, Kenya, Vietnam and Indonesia) 
affects demand and price(s) of KVPL 
products. Further, increases in prices 
of chemicals and energy contributes to 
higher production costs.

M M External price fluctuations of commodities and energy remained a mid-level risk 
during the year. We responded by maintaining our on-going strategy.

 G  Our marketing company Mabroc Teas, RTD tea and green tea plants are adding 
value to our product mix to match customer preferences.

 G  Obtaining accreditations for black tea factories on international food hygienic 
standards and accreditations of tea estates for good agricultural practices.

 G  Membership in the UNGC which positions KVPL as a socially responsible 
plantation company.

 G Differentiating KVPL to bulk buyers as an “Ethical Tea Producer” and 
marketing “The Ethical Tea Brand of the World” to retailers through Mabroc 
Teas.

 G  Promotion of single origin products by leveraging unique locations/points of 
differentiation.

 G  Converting to cheaper energy and implementing energy saving strategies in 
the production process.
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Social environmental risk
 G  The younger generation is 

reluctant to work in plantations.
 G  Unfavorable campaigns organised 

by trade unions
 G  Differences such as religion and 

race 

M M

We maintain a good rapport with workers and trade unions and arrange regular social 
and cultural events, youth events, awareness programmes and inter estate and inter 
plantation sports meets, Estate Worker Housing Co-operative (EWHC), micro finance 
management (savings, loans etc.) and self employment trainings are arranged to 
enhance the living standards of estate worker communities. 

These activities will enhance the relationship with the younger generation and 
workers and attract them to work in the plantation sector.

financial risk
foreign exchange risk 
Our subsidiaries Mabroc Teas and 
Hayleys Global Beverages are 
mainly focused on foreign markets 
and adverse fluctuations of foreign 
exchange rates affects pricing policy 
and results of these companies.

M M The exchange rate risk and the associated risk exposure was managed as follows.
Arranging forward exchange contracts to minimise the exposure of currency volatility

 G  Monitor exchange rate movements and outlook for high exposure currencies
 G  Forex exposures are monitored, and appropriate action is recommended 

to reduce inherent risk and minimise adverse impact of currency rate 
movements on assets and liabilities.

 G  Measures are established to determine effectiveness of actions taken.
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interest rate risk
Changes in national fiscal and monetary 
policies affect the company’s pricing 
policy and profitability. Similarly, 
low returns on investment, high 
opportunity cost of investment and 
difficulty in generating funds for capital 
development and growth are the other 
major risks inherent in the industry.

M M  G  The KVPL Group’s credibility, reputation, strength and financial dependability 
help ensure ready access to funds at attractive rates.

 G  Fluctuation of local currency interest rates are minimised by having foreign 
currency borrowings linked to LIBOR.

Credit risk
Credit risk is in the form of financial 
losses when customers default and 
the prospect of protracted legal 
proceeding without assurance of a 
favorable outcome.

L L  G Although this is a low risk area, mitigatory measures are followed.
 G Credit risks are assessed, limits are set and credit granted is closely 

monitored.
 G Suppliers are settled and dues collected from customers leaving no room for 

default on payment.
 G Tea and Rubber stocks are sold through auction and settlements are assured 

in seven (07) days.
 G Customers of Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd are given credit through a proper evaluation 

and all open account customers are subjected to credit insurance by SLECIC.
 G Further, production and delivery of RTD is done only on settlement of 

outstanding balances.
 G Government leases and other finances are closely monitored and settled 

without delay.

investment risk
This entails failure in investments/ 
inability to achieve expected 
objectives. This affects future 
profitability and sustainability of the 
Group.

M M  G Any "proposed investments" are subjected to a rigorous evaluation and feasibility 
process by seeking expert advice to ensure a maximum return on investment and 
seek Board approval prior to embarking on a proposed investment.

 G Further we closely monitor the progress to ensure project deliverables are achieved 
within the given budgets and timelines.

 G Prudent investments are made in capital development i.e. replanting, machinery 
and plant upgrading and rationalising the production capacities in major factories.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity problems are bound to arise 
due to uncontrollable factors such 
as erratic weather patterns, wage 
hike, drop in demand and prices and 
increase in prices of input materials etc.

L L  G  Efficient cash management such as close monitoring of expenditure, maintaining 
effective budgetary control system and building up of reserves are key to minimise 
liquidity risks.

 G We monitor cash flows of each estates on a weekly basis (expenses are prioritise 
and expenditure curtailed to the earnings of the estates, especially in less crop and 
lower NSA seasons) and expenses are controlled through the Annual Budget.

accounting and reporting 
Possibility of misstatement of financial 
position or profitability and non 
compliance with accounting standards 
and other regulatory requirements

L L  G  The KVPL Board consists of senior qualified accountants
 G  The KVPL Group consists of four Chartered Accountants and skilled staff with 

relevant qualifications.
 G  We consult experts in the field when required and regular training on areas 

such as changes in standards, laws and compliance are given to the staff.
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operational risk
value Chain
Risk due to loss of confidence and 
relationship with suppliers of fertilizer, 
chemicals, packing materials, bought 
leaf and latex etc. and brokers, 
buyers and end customers and risk of 
noncompliance with UTZ™ and Rain 
Forest Alliance Certifications and or 
inability to renew the certification 

L L  G  We follow a transparent procedure to evaluate quotations of suppliers and 
ensure prompt payments and settlements for bought leaf, latex suppliers and 
other suppliers.

 G  Unbiased evaluations of products and services of suppliers.
 G  We educate and provide necessary tools/ equipment to bought leaf and latex 

suppliers to deliver a good quality produce.
 G  Frequent meetings and discussions with brokers together with frequent 

dialogues with buyers and end users locally and internationally will enable 
identification of end user requirements, trends, preferences, opportunities and 
further improvements of the quality of the produce.

Management Personnel 
The risk of losing management 
personnel due to dissatisfaction 
with remuneration,lack of adequate 
educational and other infrastructural 
facilities in plantation areas,migration 
to other industries and availability of 
more attractive Colombo-based job 
opportunities.

L L We address through:
 G  Easy accessibility to senior management and developing a company culture, 

which fosters team work and close interaction amongst all management staff.
 G  Development programmes such as out-bound training and career paths 

ensuring promotions.
 G  Succession plans for all departments.

Wage Structure
High increase in wage rates has 
a substantial impact on cost of 
production, profitability and gratuity 
liability, as the industry is highly labour 
intensive and the wage structure is not 
aligned to productivity. 

H H  This remained a high risk area as labour cost accounts for over 60% of total costs 
of the Company.

  

We are managing this risk by:
 G  Increasing land and worker productivity through monitoring, motivation and 

mechanisation.
 G  Outsourcing non value adding activities.
 G  Motivating and empowering employees.
 G  Negotiating with Trade Unions and Stake Holders for a wage structure that 

is in line with productivity. (Wage negotiation are done collectively with the 
Employers’ Federation of Ceylon and the Plantation Industry.)

Stewardship
Risk Management

Risk Management Contd.
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Worker Migration
Migration of workers could result 
in plantations not having adequate 
resident manpower.

High performing executives may move 
to competing companies.

L L

We are trying to retain workers through:
 G Housing programmes such as ‘A Home for Every Plantation Worker’
 G  Improved welfare schemes, medical benefits and other community 

development programmes.
 G  Initiatives such as providing transport facilities at low cost through 

concessionary funding schemes.
 G  Rewarding high performers.

reputation risk
KVPL’s reputation may be tarnished 
due to non-compliance, unethical 
practices, and inconsistency in product 
quality 

L L  G  KVPL had adopted stringent quality assurance policies with regard to raw and 
packaging materials bought from third parties.

 G  Compliance with international standards (ISO 22000:2005 and HACCP) and 
Rain Forest Alliance™ certifications.

 G  Implementation of Group policies on health, safety and environment will 
ensure best practices (in the sector).

Stewardship
Risk Management
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business disruption 
Natural disasters, human involved 
activities (human errors, accidents 
etc.) may cause business/ operational 
disruptions.

L L  G  Regular safety training and monitoring at factories (such as boiler safety, 
fire etc.) and compliance audits and awareness programmes on disaster 
management, are conducted and safety standards are followed.

 G Skill development programmes for workers and staff are also conducted on a regular 
basis.

 G  Adequate insurance cover is in place to recover any financial losses and re 
instate the losses within a reasonable period.

it risk
Includes risk of system failure, 
outdated systems and loss of data 

M M  G  Have implemented a sound IT policy, including IT security, privacy and 
confidentiality, supported by adequate systems and controls.

 G Have a disaster recovery plan in place to mitigate the risk of IT failures. An 
effective backup procedure has been implemented both at estates and head 
office with the support of Hayleys Group IT unit.

 G Monitor system hardware capacities.
 G Have a maintenance contract for hardware with a reputed company.
 G Have immediate IT related support for estates in the capacity of skilled 

personnel in the regional office.
 G Have provided new technologies (Tablets, Smart phones etc.) for online 

transmission of daily information to the Estate Managers.
 G Closely monitor the internet and email usage.
 G A technology road map is being developed to identify  future development needs.

technological risk
Not keeping pace with technological 
developments could lead to 
obsolescence

L L  G  Mechanisation of estate functions up to the highest possible extent.
 G  Investing in research and development activities whenever necessary.
 G  Implementation of the new computer system at head office and the estates.
 G  Investing in hardware resources .

compliance and other risks
regulatory risk (Legal, tax…etc)
Compliance with laws and other statutory 
obligations and risk arising from litigation 
and law suits against the Company may 
lead to loss of reputation and penalties 
being imposed.

L L  G  Statutory obligations are regularly reviewed by the Director/CFO and reported 
to the Audit Committee.

 G  Group has its own legal and tax consultants.

Stewardship
Risk Management

Risk Management Contd.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company

The Board of Directors of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC has pleasure in 
presenting their Report on the Affairs of the Company together with the 
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the fifteen month period 
ended 31 March 2015.

The details set out herein provide the pertinent information required by 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing 
Rules and are guided by recommended best practices on reporting and 
Corporate Governance.

PrinCiPaL aCtivitieS, buSineSS revieW and 
future deveLoPMentS
The principal activities of the Company are the production and 
processing of tea and rubber. Details of activities of other companies in 
the Group are given on page 94 of this report. The Chairman’s Review, 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Sustainability Report and 
Financial Review describe the performance of the Company during 
the period, with comments on the financial results, future strategic 
developments and the progress of its subsidiaries, Kalupahana Power 
Company (Pvt) Ltd., Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd., Mabroc Teas 
(Pvt) Ltd., and Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd.

The Board of Directors decided to change the reporting period of Kelani 
Valley Plantations PLC, Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd, (“KPC”) 
and Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd, (“KVIT”) from 31 December to 
31 March in order to align with the parents reporting period. Therefore, 
the current financial period information comprises a period of fifteen 
months from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2015.

During the Period under review, Kelani Valley Plantations PLC 
incorporated a new Subsidiary company Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) 
Ltd. with 51% ownership, to manufacturing instant tea and tea extracts.

There were no material changes in the nature of business of the 
Company and the Group other than mentioned above.

The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm that 
the Group has not engaged in any activities that contravene laws and 
regulations.

finanCiaL StateMentS
The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group are given on 
pages 146 to 209.

auditor’S rePort
The Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of the Company and 
the Group is given on page 145.

aCCountinG PoLiCieS
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial 
Statements are given on pages 154 to 171.

GrouP revenue
The revenue of the Group during the period was Rs. 8,647,349,071/- 
(Year 2013 - Rs. 6,790,011,785/-) and an analysis is given in Note 6.1 to 
the Financial Statements.

The Group revenue from tea increased by Rs. 1,876,853,336/- (Year 2013 
– Rs. 345,954,667/-) and rubber decreased by Rs. 27,368,558/- (Year 2013 
– Rs. 95,249,180/-) during the period, respectively.

reSuLtS and dividendS
The Group profit before taxation amounted to Rs. 102,406,674/-  
(Year 2013- Rs. 465,484,605/-).

After adjusting Rs. 45,866,841/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 79,962,434/-) and loss 
of Rs. 7,701,181 /- (Year 2013 – profit of Rs. 7,558,571/-) for taxation 
and non-controlling interest, respectively, the profit available for 
appropriation, inclusive of brought forward retained profit of  
Rs. 616,887,677/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 324,472,951/-) amounted to  
Rs. 655,056,030/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 735,888,251/-) of this, Rs.34,000,001/-  
(Year 2013 - Rs. 119,000,003.50) has been set aside for dividends. 

The Board of Directors recommends a first and final dividend of  
Rs. 1/- per share payable on 9 July, 2015 to the holders of the issued 
ordinary shares of the Company as at close of business on 29 June 2015. 
The dividend will be subject to a 10% tax deduction.

The Directors have confirmed that the Company satisfies the solvency 
test requirement under Section 57 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 
for the first and final dividend proposed. A solvency certificate by the 
Auditors has been sought in respect of the proposed dividend of Rs. 1/- 
(2013 - Rs. 3.50) per share.
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ProPerty, PLant & eQuiPMent
The capital expenditure of the Group during the period amounted to 
Rs. 1,062,961,647/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 553,318,847/-) whilst that of the 
Company was Rs. 580,651,690/- (Year 2013 – Rs. 472,812,616/-) which 
includes replanting expenditure of Rs. 458,045,650/- (Year 2013 -  
Rs. 389,647,948/-) on tea and rubber.

Information relating to movement of Property, Plant & Equipment is 
given in Notes 12, 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

Stated CaPitaL and reServeS
In compliance with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, the Financial 
Statements reflect the stated capital of the Company. The stated capital 
is the total of all amounts received by the Company in respect of the 
issue of shares.

The stated capital of the Company, consisting of 34,000,000 ordinary 
shares and one golden share amounts to Rs. 340,000,010/-.There was no 
change in the stated capital during the year. The Golden share of Rs. 10/- 
held by the Secretary to the Treasury, enjoys the following special rights:

 G  The concurrence of the Golden Shareholder should be obtained to 
sub-lease estate lands and amend the Articles of Association of the 
Company in which the Golden Shareholders’ rights are given.

 G  The Golden Shareholder, or his nominee, has the right to examine 
the books and accounts of the Company.

 G  The Company is required to submit a detailed quarterly report to 
the Golden Shareholder.

 G  The Golden Shareholder can request the Board of Directors of the 
Company to meet with him.

reServeS
The total reserves of the Group as at 31 March 2015 amounted to  
Rs. 2,355,056,030/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 2,435,888,251/-) comprising the 
general reserve of Rs. 1,700,000,000/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 1,700,000,000/-) and 
the carried forward profit of Rs. 655,056,030/- (Year 2013 -  
Rs. 735,888,251/-).

The movement is shown in the Statements of Changes in Equity in the 
Financial Statements.

taxation
It is the Company’s policy to provide for deferred taxation on all known 
temporary differences on the liability method. The Company is liable 

to income tax at the rate of 10% on its agricultural profits and 28% on 
manufacturing profits and other income for the year of assessment 2014/15.

Information relating to income tax rates of subsidiary companies is 
shown in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

intereSt reGiSter
The Company, in compliance with the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007, maintains an Interest Register. Particulars of entries in the 
Interest Register are detailed below. The subsidiary companies have 
unanimously agreed to dispense with the keeping of Interest Registers.

direCtorS’ intereStS in tranSaCtionS
The Directors of the Company have made the general disclosures 
provided for in Section 192 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.  
Note 31 to the Financial Statements dealing with related party 
disclosures includes details of their interests in transactions.

direCtorS’ intereStS in SHareS
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries who have relevant 
interests in the shares of the respective companies have disclosed 
their shareholdings and any acquisitions/ disposals to their Boards, in 
compliance with Section 200 of the Companies Act.

 
 

aS at 31.03.15 aS at 31.12.13
No. of ShareS No. of ShareS

Mr. W.G.R.Rajadurai,
Managing Director

91 91

Mr. S. Siriwardana,
Director

193 193

Dr.K.I.M.Ranasoma,
Director

300 300

None of the other Directors held shares of the company as at 31 March 2015.

There were no share transactions by the Directors, in terms of Section 
200 of the Companies Act in respect of the subsidiaries.

inSuranCe & indeMnity
The ultimate parent of the company, Hayleys PLC has obtained a corporate 
guard insurance policy from AIG Insurance Ltd. Providing worldwide cover 
to indemnify all past, present and future Directors & Officers (D & O) of its 
subsidiaries. The limit on liability of the cover is USD 5 m.

Stewardship
Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the Company

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the 
Company Contd.
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PayMent of reMuneration to direCtorS
Executive Directors’ remuneration is determined within an established 
framework. The total remuneration of the Executive Directors of the 
Group and the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 is  
Rs. 32,621,000/- and Rs. 10,618,000/- respectively, including the value of 
perquisites granted to them as part of their terms of service.

The total remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors of both 
Group and the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 is  
Rs. 1,906,000/- determined according to scales of payment decided 
upon by the Board previously. The Board is satisfied that the payment of 
this remuneration is fair to the Company.

CorPorate donationS
No donations were made during the period (Year 2013 - Nil) by the 
Company and its subsidiaries.

No donations were made for political purposes.

direCtorate
The names of the Directors who held office during the financial period 
are given below and their brief profiles appear on pages 92 and 93.

exeCutive direCtorS
A M Pandithage, W G R Rajadurai, S Siriwardana.

non-exeCutive direCtorS
S C Ganegoda , L T Samarawickrama , Dr. K I M Ranasoma.

indePendent non-exeCutive direCtorS
F Mohideen, C V Cabraal, L N De S Wijeyaratne.

Mr. A M Pandithage, Dr. K I M Ranasoma, and Mr. S Siriwardana retire by 
rotation, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Directors of the Subsidiaries and the Parent Company are given on 
pages 94.

CorPorate GovernanCe
The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Rules laid down 
under the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. The Corporate 
Governance section on pages 97 to 116 discusses this further.

Adoption of good governance practices has become an essential 
requirement in today’s corporate culture. The practices carried out by 
the Group are explained in the Corporate Governance Statement on 
pages 97 to 116.

auditorS
The Auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, were paid Rs.3,785,000/-  
(Year 2013 - Rs. . 3,213,000/-) and Rs. 2,956,000/- (Year 2013 -  
Rs. 2,688,000/-) by the Group and the Company respectively as audit 
fees for the financial period ended 31 March 2015.

In addition, the Group paid Rs. 740,930/- (Year 2013 - Rs. 975,700/-) to 
Messrs Ernst & Young for the period whilst the Company incurred  
Rs. 375,335/- (Year 2013 – Rs. 150,000/-) on non – audit related work 
which mainly consists of tax consultancy services.

The Auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries have confirmed that 
they do not have any relationships (other than that of Auditor) with, 
or interests in the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than those 
disclosed above.

Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants are deemed re-appointed, 
in term of Section 158 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, as Auditors of 
the Company.

A resolution proposing the directors be authorised to determine their 
remuneration will be submitted at the Annual General Meeting.

SHare inforMation and MaJor SHareHoLdinGS
Information relating to earnings, dividend, net assets per share, market 
value per share and share trading is shown on pages 12 and 211 
respectively.

SHareHoLderS
It is the Company/Group policy to endeavour to ensure equitable 
treatment to its shareholders. The twenty major shareholders’ names, 
number of shares held and the percentage held as at 31 March 2015 are 
given on page 212 of this report. Public shareholding percentage and 
total number of public shareholders is shown on page 212
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eventS oCCurrinG after tHe date of StateMent 
of finanCiaL PoSition
No circumstances have arisen since the date of Statement of Financial 
Position, which would require adjustments to, or disclosure of other 
than those disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

eMPLoyMent
The number of persons employed by the Group at financial year-end 
was 11,767 (Year 2013 - 12,842) of which 11,706 (Year 2013 - 12,671) are 
engaged in employment outside the District of Colombo.

Statutory PayMentS
The declaration relating to statutory payments is made in the Statement 
of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 141.

Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, are satisfied that all 
statutory payments in relation to employees and the Government have 
been made promptly.

environMentaL ProteCtion
The Group’s efforts to conserve scarce and non-renewable resources, as 
well as its environmental objectives and key initiatives, are described in 
the environment section of the Sustainability Report on pages 70 to 88.

The Group’s business activities can have direct and indirect effect on the 
environment. It is the Group’s policy to minimise any adverse effects of 
its activities may have on the environment and to promote co-operation 
and compliance with the relevant authorities and regulations.

internaL ControL
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s 
system of internal control. The system is designed to give assurance, 
inter alia, regarding the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of 
proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information 
generated. However, any system can only ensure reasonable and not 
absolute assurance that errors and irregularities are either prevented or 
detected within a reasonable time period.

The Board, having reviewed the system of internal controls, is satisfied 
with its effectiveness for the period up to the date of signing the 
Financial Statements.

GoinG ConCern
The Directors, after making necessary inquiries and reviews including 
reviews of the Group’s budget for the ensuing year, capital expenditure 
requirements, future prospects and risks, cash flows and borrowing 
facilities, have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the 
Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the going concern basis has been 
adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements.

annuaL GeneraL MeetinG
The Annual General Meeting will be held at the registered office of the 
Company at No. 400, Deans Road, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka on Monday, 
29 June 2015 at 3.00 p.m. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting 
appears on page 218.

For and on behalf of the Board,

a M Pandithage
Chairman

W G r rajadurai
Managing Director

Hayleys Group Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries

08 May 2015

Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the 
Company Contd.
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G4-5 Inner-back Cover of this report 
G4-6 Inner-back Cover of this report 
G4-7 Inner-back Cover of this report
G4-8 Revenue distribution local & global 14
G4-9 Operational Review

Financial review
Human Capital Development

41/42
51
62/63

G4-10 Human Capital Development 63
G4-11 Human Capital Development 63
G4-12 Value creation 31
G4-13 Chairman’s Review/ Corporate Governance 19/98-116
G4-14 Financial review/ Risk Management 51/124-130
G4-15 Introduction/ Value creation/ Environmental Sustainability/  

Financial review
2/20/43/76/ 
31

G4-16 Highlights 13
IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES
G4-17 Inner Back Cover of this report 
G4-18 Materiality Assessment 6
G4-19 Materiality Assessment 7
G4-20 Materiality Assessment 7
G4-21 Materiality Assessment 7
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material
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G4-24 Materiality Assessment/ 6/58-60
G4-25 Materiality Assessment 6
G4-26 Stakeholder engagement 58-60
G4-27 Stakeholder engagement 58-60
REPORT PROFILE
G4-28 Introduction/ Chairman’s Review/ Operational Review 2/19/40

G4-29 Introduction 2

G4-30 About this report/ Chairman’s Review 2/19
G4-31 Inner back cover of this report
G4-32 About this report 2

G4-33 Independent Assurance Report on the Sustainability Report 89
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G4-34 Corporate governance 98

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY
G4-56 Introduction 5
SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES
ASPECT: ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
G4-EC1 Statement of Value Addition/ Economic Contribution 56
G4-EC2 Risk Management/ Notes to The Financial Statements 117-130/ 174
G4-EC3  Notes to The Financial Statements 173
G4-EC4 Notes to The Financial Statements 174/ 190
ASPECT: MARKET PRESENCE
G4-EC6 Human Capital Development 65
ASPECT: INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS
G4-EC7 Human Capital Development 66
G4-EC8 Human Capital Development 64/ 67/68
ASPECT: PROCUREMENT PRACTICES
G4-EC9 Value creation 31
ASPECT: MATERIALS 
G4-EN1 Environmental sustainability 72
G4-EN2 Environmental sustainability 73
ASPECT: ENERGY
G4-EN3 Environmental sustainability 74
G4-EN5 Environmental sustainability 74
G4-EN6 Environmental sustainability 74
ASPECT: WATER
G4-EN8 Environmental sustainability 77
ASPECT: BIODIVERSITY
G4-EN 11 Environmental sustainability 80-84
G4-EN13 Environmental sustainability 84

G4-EN14 Environmental sustainability 84

ASPECT: EMISSIONS
G4-EN 15 Environmental sustainability 87 Not reporting this 
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G4-EN 16 Environmental sustainability 87 Not reporting this FY
ASPECT: EFFLUENTS AND WASTE 
G4-EN21 Environmental sustainability 87
G4-EN22 Environmental sustainability 78
G4-EN23 Environmental sustainability 77
ASPECT: PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
G4-EN28 Environmental sustainability 88
ASPECT: COMPLIANCE

G4-EN29 Environmental sustainability 88
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ASPECT: OVERALL

G4-EN31 Environmental sustainability 88

ASPECT: SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENT ASSESSMENT
G4-EN32 Environmental sustainability 88
ASPECT: ENVIRONMENT GRIEVANCE MECHANISMS
G4-EN34 Environmental sustainability 88
ASPECT: EMPLOYMENT
G4-LA1 Human Capital Development 62/63
G4-LA2 Human Capital Development 62/63
G4-LA3 Human Capital Development 62/63
ASPECT: LABOUR MANAGEMENT RELATIONS 
G4-LA4 Human Capital Development 62/63/67
ASPECT: OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY 
G4-LA5 Human Capital Development 63
G4-LA6 Human Capital Development 64
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ASPECT: TRAINING AND EDUCATION
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ASPECT:DIVESITY AND EQUAL OPPOTUNITY
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ASPECT:EQUAL REMUNERATION FOR WOMEN AND MEN 
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ASPECT: CHILD LABOUR
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ASPECT: FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOUR

G4- HR6 Human Capital Development 62 Aspect is not 
material 
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ASPECT: ASSESSMENT
G4- HR9 Human Capital Development 61
ASPECT: SUPPLIER HUMAN RIGHT ASSESSMENT
G4- HR10 Human Capital Development 62

G4- HR11 Human Capital Development 62

ASPECT: HUMAN RIGHTS GRIEVANCE MECHANISM
G4- HR12 Human Capital Development 64
ASPECT : LOCAL COMMUNITIES 
G4-SO1 Human Capital Development 66
G4-SO2 Human Capital Development 66
ASPECT: ANTI CORRUPTION 
G4-SO4 Human Capital Development 61
G4-SO5 Human Capital Development 61
ASPECT: PUBLIC POLICY
G4-SO6 Human Capital Development 61
ASPECT: ANTI COMPETITIVE BEAVIOUR
G4-SO7 Human Capital Development Aspect is not 
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ASPECT: ASSESSMENT FOR IMPACTS ON SOCIETY
G4-SO8 Human Capital Development 68
ASPECT: SUPPLIER ASSESSMENT FOR IMPACTS ON SOCIETY
G4-SO9 Human Capital Development 31
ASPECT: GRIEVANCE MECHANISM FOR IMPACTS ON SOCIETY
G4-SO11 Human Capital Development 64
ASPECT: CUSTOMER HEALTH
G4-PR1 Product responsibility 30
G4-PR2 Product responsibility 30
ASPECT: PRODCUT AND SERVICE LABELLING
G4-PR3 Product responsibility 30
G4-PR4 Product responsibility 31
G4-PR6 Product responsibility Aspect is not 

material 
G4-PR7 Product responsibility 31
ASPECT: CUSTOMER PRIVACY 
G4-PR8 Product responsibility 31
ASPECT: COMPLIANCE 
G4-PR9 Product responsibility 31



“Working in the plantation used to be back breaking but we never 
knew any other way. It was how our parents plucked tea and those 
before them. Now, with the new light weight baskets, I don’t have 
to worry about the daily aches and pains and I never have to miss a 
day of work”.

Mrs. Sankhavee Seivadurai

It has a    story
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Statement of Director’s Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible under sections 150, 151, 152 (1), & 153 
of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, to ensure compliance with the 
requirements set out therein to prepare financial statements for each 
financial year, giving a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit & loss of the Company and the Group for the financial year.

The Directors are also responsible, under section 148, for ensuring that 
proper accounting records are kept, to enable determination of financial 
position with reasonable accuracy, preparation of financial statements 
and audit of such statements to be carried out readily and properly.

The Board accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of 
the financial statements presented. The Directors confirm that in 
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies 
have been selected and applied consistently, while reasonable and 
prudent judgments have been made, so that the form and substance of 
transactions are properly reflected.

They also confirm that the financial statements have been prepared 
and presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting standards, 
Companies Act No 07 of 2007 and the listing rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. Further, the financial statements provide the information 
required by the Companies Act and the listing rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on their knowledge of the 
Company, key operations and specific inquiries that adequate resources 
exist to support the Company on a going concern basis over the next 
year. These financial statements have been prepared on that basis.

The Directors have taken reasonable measures to safeguard the assets 
of the Group and, in that context, have instituted appropriate systems of 
internal control with a view to preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

As required by Section 56(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the 
Board of Directors has authorised distribution of the dividends now 
proposed, being satisfied based on information available to them, that 
the Company would satisfy the Solvency Test after such distributions, 
in accordance with section 57 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 and 
have sought in respect of the dividend now proposed a, Certificate of 
Solvency from its auditors.

The external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young deemed re- appointed in 
terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act were provided with every 
opportunity to undertake the inspections they considered appropriate 
to enable them to form their opinion on the Financial Statements. The 
report of the auditors, shown on page 145 sets out their responsibilities 
in relation to the Financial Statements.

ComplianCe RepoRt
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all statutory 
payments relating to employees and the Government that were due in 
respect of the Company and its Subsidiaries as at the date of statement 
of Financial Position have been paid or where relevant, provided for.

By order of the Board

HaYleYS GRoUp SeRViCeS (pVt) ltD.
Secretaries

08 May 2015
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee is responsible for the financial reporting process, 
selection of the independent auditor and receipt of audit results both 
internal and external.

teRmS of RefeRenCe (toR)
The role, duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out 
in a written TOR, which is reviewed annually by the Committee taking 
into account relevant legislation and recommended good practice. 
The Committee assists the Board in its oversight responsibility to the 
existing and prospective shareholders and other stakeholders, relating 
to:

 G  Review of the financial information of the Company in order to 
monitor the integrity of the Financial Statements, Annual Report, 
accounts and quarterly reports of the Company.

 G  The quality and acceptability of the Company’s accounting policies 
and practices.

 G Assessing the independence and monitoring performance and 
functions of internal audit

 G  Overseeing the appointment, compensation, resignation, dismissal 
of the external auditors.

 G  Independence and performance of the external auditors.
 G  Compliance with the reporting and information requirements 

specified in the Companies Act or any other reporting standards or 
regulations.

 G  Review strength and adequacy of internal control and risk 
management.

 
ReGUlatoRY ComplianCe
The TOR is reviewed regularly and revised where necessary with the 
approval of the Board in order to keep pace with the changing risk 
profile of the Group and in line with the best practices adopted by listed 
companies. The relevant provisions of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007, 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Sri Lanka and the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka (CASL) are considered in reviewing and revising the Audit 
Committee TOR.

CompoSition
The Audit Committee, appointed by and responsible to the Board of 
Directors, comprise of three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The 
Chairman, Chief Financial Officer of Hayleys PLC, Managing Director and 
the Director/CFO of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC attend meetings of the 

Committee by invitation. Other members of the Board and the external 
auditors are requested to  be present at discussions where appropriate. 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a senior Chartered Accountant.

The names of the members are
Mr. L N De S Wijeyeratne – Chairman 
Mr. F Mohideen 
Mr. C V Cabraal

Their individual and collective financial knowledge and business 
acumen and the independence of the Audit Committee are brought to 
bear on their deliberations and judgments on matters that fall within 
the purview of the Committee.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the activities of the four 
unquoted subsidiary companies during the financial period under 
review.

meetinGS
The Audit Committee met five times during the period. The attendance 
of the members at these meetings is as follows:

Independent Non-
Executive Director

07
/0

2/
20

14

05
/0

5/
20

14

04
/0

8/
20

14

27
/1

0/
20

14

13
/0

2/
20

15

To
ta

l

Mr. L N De S Wijeyeratne 
(Chairman)

√ √ √ √ √ 5/5

Mr. F Mohideen √ √ √ √ √ 5/5

Mr. C V Cabraal √ √ √ √ x 4/5

KeY pRinCiple aCtiVitieS CaRRieD DURinG tHe YeaR
Oversight of Financial Reporting and Accounting 
The Committee reviewed the financial reporting system adopted by 
the Company and it’s subsidiaries in the preparation of its quarterly 
and annual Financial Statements to ensure the reliability of the process 
and consistency of the accounting policies and methods adopted 
and their compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. In 
addition, members will often discuss complex accounting estimates 
and judgments made by management and the implementation of 
new accounting principles or regulations. The methodology included 
obtaining statements of compliance from the Managing Director 
and the Chief Financial Officer. The Committee recommended the 
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Financial Statements to the Board for its deliberations and issuance. 
The Committee, in its evaluation of the financial reporting system, also 
recognised the adequacy of the content and quality of the management 
information reports forwarded to its members.

Review the effectiveness of Internal Controls, internal audit and 
Risk Management
The Audit Committee regularly reviewed the process to assess the 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls that have been designed 
to provide reasonable assurance to the Directors that assets are 
safeguarded and that the financial reporting system can be relied upon 
in preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and that 
fraud is prevented. Procedures relating to the continuous monitoring 
and reporting of key control elements in Group Companies were 
reviewed and action plans for the ensuing year were formulated.

The Committee reviews the adequacy of internal audit coverage 
for the reporting period. The Group Management Audit and System 
Review Department (MA&SRD) conducted internal audits according 
to the annual plan. The internal audit function also outsourced to 
leading audit firms according to the annual audit plan. The Committee 
appraises the annual audit plan, independence of them and the follow-
up action taken against the audits carried during the period.

The committee reviews the risk management process. A formal 
confirmation and assurance have been received from the management 
on a quarterly basis regarding the strategies and efficacy of risk 
management. The Committee reviewed risk management procedure of 
the Company in terms of adverse price changes in the market, long term 
debtor balances, low customer profitability in exports.

exteRnal aUDit
The Audit Committee held meetings with the external auditors to review 
and monitor the scope of the audit, the objectivity and effectiveness 
of the audit process and the management letters issued by them in 
respect of the Group of companies. Action taken by the management in 
response to the issues raised, as well as the effectiveness of the internal 
controls in place, were discussed with the heads of business units. 
Remedial action was recommended wherever necessary.

The Committee reviewed the nature, extent and value of non-audit 
work the external auditors had undertaken, to ensure that it did not 
compromise their independence.

appointment of aUDitoRS
The Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that 
Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants be re-appointed for the 
financial year ending 31 March 2016, subject to the approval at the 
Annual General Meeting.

ConClUSion
The Audit Committee wishes to acknowledge with thanks the services 
rendered by auditors, Ernst & Young and their efforts to meet the 
requirements and expectations of the Company.

The contribution made by the members of the Committee is 
acknowledged with grateful appreciation. Their competence in financial 
matters and relevant experience was invaluable for the Company’s 
continuous success.

l n De S Wijeyeratne
Chairman
Audit Committee

08 May 2015
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Managing Director’s and Chief 
Financial Officer’s Statement of 

Responsibility   
The Financial Statements of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC and the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, as at 31 March, 2015 
are prepared and presented in compliance with the requirements of the 
following:

 G Sri Lanka Accounting Standards issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka;

 G Companies Act No. 07 of 2007;
 G Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995;
 G Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange; and
 G Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

We confirm that the significant accounting policies used in the 
preparation of the Financial Statements are appropriate and are 
constantly applied, as described in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. The significant accounting policies and estimates that 
involved a high degree of judgment and complexity were discussed with 
the Audit Committee and our external auditors.

We have taken measures in installing systems of internal control and 
accounting records, to safeguard assets, and to prevent and detect 
frauds as well as other irregularities. These have been reviewed, 
evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis. Reasonable assurance that 
the established policies and procedures have been consistently followed 
was provided through periodic audits conducted by the Hayleys Group 
Internal Auditors (MA & SRD) and our own internal auditors. However, 
there are inherent limitations that should be recognised in weighing the 
assurances provided by any system of internal controls and accounting.

The Audit Committee of the Company meets quarterly and additionally 
if required with the internal auditors and the Independent auditors to 
review the effectiveness of the audits, and to discuss auditing, internal 
control and financial reporting issues. The Independent auditors and 
the internal auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee to 
discuss any matter of substance.

The Financial Statements were audited by Messrs Ernst & Young, 
Chartered Accountants, the Independent external auditors. Their report 
is given on page 149 of the Annual Report.

The Audit Committee approves the audit and non-audit services 

provided by the external auditor, in order to ensure that the provision of 
such services does not impair their independence.

We confirm that:
 G The Company and its subsidiaries have complied with all applicable 

laws, regulations and prudential requirements:
 G There are no non-compliances: and
 G There is no material litigation that is pending against the Group.

W G R Rajadurai
Managing Director

Sarath Siriwardana
Chief Financial Officer

08 May 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

ADBT/CSW/SJJC

to tHe SHaReHolDeRS of Kelani ValleY plantationS 
plC

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Kelani 
Valley Plantations PLC (“the Company”) and the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at March 31, 2015 and 
the Statement of profit or loss and Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the period then 
ended, and a summary of significant Accounting Policies and other 
explanatory notes.

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the preparation of 
these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and for such internal control as 
Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial 
Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation of the Financial Statements that give a true and 

fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2015, and 
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we 
state the following:
a) The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the audit are as 

stated above.
b) In our opinion:

 G  we have obtained all the information and explanations that were 
required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, 
proper accounting records have been kept by the Company,

 G  the Financial Statements of the Company give a true and fair 
view of its financial position as at March 31, 2015, and of its 
financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and

 G  the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group 
comply with the requirements of sections 151 and 153 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

08 May 2015
Colombo
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Revenue  6.1 8,647,349 6,790,012 4,939,780 4,322,044
Cost of sales   (7,908,047) (5,904,292) (4,519,040) (3,713,535)
Gross profit  6.2 739,302 885,720 420,740 608,509
Gain on change in fair value of biological assets  14.2 24,851 14,945 24,851 14,945
Other income  7 78,822 45,851 95,434 54,299
Administrative expenses   (520,036) (391,670) (303,452) (256,989)
Distribution expenses   (97,733) (43,988) - -
Results from operating activities   225,206 510,858 237,573 420,764
Finance income  8.1 10,013 65,654 9,826 56,963
Finance expenses  8.2 (53,783) (52,712) (14,984) (20,830)
Interest paid to Government on finance lease  8.3 (79,029) (58,315) (79,029) (58,315)
net finance cost  8 (122,799) (45,373) (84,187) (22,182)
profit before tax  9 102,407 465,485 153,386 398,582
Tax expense  10.1 (49,912) (73,792) (36,795) (50,898)
profit for the period/year   52,495 391,693 116,591 347,684

attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company   60,241 384,134 116,591 347,684
Non-controlling interest   (7,746) 7,559 - -
profit for the period/year   52,495 391,693 116,591 347,684

earnings per Share 
Basic earnings per share (Rs.)  11.1 (A) 1.77 11.30 3.43 10.23
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)  11.1 (B) 1.77 11.30 3.43 10.23

Dividend per Share (Rs.)  11.2   1.00 3.50

The current year results comprises of a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2015. The comparative amounts comprise as at and 
for the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2013. Therefore, amounts presented in the Financial Statements are not entirely comparable.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 154 to 209 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Profit for the period /year   52,495 391,693 116,591 347,684
other Comprehensive income 
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified as profit or loss  
 in subsequent periods:
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets   - (5,299) - .
Income tax effect    - - -

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss  
in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans   (26,073) 38,750 (26,100) 37,579
Income tax effect  10.2 4,045 (6,170) 4,113 (5,922)

Other comprehensive income for the period /year, net of tax   (22,028) 27,281 (21,987) 31,657
Total comprehensive income for the period /year, net of tax   30,467 418,974 94,604 379,341

attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company   38,168 411,415 94,604 379,341
Non-controlling interest   (7,701) 7,559 - -
profit for the period /year   30,467 418,974 94,604 379,341

The current year results comprises of a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2015. The comparative amounts comprise as at and 
for the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2013. Therefore, amounts presented in the Financial Statements are not entirely comparable.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 154 to 209 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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  Consolidated Company
    as at as at as at as at  
  notes 31.03.2015 31.12.2013 31.03.2015 31.12.2013 
    Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

aSSetS
non-current assets
Lease hold property, plant & equipment  12 429,757 463,690 429,757 463,690 
Freehold property, plant & equipment  13 1,839,404 1,417,551 1,035,997 1,043,154 
Improvements to leasehold property  14.1 2,795,516 2,409,818 2,795,516 2,409,818 
Biological assets - consumable  14.2 105,005 83,426 105,005 83,426 
Investments in subsidiaries  15 - - 459,881 309,881 
Intangible assets  16 34,188 34,321 - - 
total non-current assets   5,203,870 4,408,806 4,826,156 4,309,969 

Current assets
Inventories  17 866,133 864,344 455,025 666,977 
Amounts due from subsidiaries  29 - - 5,487 16,434 
Amounts due from other related companies  29 91,350 129,072 89,835 129,072 
Trade and other receivables  18 737,204 692,403 220,290 161,790 
Income tax recoverable  28.1 1,015 812 - 674 
Short-term deposits  20.1 40,021 200,138 - 200,000 
Cash and cash equivalents  20.2 54,202 51,547 2,559 19,536 
total current assets   1,789,925 1,938,316 773,196 1,194,483 
total assets   6,993,795 6,347,122 5,599,352 5,504,452 



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

149

Financial Reports
Statement of  Financial Position

  Consolidated Company
    as at as at as at as at  
  notes 31.03.2015 31.12.2013 31.03.2015 31.12.2013 
    Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

eQUitY anD liaBilitieS
equity
Stated capital  21 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 
Revenue reserves   2,355,056 2,435,888 2,283,564 2,307,960 
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company   2,695,056 2,775,888 2,623,564 2,647,960 
Non-controlling interest   158,739 22,322 - - 
total equity   2,853,795 2,798,210 2,623,564 2,647,960 

non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings  22.1 432,145 98,327 156,562 56,115 
Deferred income  23 478,357 476,204 477,553 475,368 
Deferred tax liability  24 393,243 363,132 342,903 320,232 
Retirement benefit obligations  25 1,122,870 1,046,403 1,101,270 1,027,537 
Liability to make lease payment  26 393,871 395,060 393,871 395,060 
total non-current liabilities   2,820,486 2,379,126 2,472,159 2,274,312 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables  27 430,376 523,942 351,587 470,201 
Liability to make lease payment within one year  26 52,547 52,547 52,547 52,547 
Amounts due to subsidiaries  29 - - 12,310 12,497 
Amounts due to other related companies  29 17,280 5,933 13,416 5,933 
Income tax payable  28.2 7,780 7,352 6,086 - 
Interest-bearing borrowings payable within one year  22.1 37,680 49,820 16,493 35,749 
Short-term interest bearing borrowings  22.3 722,661 513,895 - - 
Bank overdraft  20.3 51,190 16,297 51,190 5,253 
total current liabilities   1,319,514 1,169,786 503,629 582,180 
total liabilities   4,140,000 3,548,912 2,975,788 2,856,492 
total equity and liabilities   6,993,795 6,347,122 5,599,352 5,504,452 
Net assets per share (Rs.)   79.27 81.64 77.16 77.88 

It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Sarath Siriwardana
Director / Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.  
Signed for and on behalf of the Board,

                   
a m pandithage W G R Rajadurai 
Chairman Managing Director 

08 May 2015
Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 154 to 209 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated attributable to equity holders of the company   
  Revenue Reserves 
 Stated General timber Retained total non- total 
 capital reserve reserve earnings  controlling   equity 
      interest  
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Balance as at 01 January 2013 340,000 1,700,000 7,643 520,830 2,568,473 16,667 2,585,140
Profit for the year - - 14,945 369,189 384,134 7,559 391,693
Other comprehensive income - - - 27,281 27,281 - 27,281
Dividends - - - (204,000) (204,000) (23) (204,023)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - - - - - (1,881) (1,881)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 340,000 1,700,000 22,588 713,300 2,775,888 22,322 2,798,210

Profit for the period - - 24,851 35,390 60,241 (7,746) 52,495
Other comprehensive income - - - (22,073) (22,073) 45 (22,028)
Dividends - - - (119,000) (119,000) - (119,000)
Increase in non-controlling interest - - - - - 144,118 144,118
Balance as at 31 march 2015 340,000 1,700,000 47,439 607,617 2,695,056 158,739 2,853,795
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Company Revenue Reserves
  Stated General timber Retained total 
  capital reserve reserve earnings equity 
  Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Balance as at 01 January 2013  340,000 1,700,000 7,643 424,976 2,472,619 

Profit for the year  - - 14,945 332,739 347,684 
Other comprehensive income  - - - 31,657 31,657 
Dividends  - - - (204,000) (204,000)
Balance as at 31 December, 2013  340,000 1,700,000 22,588 585,372 2,647,960 

Profit for the period  - - 24,851 91,740 116,591 
Other comprehensive income  - - - (21,987) (21,987)
Dividends  - - - (119,000) (119,000)
Balance as at 31 march 2015  340,000 1,700,000 47,439 536,125 2,623,564 

Retained earnings  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Holding company   583,564 607,960 583,564 607,960 
Subsidiaries   71,492 127,929 - - 
    655,056 735,888 583,564 607,960 

General Reserves set aside for future distribution and investment.
The Timber Reserve relates to change in fair value of managed trees which includes commercial timber plantations cultivated on estates.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 154 to 209 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December    2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax   102,407 465,485 153,386 398,582

adjustments for;
Interest on Government finance lease  8.3 79,029 58,315 79,029 58,315
Finance expenses  8.2 53,783 52,712 14,984 20,830
Finance income  8.1 (10,013) (65,654) (9,826) (56,963)
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment  7 (11,344) (6,365) (7,823) (6,329)
Gains on fair value of biological assets  14.2 (24,851) (14,945) (24,851) (14,945)
Dividend income  7 - - (20,106) (7,853)
Depreciation  13/14 256,841 173,856 203,543 145,212
Lease amortisation  12 33,933 25,388 33,933 25,388
Amortisation of intangible assets  16 373 646 - -
Provision for retirement benefit obligations  25 187,299 184,349 183,604 180,424
Amortisation of capital grants  23 (19,591) (16,469) (19,559) (16,443)
Provision/(reversal) for obsolete stocks  17 (3,763) 3,885 (1,737) 3,189
Provision/(reversal) for doubtful debts  18 22,293 498 (378) (613)
operating profit before working capital changes   666,396 861,701 584,199 728,794

(Increase)/decrease in inventories   1,975 (148,768) 213,689 (141,112)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables   (67,095) (12,516) (58,122) (60,419)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related companies   37,722 30,849 50,184 48,312
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables   (103,732) 20,863 (122,760) 21,076
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to related companies   11,347 (5,744) 7,296 (2,511)
Cash generated from operating activities   546,613 746,385 674,486 594,140

Interest paid on Government finance lease  8.3 (79,029) (58,315) (79,029) (58,315)
Interest paid  8 (46,882) (47,785) (14,984) (20,830)
Taxes paid   (9,167) (31,987) (2,907) (27,228)
Retirement benefit obligations paid  25 (136,905) (124,339) (135,971) (122,891)
net cash flow from operating activities   274,630 483,959 441,595 364,876

Cash flows from investing activities
Field development expenditure  14.1 (473,458) (395,770) (473,458) (395,770)
Interest received   10,013 61,927 9,826 53,236
Exchange loss   (6,901) (4,089) - -
Dividends received  7 - - 20,106 7,853
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment  13 (589,503) (157,548) (107,193) (77,042)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & equipment   13,184 6,538 9,662 6,502
Acquisition of non-controlling interest   - (1,881) - (1,881)
Investment in subsidiaries   - - (150,000) -
Acquisition of intangible assets   (240) (1,246) - -
net cash used in investing activities   (1,046,905) (492,069) (691,057) (407,102)
net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing activities   (772,275) (8,110) (249,462) (42,226)
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in non-controlling interest   144,118 - - -
Dividend paid   (115,196) (181,936) (115,196) (181,911)
Capital settlement of net liability to lessor  26 (1,189) (1,062) (1,189) (1,062)
Short-term loans obtained during the period   4,022,862 100,000 - 100,000
Short-term loans repaid during the period   (3,814,097) (162,421) - (100,000)
Long-term loans obtained during the period  22 420,041 56,283 150,000 -
Long-term loans repaid during the period  22 (98,363) (62,132) (68,809) (44,961)
Grants received  23 21,744 3,911 21,744 3,911
net cash used in financing activities   579,920 (247,357) (13,450) (224,023)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (192,355) (255,467) (262,912) (266,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  20 235,388 490,855 214,283 480,532
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (note a)   43,033 235,388 (48,629) 214,283

note: a analysis of Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances  20.2 54,202 51,547 2,559 19,536
Short-term deposits  20.1 40,021 200,138 - 200,000
    94,223 251,685 2,559 219,536
Bank overdraft  20.3 (51,190) (16,297) (51,190) (5,253)
Cash and cash equivalents   43,033 235,388 (48,629) 214,283

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 154 to 209 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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1. RepoRtinG entitY
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC was incorporated on 18 June, 1992 under 
the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 (The Company was re-registered 
under the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007) in terms of the provisions of 
the Conversion of Public Corporation and Government-Owned Business 
Undertakings into Public Companies under Public Companies Act No. 
23 of 1987.

The registered office of the Company is located at No 400, Deans Road, 
Colombo 10, and Plantations are situated in the planting districts of 
Nuwara Eliya, Hatton and Yatiyantota.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo Stock 
Exchange of Sri Lanka.

All companies in the Group are limited liability companies incorporated 
and domiciled in Sri Lanka.

The reporting period of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, Kalupahana 
Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. (“KPC”) and Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) 
Ltd. (“KVIT”) has been changed from 31 December to 31 March in order 
to align with the parents reporting period. Therefore, the current year 
information comprises a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2014 
to 31 March 2015. The comparative amounts comprise as at and for the 
period of twelve months ended 31 December 2013. Therefore, amounts 
presented in the Financial Statements are not entirely comparable. 
The disclosures pertaining to change of the financial reporting period 
has been made in accordance with LKAS 1: Presentation of Financial 
Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Kelani Valley Plantations 
PLC., as at and for the fifteen months period ended 31 March, 2015 
comprise the Company and its Subsidiaries namely, Kalupahana Power 
Company (Pvt) Ltd., Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd., Mabroc Teas 
(Pvt) Ltd. (“MTPL”) and Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. (“HGBL”) 
(together referred to as the ‘Group’).

The Financial Statements of all companies in the Group are prepared for 
a common financial year, which ends on 31 March.

1.1 Principle Activities and nature of the operations
During the year, the principal activities of the company were the 
producing and processing of tea and rubber.

Principal activities of other companies in the Group are as follows.

Company Nature of the business
Kalupahana Power Company 
(Pvt) Ltd.

Generating Hydropower

Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) 
Ltd.

Manufacture of Ready-To-Drink 
Tea Powder

Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. Export of Bulk and Retail Packed 
Tea

Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) 
Ltd.

Manufacturing Instant Tea and 
Tea Extracts

1.2 Holding Company
The Company is a subsidiary of DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd., which is 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dipped Products PLC whose ultimate 
parent enterprise is Hayleys PLC.

1.3 Date of Authorisation for issue.
The Financial Statements of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC for the period 
ended 31 March 2015, were authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Board of Directors on 08 May 2015.

1.4 Responsibility for Financial Statements.
The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the Financial 
Statements is set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibility 
Report in the Annual Report.
 
2. BaSiS of pRepeRation
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group which 
comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows Statement together with Accounting 
Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements (“the  Consolidated 
Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995, which 
requires compliance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards promulgated 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CASL), and with 
the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

2.2 Basis of Measurement
These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the historical cost convention other than following 
items in the Financial Statements.
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 G  Right to use of land and leased assets of JEDB/SLSPC have been 
revalued as described in Note 12 to the Financial Statements

 G  Managed consumable biological assets are measured at fair value

Where appropriate, the specific policies are explained in the succeeding 
Notes.

No adjustments have been made for inflationary factors in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.), 
which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. All financial 
information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been given to the 
nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

2.4 Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Items of a dissimilar nature or 
function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
 
3 SUmmaRY of SiGnifiCant aCCoUntinG poliCieS
The accounting policies set out below are consistent with those used 
in the previous year. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the Group.

3.1 Comparative Information
The amounts presented in the Financial Statements are not entirely 
comparable due to changes of the reporting period. Please refer Note 01 
for further clarifications.

Comparative information has where necessary been reclassified to 
conform with the current year’s presentation.

3.2 Going Concern
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
assumption that The Company is a going concern. The Directors have 
made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in the foreseeable future, and they do not foresee a need for 
liquidation or cessation of trading, to justify adopting the going concern 
basis in preparing these Financial Statements.

3.3 Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial 
Statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015. 
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the 
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

 G  Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current 
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

 G  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the investee

 G  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result 
in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less 
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group 
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it 
has power over an investee, including:

 G  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the 
investee

 G  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
 G  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts 
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of 
the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins 
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when 
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period 
are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date 
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income 
(OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group 
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, 
adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting 
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses 
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group 
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of 
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related 
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other 
components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

3.3.1 Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of 
the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value 
and the amount of any Non-Controlling Interest in the acquiree. For 
each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures 
the Non-Controlling Interest in the acquiree either at fair value or 
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. 
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in 
administrative expenses. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets 
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation 
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and 
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held 
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any 
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent 
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial 
instrument and within the scope of LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes 
in fair value recognised either in either profit or loss or as a charge to 
OCI. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of LKAS 39, 
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate SLFRS. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and 
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for 
non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value 
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 

transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified 
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews 
the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at 
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of 
the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration 
transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition 
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other 
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part 
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated 
with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the 
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill 
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative 
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating 
unit retained. 

3.4 Current versus Non-current Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in Statement of Financial 
Position based on current/non-current classification. 

an asset as current when it is: 
 G  Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal 

operating cycle 
 G  Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 G  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting 

period or 
 G  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged 

or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

 G   All other assets are classified as non-current. 

a liability is current when: 
 G  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle  
 G  It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 G  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 

period Or 
 G  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.

Financial Reports
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The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets 
and liabilities. 
 
3.5 Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments and non-financial assets 
at fair value at each Statement of Financial Position date. Fair value 
related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets 
that are measured at fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are 
summarised in the following notes: 

 G  Managed consumable biological assets-Note 14.2 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either: 

 G  In the principal market for the asset or liability or 
 G  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 

market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by 
the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset 
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair 
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the Financial Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 

described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 G  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities 

 G  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable 

 G  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements 
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have 
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such 
as managed consumable biological assets. Involvement of external 
valuers is decided upon annually by the Management Committee after 
discussion with and approval by the Company’s Audit Committee. 
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence 
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Management 
Committee decides, after discussions with the Group’s external valuers, 
which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined 
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 
as explained above. 

3.6 Foreign Currencies
The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in  
Sri Lankan Rupees, which is also the parent company’s functional 
currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency 
and items included in the Financial Statements of each entity are 
measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s 
entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the 
transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the 
reporting date.

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are 
recognised in profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that 
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a 
foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment 
is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified 
to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange 
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of 
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in 
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation 
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item 
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or 
loss, respectively). 

3.7 Cash Dividend and Non-cash Distribution to Equity Holders 
of the Parent 

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash 
distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is 
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the 
Company. A distribution is authorised when it is approved by the 
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be 
distributed with fair value remeasurement recognised directly in equity. 

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the 
carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets 
distributed is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

3.8 Property, Plant & Equipment
The Group applies the requirements of LKAS 16 on ‘Property Plant and 
Equipment’ in accounting for its owned assets which are held for and use 
in the provision of the services, for rental to other or for administration 
purpose and are expected to be used for more than one year. 

3.8.1 Basis of Recognition.
Property Plant and Equipment is recognised if it is probable that future 
economic benefit associated with the assets will flow to the Group and 
cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

3.8.2 Measurement
Items of Property, Plant & Equipment are measured at cost (or at 
fair value in the case of land) less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.8.3 Owned Assets
The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment includes expenditures that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Such costs includes 
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and 
borrowing costs for long terms construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost 
of materials and direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the 
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on 
which they are located. 

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalised as a part of that equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to 
be replaced at intervals, the entity recognises such parts as individual 
assets (major components) with specific useful lives and depreciation, 
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost 
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as 
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the 
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts 
at the time of first utilisation or at the time the asset is commissioned.

3.8.4 Leased Assets
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease 
is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of 
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Group as a lessee 
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating 
lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease. 
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Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease 
at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments 
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, 
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership 
by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of 
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the 
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

3.8.5 De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part 
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is 
derecognised and gains are not classified as revenue. 

3.8.6 Land Development Cost
Permanent land development costs are those costs incurred in making 
major infrastructure development and building new access roads on 
leasehold lands. 

These costs have been capitalised and amortised over the remaining 
lease period

Permanent impairments to land development costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit or Loss in full or reduced to the net carrying amounts 
of such assets in the year of occurrence after ascertaining the loss. 

3.8.7 Biological Assets 
Biological assets are classified in to mature biological assets and 
immature biological assets. Mature biological assets are those that 
have attained harvestable specifications or are able to sustain regular 
harvests. Immature biological assets are those that have not yet 
attained harvestable specifications. Tea, rubber, other plantations and 
nurseries are classified as biological assets. 

Biological assets are further classified as bearer biological assets and 
consumable biological assets. Bearer biological asset includes tea 
and rubber trees, those that are not intended to be sold or harvested, 
however used to grow for harvesting agricultural produce from such 
biological assets. Consumable biological assets includes managed 
timber trees those that are to be harvested as agricultural produce or 
sold as biological assets.

The entity recognise the biological assets when, and only when, the 
entity controls the assets as a result of past event, it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the 
entity and the fair value or cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

3.8.7.1  Bearer Biological Asset
The bearer biological assets are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, in terms of 
LKAS 16 – Property Plant & Equipment. 

The cost of land preparation, rehabilitation, new planting, replanting, 
crop diversification, inter planting and fertilising, etc., incurred between 
the time of planting and harvesting (when the planted area attains 
maturity), are classified as immature plantations. These immature 
plantations are shown at direct costs plus attributable overheads. The 
expenditure incurred on bearer biological assets (Tea, Rubber) which 
comes into bearing during the year, is transferred to mature plantations. 

3.8.7.2 Infilling Cost on Bearer Biological Assets
The land development costs incurred in the form of infilling have 
been capitalised to the relevant mature field, only where the number 
of plants per hectare exceeded 3,000 plants and, also if it increases 
the expected future benefits from that field, beyond its pre-infilling 
performance assessment. Infilling costs so capitalised are depreciated 
over the newly assessed remaining useful economic life of the relevant 
mature plantation, or the unexpired lease period, whichever is lower. 

Infilling costs that are not capitalised have been charged to the 
Statement of Profit or Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

3.8.7.3 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset, which takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalised as a part of the asset.
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Borrowing costs that are not capitalised are recognised as expenses in the 
period in which they are incurred and charged to the Statement of Prfit or Loss.

The amounts of the borrowing costs which are eligible for capitalisation 
are determined in accordance with the in LKAS 23 - Borrowing Costs’.

Borrowing costs incurred in respect of specific loans that are utilised for 
field development activities have been capitalised as a part of the cost 
of the relevant immature plantation. The capitalisation will cease when 
the crops are ready for commercial harvest.

The amount so capitalised and the capitalisation rates are disclosed in 
Notes to the Financial Statements.

3.8.7.4 Consumable Biological Assets
Consumable biological assets includes managed timber trees those that 
are to be harvested as agricultural produce or sold as biological assets. 
Expenditure incurred on consumable biological assets (managed timber 
trees) is measured on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting 
period at its fair value less cost to sell in terms of LKAS 41. The cost is 
treated as approximation to fair value of young plants as the impact 
on biological transformation of such plants to price during this period 
is immaterial. The fair value of timber trees are measured using DCF 
method taking in to consideration the current market prices of timber, 
applied to expected timber content of a tree at the maturity by an 
independent professional valuer. All other assumptions and sensitivity 
analysis are given in Note 14. 

The main variables in DCF model concerns

Variable Comment

Timber content Estimate based on physical verification of 
girth, height and considering the growth of 
each species in different geographical regions. 
Factor all the prevailing statutory regulations 
enforced against harvesting of timber coupled 
with forestry plan of the Company 

Economic useful life Estimate based on the normal life span of each 
species by factoring the forestry plan of the 
Company

Selling price Estimate based on prevailing Sri Lankan market 
price. Factor all the conditions to be fulfill in 
bringing the trees in to saleable condition.

Planting cost Estimate costs for the further development of 
immature areas are deducted.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of consumable biological 
assets at fair value less cost to sell and from a change in fair value less 
cost to sell of consumable biological assets are included in profit or loss 
for the period in which it arises.

Permanent impairments to biological assets are charged to the 
Statement of Profit or Loss in full and reduced to the net carrying 
amounts of such asset in the year of occurrence after ascertaining the 
loss. 

3.8.7.5 Nursery Plants
Nursery cost includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of directly attributable overheads, less provision 
for overgrown plants.

3.8.8 Depreciation and Amortisation
(a)      Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of each part of an 
item of Property, Plant & Equipment since this most closely reflects 
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated 
over the shorter of the lease term and the useful lives of equivalent 
owned assets unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will have 
ownership by the end of the lease term. Lease period of land acquired 
from JEDB/SLSPC will be expired in year 2045. The estimated useful 
lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
     

No. of 
Years

Rate 
(%)

Buildings & Roads 40 2.50

Plant & Machinery 20 5.00

Plant & Machinery-Effluent Treatment Plant 10 10.00

Electronic Machinery 10 10.00

Hydro Power Plant 30 3.33

Motor Vehicles-Utility 10 10.00

Motor Vehicles-Supervisory 5 20.00

Equipment 4 25.00

Furniture & Fittings 10 10.00

Sanitation, Water & Electricity Supply 20 5.00

Computer Accessories 4 25.00

Tea Bagging Machines 15 6.67
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Mature Plantation (Replanting and New Palanting)

No. of  
Years

Rate (%) 

Mature Plantations - Tea 33 1/3 3.00

                                         - Rubber 20 5.00

    
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases 
at the earlier of the date on which the asset is classified as held for sale 
or is derecognised. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reassessed at the reporting date and adjusted prospectively, 
if appropriate. Mature plantations are depreciated over their useful lives 
or unexpired lease period, whichever is less. 

No depreciation is provided for immature plantations.

(b)      amortisation
The leasehold rights of assets taken over from JEDB/SLSPC are 
amortised in equal amounts over the shorter of the remaining lease 
periods and the useful lives as follows:

No. of 
Years

Rate (%)

Right to Use of Land 53 1.89

Improvements to land 30 3.33

Mature Plantations (Tea & Rubber) 30 3.33

Buildings 25 4.00

Machinery 20 5.00

3.8.9 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated 
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not 
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in 
the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation 
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern 
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is 
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but 
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed 
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is 
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.8.9.1  Research and Development
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures 
on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the 
Group can demonstrate:

 G  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that 
the asset will be available for use or sale

 G  Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell 
the asset

 G  How the asset will generate future economic benefits
 G  The availability of resources to complete the asset
 G  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an 
asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins 
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is 
amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation is 
recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is 
tested for impairment annually.
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3.9 finanCial inStRUmentS
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset 
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity.

3.9.1 Financial Assets
3.9.1.1  Initial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, AFS financial assets, or as derivatives designated 
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All 
financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case 
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
market place (regular way trades) are recognised i.e., the date that the 
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, 
short term investments, trade and other receivables, loans and other 
receivables, quoted and unquoted financial instruments.

3.9.1.2  Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their 
classification as described below:

(a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial 
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are 
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the 
Statement of Financial Position at fair value with net changes in fair 
value recognised in finance income or finance costs in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss.

The Group has not designated any financial assets as at fair value 
through profit or loss.

(b) loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less 
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss in finance 
costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for 
receivables.

Loans and receivables comprise of trade receivables, amounts due from 
related parties, deposits, advances and other receivables and cash and 
cash equivalents.

(c) Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group 
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. After 
initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss in finance costs.

(d) available for sale financial investments
AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt securities. 
Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither classified 
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. 
Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for 
an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs 
for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in OCI 
and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at 
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating 
income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the 
cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement 
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of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned whilst holding AFS 
financial assets is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS 
financial assets in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare 
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to 
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets 
if the management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for 
foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value 
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new 
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been 
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining 
life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new 
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the 
remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently 
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is 
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

3.9.1.3  Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part 
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

 G  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

 G  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an 
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if 
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the 
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis 
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 
the Group could be required to repay.

3.9.1.4  Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is impaired and if such has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a 
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default 
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that 
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and when 
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the 
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults.

3.9.1.4.1 Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses 
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are 
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial 
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, 
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses 
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated 
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Interest income (recorded as finance income in the statement of 
profit or loss) continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount 
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash 
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flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together 
with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has 
been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of 
the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is 
credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

3.9.1.4.2 Available for Sale Financial Assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of 
investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence 
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original 
cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the 
fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of 
impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between 
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss – is removed from OCI and recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed 
through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are 
recognised in OCI.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires 
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among 
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an 
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is 
assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at 
amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the 
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost 
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced 
carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 

loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in 
a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and 
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the 
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

3.9.2 Financial Liabilities
3.9.2.1  Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the 
case of loans and borrowings and payables net of directly attributable 
transaction cost. This includes directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank 
overdrafts, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee contracts.

3.9.2.2  Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification as described below:

(a) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial 
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also 
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that 
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by LKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified 
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, 
and only if the criteria in LKAS 39 are satisfied. The Group has not 
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.
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(b) loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement 
of profit or loss.

(c) financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair 
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at 
the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date and the amount recognised less 
cumulative amortisation.

3.9.2.3  Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Income Statement.

3.9.3 Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if, and only 
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

3.10 Inventories
finished Goods manufactured from agricultural produce of 
Biological assets
These are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable 
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price at which stocks 

can be sold in the ordinary course of business after allowing for cost of 
realisation and/or cost of conversion from their existing state to saleable 
condition.

input material, Spares and Consumables
At actual cost on weighted average basis.

agricultural produce Harvested from Biological assets
Agricultural produce harvested from its biological assets are measured 
at their fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest. The finished 
and semi-finished inventories from agriculture produce are valued 
by adding the cost of conversion to the fair value of the agricultural 
produce.

3.11 Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their estimated realisable 
amounts inclusive of provisions for bad and doubtful debts.

3.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. 
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of 
the Group’s cash management and are included as a component of cash 
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows.

3.13 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair 
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount 
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be 

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

166

identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and 
forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the 
Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These 
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. 
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to 
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on 
inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense 
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for 
properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For 
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount 
of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable 
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only 
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the 
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset 
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as 
a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable 
amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. 
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying 
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating 
to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment 

annually as at 31 March at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

3.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to 
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense 
relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
net of any reimbursement.

3.15 Employees Benefits
(a) Defined Contribution plans - provident funds and trust fund
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under 
which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and 
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
Obligations for contributions to Provident and Trust Funds covering all 
employees are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the periods 
during which services are rendered by employees.

The Company contributes 12% on consolidated salary of the employees 
to Ceylon Planters’ Provident Society (CPPS)/Estate Staff Provident 
Society (ESPS)/ Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF).

All the employees of the Company are members of the Employees’ Trust 
Fund, to which the Company contributes 3% on the consolidated salary 
of such employees.

(b) Defined Benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than 
a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised in the Financial 
Statements in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the Reporting date. The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash flows using the interest rates 
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be 
paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of 
the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised as in 
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retained earnings through comprihensive income. Past service costs are 
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first 
year of service for all employees, in conformity with LKAS 19, Employee 
Benefits. However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, 
the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of 
continued service.

The Liability is not externally funded.

The key assumptions used in determining the retirement benefit 
obligations are given in Note 25.

3.16 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their costs.

3.17 Capital Commitments and Contingencies
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group have been 
disclosed in the respective Notes to the Financial Statements.

3.18 Events Occurring after the Reporting Date
All material events after the Statement of Financial Position date have 
been considered where appropriate; either adjustments have been 
made or adequately disclosed in the Financial Statements.

3.19 Earnings per Share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its 
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares.

3.20 Deferred Income
3.20.1 Grants and Subsidies
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied 
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income 
over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to 

the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an 
asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal 
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Where the Group receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the 
grant are recorded gross at nominal amounts and released to the 
Statement of Profit or Loss over the expected useful life and pattern 
of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual 
installments. Where loans or similar assistance are provided by 
governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the 
current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is 
regarded as additional government grant.

Grants related to Property, Plant & Equipment other than grants 
received for forestry are initially deferred and allocated to income on 
a systematic basis over the useful life of the related Property, Plant & 
Equipment as follows: Assets are amortised over their useful lives or 
unexpired lease period, whichever is less.

Buildings 40 years
Sanitation & water supply 20 years
Plant & equipment 13 1/3 years

Grants received for forestry are initially deferred and credited to income 
once when the related blocks of trees are harvested.

3.21 Statements of Profit or Loss
For the purpose of presentation of Statements of Profit or Loss, the 
function of expenses method is adopted, as it represents fairly the 
elements of the group’s performance.

3.21.1 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes or duty.

(a) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue is recorded at 
invoice value net of brokerage, sale expenses and other levies 
related to revenue.
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(b) Gains and losses on disposal of an item of Property, Plant & 
Equipment are determined by comparing the net sales proceeds 
with the carrying amounts of Property, Plant & Equipment and are 
recognised within ‘other operating income’ in the Statements of 
Profit or Loss.

(c) For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and 
interest-bearing financial assets classified as AFS, interest income 
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of 
the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance 
income in the statement of profit or loss.

(d) Dividend is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the 
payment is established, which is generally when shareholders 
approve the dividend.

(e) Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties 
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

3.21.2  Expenses
All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in 
maintaining the Property, Plant & Equipment in a state of efficiency is 
charged to revenue in arriving at the profit/(loss) for the year.

3.21.2.1 Financing Income and Finance Cost
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest 
income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of 
the discount on provisions, changes in the fair value of financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, and losses on hedging instruments 
that are recognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that are not 
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective 
interest method.

The interest expense component of finance lease payments is allocated 
to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

3.21.2.2 Taxes
3.21.2.2.1 Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The 
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries 
where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity 
is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

3.21.2.2.2 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary 
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, except:

 G  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

 G  In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

 G When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
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 G  In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is 
recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in 
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but 
not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, 
are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and 
circumstances change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction 
in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred 
during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

3.22 Statement of Cash Flow
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared using the ‘indirect 
method’. Interest paid is classified as operating cash flows, interest and 
dividends received are classified as investing cash flows while dividends 
paid and Government grants received are classified as financing cash 
flows, for the purpose of presenting the Cash Flow Statement.

3.23 Segment Reporting
Segmental information is provided for the different business segments 
of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the Group 
that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other components.

Since the individual segments are located close to each other and 
operate in the same industrial environment, the need for geographical 
segmentation has no material impact.

The activities of the segments are described in note 36 in the Notes 
to the Financial Statements. The group transfers products from one 
industry segment for use in another. Inter-segment transfers are based 
on fair market prices.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to each segment are 
allocated to the respective segments. Revenue and expenses not 
directly attributable to a segment are allocated on the basis of their 
resource utilisation, wherever possible.

Assets and liabilities directly attributable to each segment are allocated 
to the respective segments. Assets and liabilities, which are not directly 
attributable to a segment, are allocated on a reasonable basis wherever 
possible. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest bearing loans, 
borrowings, and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period 
to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than 
one accounting period.

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its 
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
 
4 USe of eStimateS anD JUDGmentS
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRS 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that influence the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Judgments 
and estimates are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations that are believed to be reasonable under the 
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circumstances. Hence, actual experience and results may differ from 
these judgments and estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period and 
any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and 
critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements 
is included in the following notes:

4.1 Taxation
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required 
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies. Unused tax losses as of 31 
March 2015 are given in Note 10.2.B

4.2 Measurement of Retirement Benefit Obligation
The present value of the retirement benefit obligations depends on a 
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number 
of assumptions. Key assumptions used in determining the retirement 
benefit obligations are given in Note 25. Any changes in these assumptions 
will impact the carrying amount of retirement benefit obligations.

4.3 Fair Valuation of Biological Assets
The fair value of managed timber depends on number of factors that 
are determined on a discounted method using various financial and 
non financial assumptions. The growth of the trees is determined by 
various biological factors that are highly unpredictable. Any change to 
the assumptions will impact to the fair value of biological assets. Key 
assumptions and sensitivity analysis of the biological assets are given in 
the note 14.

4.4 Impairment of Non-financial Assets.
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash 
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less 
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding 
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or 

observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the 
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash 
flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not 
include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or 
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance 
of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the 
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future 
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 
These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles 
with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group.

5 StanDaRDS iSSUeD BUt not Yet effeCtiVe
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the 
Group’s financial statements are listed below. This listing of standards 
and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects 
to have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance 
when applied at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these 
standards when they become effective.

 G  SlfRS 9 -financial instruments: Classification and measurement
 SLFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of 

LKAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial 
assets and liabilities. This standard was originally effective for 
annual periods commencing on or after 01 January 2015. However 
the effective date has been deferred subsequently.

 G SlfRS 14 -Regulatory Deferral accounts
 The scope of this standard is limited to first-time adopters of SLFRS 

that already recognise regulatory deferral account balances in 
their financial statements. Consequently, the financial statements 
of rate regulated entities that already apply SLFRS, or that do not 
otherwise recognise such balances, will not be affected by this 
standard. This standard is effective for the annual periods beginning 
on or after 01 January 2016.

 G  SlfRS 15 -Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining 

whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces 
existing revenue recognition guidance, including LKAS 18 Revenue, 
LKAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty 
Programmes. This standard is effective for the annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2017.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

171

 G amendment to lKaS 41 - agriculture & lKaS 16 - property, plant 
& equipment

This amendment define a bearer plant and accordingly, require bearer 
plants to be accounted for as property, plant and equipment and 
include within the scope of LKAS 16, instead of LKAS 41. Entities are 
required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2016. However, this amendment has no impact on 
group’s current accounting treatment on recognition and measurement, 
which is based on CASL ruling issued on 2 March 2012.

None of these new standards and interpretations are expected to have 
an effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, except 
for SLFRS 9 and 15. Pending the detailed review of such standards and 
interpretations, the extent of the impact has not been determined by 
the management.
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

6 ReVenUe
6.1 Industry Segment Revenue
Tea   7,322,101 5,420,776 3,587,379 2,942,274
Rubber   1,352,401 1,379,770 1,352,401 1,379,770
Others   40,812 32,959 - -
Less: Intra-group sales   (67,965) (43,493) - -
   8,647,349 6,790,012 4,939,780 4,322,044

6.2 Industry Segment Results {Gross profit}
Tea   480,623 378,372 191,818 125,734
Rubber   228,922 482,775 228,922 482,775
Others   29,757 24,573 - -
    739,302 885,720 420,740 608,509

7 otHeR inCome
Profit on disposal of property, plant & equipment   11,344 6,365 7,823 6,329
Dividend income   - - 20,106 7,853
Hydro power income   10,349 6,794 12,402 8,738
Amortisation of Government grants   19,591 16,469 19,558 16,443
Revenue grants   - 995 - 995
Sundry income   37,538 15,228 35,545 13,941
    78,822 45,851 95,434 54,299

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to the grants.

8 net finanCe CoSt
8.1 Finance Income
Interest income   10,013 56,439 9,076 54,713
Interest income on corporate guarantee   - - 750 2,250
Foreign exchange gain   - 9,215 - -
    10,013 65,654 9,826 56,963

8.2 Finance Expenses
Interest on term loans   (12,656) (26,162) (9,114) (14,056)
Interest on overdrafts and short term loans   (34,226) (12,408) (5,870) (6,774)
Foreign exchange loss   (6,901) (14,142) - -
    (53,783) (52,712) (14,984) (20,830)
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  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

8.3  Interest paid to Government on finance lease   (79,029) (58,315) (79,029) (58,315)
    (79,029) (58,315) (79,029) (58,315)

Net finance cost   (122,799) (45,373) (84,187) (22,182)

  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

9 pRofit BefoRe taxation
9.1 Profit before tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following: 
Directors’ emoluments   34,527 35,492 12,524 19,539
Auditor’s remuneration
 - Audit services   3,785 3,213 2,956 2,688
 - Non-audit services   741 976 375 150

Depreciation and lease amortisation
- Leasehold right to bare land  12.1 13,238 8,833 13,238 8,833
- Immovable leased assets  12.2 20,695 16,555 20,695 16,555
- Amortisation of intangible assets  16 373 646 - -
- Tangible property, plant & equipment  13 165,809 112,896 112,511 84,252
- Bearer biological assets  14 91,032 60,960 91,032 60,960

Staff Costs
- Defined contribution plan costs (EPF, CPPS, ESPS & ETF)   351,173 354,520 332,761 345,605
- Defined benefit plan cost (Retirement benefit obligations)  25 187,300 184,350 183,604 180,424
- Salaries and wages and other staff costs   2,562,915 2,114,476 2,434,866 2,017,590
- Staff training & development cost   1,892 4,173 1,385 3,869
Legal fees   12,520 12,754 11,720 8,758

Provision/(reversal) for bad & doubtful debts   22,293 498 (378) (613)
Provision/(reversal) for obsolete inventories   (3,763) 3,885 (1,737) 3,189
Gain on change in fair value of biological assets  14.2 24,851 14,945 24,851 14,945

 G4 - eC 3

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

174

  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

10 tax expenSe
10.1 Statement of Profit or Loss 
(i) Current tax expense
Income tax on current period /year profit Company 10. A (1,920) (7,707) (1,920) (7,707)
 Subsidiaries 10. A (5,140) (10,510) - -
    (7,060) (18,217) (1,920) (7,707)

under provision in respect of previous years   (6,271) - (8,090) -
    (13,331) (18,217) (10,010) (7,707)

(ii) Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary difference of Company 24 (26,785) (43,191) (26,785) (43,191)
 Subsidiaries 24 (7,372) (12,384) - -
    (34,157) (55,575) (26,785) (43,191)

Tax on dividend income   (2,424) - - -

Tax charge reported in Statement of Profit or Loss   (49,912) (73,792) (36,795) (50,898)

10.2 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 
Net (gain)/loss on actuarial gains/(loss) on defined  
Benefit Plans Company 24 4,113 (5,922) 4,113 (5,922)
 Subsidiary 24 (68) (248) - -
Tax charge directly to other comprehensive income   4,045 (6,170) 4,113 (5,922)

The Company is liable to income tax at the rate of 10% on its agriculture profits and 28% on manufacturing profits and other income during the year 
of assessment 2014/15.

Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. has entered into an agreement with the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka and has been granted a five-year tax 
holiday on its business activities from the year of assessment in which the enterprise commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later 
than 2 years reckoned from the date of commencement of commercial operations, whichever is earlier. Accordingly, tax holiday period of Kalupahana 
Power Company (Pvt) Ltd., has commenced in the year of assessment 2008/09 and expired on year of assessment 2012/13. with the expiration of 
aforesaid tax holiday period, the company is liable for income tax at the rate of 10% for a period of two years from year assessment 2013/14 and tax 
rate effective from year of assessment 2015/16 is 12% in terms of section 59E of the Inland Revenue  (Amendment) Act, No. 18 of 2013.

Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd. is exempted from income tax on the processing of agricultural products for a period of 3 years commencing from 
the year of assessment 2010/11 under the section 17 of Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006. Accordingly, tax exemption period of the Kelani Valley 
Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd expired on year of assessment 2012/13. Therefore, the company is liable for income tax at the rate of 28%

 G4 - eC 2/ eC 4
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The qualified export profit earned by Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. has been taxed at the rate of 12% in terms of section 52 and 56 of the Inland Revenue Act 
No. 10 of 2006. The Profits from agricultural undertaking referred in section 16 has been taxed at 10% commencing from 1 April 2011 as per section 
48A of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 (as amended). Other income earned by the company has been taxed at 28%.

Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd is a BOI approved Entity entitled for a tax exemption period of 10 years as stipulated in the Inland Revenue 
(Amendment) Act No. 08 of 2012 (Section 17A) .

(A) Reconciliation of Accounting Profit to Income Tax Expense
  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Profit before tax   102,407 465,485 153,386 398,582
Effective tax rate   16% 22% 28% 28%

Tax effect on profit before tax   16,676 103,623 42,948 111,603
Tax effect on deductible expenses for tax purposes   (129,973) (155,944) (213,621) (184,984)
Tax effect on non deductible expenses for tax purposes   82,057 88,672 122,136 99,866
Tax effect on total statutory income   (31,240) 36,351 (48,537) 26,485
Tax effect on ammortisation of government grant exempt from tax   (3,190) (3,888) (5,476) (4,604)
Tax effect on tax exempt income   - - (5,630) (2,199)
Tax effect on tax exempt loss   42,091 - 62,597 -
Tax effect on qualifying relief   - (2,786) - -
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses   (601) (6,344) (1,034) (6,889)
Income Tax on current period profits   7,060 23,333 1,920 12,793
(Over)/Under provision in respect of previous years   6,271 (5,116) 8,090 (5,086)
Income tax charge for the 15 months/12 months   13,331 18,217 10,010 7,707

(B) Tax Losses 
  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

 Tax loss b/f   (22,652) (21,772) (17,924) (17,513)
 Adjustment for tax loss b/f   1,955 (28,768) 1,955 (25,014)
    (20,697) (50,540) (15,969) (42,527)

 Tax loss for the year   (258,468) (612) (223,561) -
 Loss set off during the period   3,692 28,500 3,692 24,603
    (254,776) 27,888 (219,869) 24,603
 Tax loss c/f   (275,473) (22,652) (235,838) (17,924)
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11 eaRninG peR SHaRe anD DiViDenD peR SHaRe
11.1 Earning per Share
(A) Basic Earnings per Share
The computation of the basic earnings per share is based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the period divided by weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and calculated as follows.

  Consolidated Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013

amount used as the numerator
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rs. ’000)   60,241 384,134 116,591 347,684 

Amount used as the Denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (’000)   34,000 34,000 34,000 34,000
Basic earnings per share (Rs. )   1.77 11.30 3.43 10.23 

(B) Diluted Earnings per Share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding after adjustment for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at any time during the period/previous year.

11.2 Dividend per Share
   Company
for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December     2014/15 2013

First & final proposed dividend Rs. 1/- per share (2013 - Rs.3.50 per share) (Rs. ’000)    34,000 119,000 
Number of ordinary shares (’000)     34,000 34,000 
Dividend per share (Rs.)     1.00 3.50 

The Board of Directors has recommended a first and final dividend of Rs. 1/- per share amounting to Rs. 34,000,001/- for the 15 months ended 31 
March, 2015 (final dividends for 2013 - Rs. 3.50 per share amounting to Rs. 119,000,003.50).

This is to be approved at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 June, 2015



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

177

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements

12 leaSeHolD pRopeRtY, plant & eQUipment
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
  notes Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Right-to-use land  12.1 293,068 306,306 293,068 306,306 
Immovable leased bearer biological assets  12.2.1 128,379 144,700 128,379 144,700 
Immovable leased assets (other than  12.2.2 8,310 12,684 8,310 12,684  
 right-to-use land and bearer biological assets)
    429,757 463,690 429,757 463,690 

12.1 Right-to-use land 
“Right-To-Use of Land on Lease” as above was previously titled “Leasehold Right to Bare Land”. The change is in order to comply with Statement of 
Alternative Treatment (SoAT) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka dated 21 August 2013. Such leases have been executed for 
all estates for a period of 53 years. 

This right-to-use land is amortised over the remaining lease term or useful life of the right whichever is shorter and is disclosed under non-current 
assets. The Statement of Alternative Treatment (SoAT) for right-to-use land does not permit further revaluation of right-to-use land. However an 
adjustment to the “Right-To-Use of Land” could be made to the extent that the change relate to the future period on the reassessment of liability to 
make the lease payment. The values taken into the Statement of Financial Position as at 18 June right to use 1992 and amortisation of the right to use 
land up to 31 March 2015 are as follows.

  Consolidated Company
as at 31st march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Capitalised Value (re-assessed in 2010)   333,603 313,908 333,603 313,908 
Increase due to reassessment of liability   - 19,695 - 19,695 
    333,603 333,603 333,603 333,603 

amortisation
As at 1 January   27,297 18,464 27,297 18,464 
Amortisation for the 15 months/12 months   13,238 8,833 13,238 8,833 
As at 31 March/December   40,535 27,297 40,535 27,297 
Carrying amount   293,068 306,306 293,068 306,306 

The Company has sub leased an extent of 1.0127 hectares in Ingestre Estate and 2.2247 hectares in Blinkbonnie Estate to Hayleys Global Beverages 
(Pvt) Ltd. It was treated as an Operating Lease in the Financial Statements in terms of LKAS 17-Lease. 

12.2 Immovable Leased Assets
In terms of the ruling of the UITF of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka prevailed at the time of privatisation of plantation estates, all 
immovable assets in these estates under finance leases have been taken into the books of the Company retroactive to 18 June 1992. For this purpose, 
the Board decided at its meeting on 8 March 1995, that these assets be restated at their book values as they appear in the books of the JEDB/SLSPC, 
on the day immediately preceding the date of formation of the Company. These assets are taken into the Statement of Financial Position as at  
18 June, 1992 and amortisation of immovable leased assets to 31 March 2015 are as follows.
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12.2.1. Immovable Leased Bearer Biological Assets
 mature plantations Consolidated Company
 tea Rubber 
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Capitalised Value
 (18 June, 1992) 213,541 178,145 391,686 391,686 391,686 391,686

amortisation
As at 1 January 131,772 115,214 246,986 233,930 246,986 233,930
Amortisation for the 15 months/12 months 8,559 7,762 16,321 13,056 16,321 13,056
As at 31 March/December 140,331 122,976 263,307 246,986 263,307 246,986
Carrying amount 73,210 55,169 128,379 144,700 128,379 144,700

Investment in Immature Plantations at the time of handing over to the Company as at 18 June, 1992 by way of estate leases were shown under 
Immature Plantations.

However, since then all such investments in Immature Plantations attributable to JEDB/SLSPC period have been transferred to Mature Plantations. 
These mature tea and rubber were classified as bearer biological assets in terms of LKAS 41 - Agriculture. The carrying value of the bearer biological 
assets leased from JEDB/SLSPC is recognised at cost less amortisation. Further, investments in such plantations to bring them to maturity are shown 
under Note 14

12.2.2. Immovable Leased Assets (other than right-to-use land and bearer biological assets)
 land  Buildings  machinery Consolidated Company
 Development 
as at 31 march/December    2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Capitalised Value
 (18 June, 1992) 3,455 84,600 23,094 111,149 111,149 111,149 111,149

amortisation
As at 1 January 2,481 72,890 23,094 98,465 94,966 98,465 94,966
Amortisation for the 15 months/12 months 144 4,230 - 4,374 3,499 4,374 3,499
As at 31 March/December 2,625 77,120 23,094 102,839 98,465 102,839 98,465
Carrying amount 830 7,480 - 8,310 12,684 8,310 12,684
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13 fReeHolD pRopeRtY, plant & eQUipment
(A) Consolidated
as at 31 march/December          2014/15 2013 
 Buildings plant & Hydro motor furniture  equipment Computers tea  others total total 
  machinery power  Vehicles & fittings   Bagging  
   plant     machines    

 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Cost
As at 1 January 771,949 541,474 133,017 280,202 16,842 177,076 28,310 123,050 44,769 2,116,689 2,027,934 
Additions during the 15 months/12 months 4,028 49,671 - 64,448 3,671 10,838 3,420 84,854 1,185 222,115 97,115 

Disposals/transfers - (4,589) - (14,998) (36) (15) - - - (19,638) (8,360)

As at 31 March/December 775,977 586,556 133,017 329,652 20,477 187,899 31,730 207,904 45,954 2,319,166 2,116,689 

Depreciation
As at 1 January 134,800 245,831 35,259 162,143 15,324 76,869 22,201 48,007 23,842 764,276 659,568 
Charge for the 15 months/12 months 24,921 47,690 5,542 43,097 1,451 10,923 3,517 16,491 12,177 165,809 112,896 

Disposals/transfers - (4,347) - (13,234) (36) (63) - - - (17,680) (8,188)

As at 31 March/December 159,721 289,174 40,801 192,006 16,739 87,729 25,718 64,498 36,019 912,405 764,276 

Net book value 616,256 297,382 92,216 137,646 3,738 100,170 6,012 143,406 9,935 1,406,761 1,352,413 

Work-in-Progress          432,643 65,138 

Carrying amount          1,839,404 1,417,551 

(B) Company
as at 31 march/December          2014/15 2013 
   Buildings plant & motor furniture  equipment Computers others total total 
    machinery  Vehicles & fittings      

   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Cost

As at 1 January   743,688 509,310 261,782 11,092 93,024 28,310 39,169 1,686,375 1,616,732

Additions during the 15 months/12 months   4,028 38,778 48,474 374 5,052 1,867 - 98,573 78,003

Disposals/transfers   - (4,587) (10,099) - 47 (309) - (14,948) (8,360)

As at 31 March/December   747,716 543,501 300,157 11,466 98,123 29,868 39,169 1,770,000 1,686,375

Depreciation

As at 1 January   131,233 224,356 153,960 9,232 81,503 22,201 20,912 643,397 567,333

Charge for the 15 months/12 months   24,457 36,913 38,217 502 6,884 3,165 2,373 112,511 84,252

Disposals/transfers   - (4,346) (8,335) - - - - (12,681) (8,188)

As at 31 March/December   155,690 256,923 183,842 9,734 88,387 25,366 23,285 743,227 643,397

Net book value   592,026 286,578 116,315 1,732 9,736 4,502 15,884 1,026,773 1,042,978

Work-in-Progress          9,224 176

Carrying amount          1,035,997 1,043,154
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(a) The assets shown above are those movable assets vested in the Company by Gazette notification on the date of formation of the Company  
(18 June 1992) and all investment in tangible assets by the Company since its formation. The assets taken over by way of estate leases are set out 
in Note 12.

(b) Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. commenced construction of its new instant tea and tea extracts plant in 2014/15. This investment is partly 
funded by bank borrowings. Borrowing costs capitalised during the period ended 31 March 2015 was Rs. 2.5 m (2014 - Nil). The rate used to 
determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 6.58%, which is the effective interest rate of the specific borrowing

(c) The cost of fully depreciated Property, Plant and Equipment which are still in use at date of Statement of Financial Position is as follows, 

 Consolidated Company
as at 31 march   2014/15 2014/15  
   Rs,000 Rs,000

Computers   20,587 20,587
Equipment   84,948 74,497 
Furniture & fittings   9,596 7,538
Motor vehicles   82,909 80,942
Mature plantations   7,407 7,407
Plant & machinery   38,438 38,438
Intangible assets   3,274 -
Others   2,048 2,048
    249,207 231,457

(d) Unexpired lease periods of land: 
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC     32 years
Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd.     32 years

14 BioloGiCal aSSetS
14.1 IMPROVEMENTS TO LEASEHOLD PROPERTY (BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS)
  

  immature plantations  mature plantations Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December tea Rubber other total tea Rubber total 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 

 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Cost 
As at 1 January 310,516 786,753 14,857 1,112,126 708,023 1,034,131 1,742,154 2,854,280 2,458,813 2,854,280 2,458,813
Additions during the 15 months/12 months 104,052 353,993 18,685 476,730 - - - 476,730 395,467 476,730 395,467
Transfers (from)/to (80,392) (54,724) - (135,116) 80,392 54,724 135,116 - - - - 

As at 31 March/December 334,176 1,086,022 33,542 1,453,740 788,415 1,088,855 1,877,270 3,331,010 2,854,280 3,331,010 2,854,280

Depreciation
As at 1 January     171,518 272,944 444,462 444,462 383,502 444,462 383,502
Charge for the 15 months/12 months     26,551 64,481 91,032 91,032 60,960 91,032 60,960

As at 31 March/December     198,069 337,425 535,494 535,494 444,462 535,494 444,462
Carrying amount     590,346 751,430 1,341,776 2,795,516 2,409,818 2,795,516 2,409,818 
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These are investments in Mature/Immature Plantations since the formation of the Company. The assets (including plantation assets) taken over by 
way of estate leases are set out in Note 12 to the Financial Statements. Further investments in Immature Plantations taken over by way of leases are 
shown in this note. When such plantations become mature, the additional investments since taken over to bring them to maturity are transferred 
from immature to mature.

The requirement of recognition of bearer biological assets at its fair value less cost to sell under LKAS 41 was superseded by the ruling issued on 02 
March 2012, by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure the bearer biological assets at 
cost using LKAS 16 – Property Plant & Equipment.

Specific borrowings have not been obtained to finance the planting expenditure. Hence, borrowing costs were not capitalised during the 15 months 
under Immature Plantations (2013 - NIL).

The addition of Rs.477 m (2013 - Rs. 395 m) shown above includes the following costs among other other costs incurred during the 15 months in 
respect of Uprooting and Planting of Tea and Rubber.

  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December     2014/15  2013  2014/15  2013 
    extent - ha Rs. ’000 extent - ha Rs. ’000 extent - ha Rs. ’000 extent - ha Rs. ’000

Uprooting   Tea 51 25,728 44 32,439 51 25,728 44 32,439 
   Rubber 248 20,917 147 3,372 248 20,917 147 3,372 
Planting   Tea 25 30,133 27 25,024 25 30,133 27 25,024 

    Rubber 296 139,515 328 152,601 296 139,515 328 152,601 

     620 216,293 546 213,436 620 216,293 546 213,436 

14.2 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONSUMABLE )
  Consolidated Company

    immature mature 2014/15 2013 immature mature 2014/15 2013

    Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

As at 1 January    9,941 73,485 83,426 68,177 9,941 73,485 83,426 68,177 
Increase due to development    - - - 304 - - - 304 
Gain of change in fair value less cost to sell    - 24,851 24,851 14,945 - 24,851 24,851 14,945 
Transfers    (3,272) - (3,272) - (3,272) - (3,272) - 

As at 31 March/December    6,669 98,336 105,005 83,426 6,669 98,336 105,005 83,426 

Managed trees include commercial timber plantations cultivated on estates. The cost of immature trees is treated as approximate fair value 
particularly on the ground of little biological transformation has taken place and impact of the biological transformation on price is not material. 
When such Plantations become mature, the additional investments since taken over to bring them to maturity are transferred from immature to 
mature.

The fair value of managed trees was ascertained since the LKAS 41 is only applicable for managed agricultural activity in terms of the ruling issued 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The valuation was carried by Messer’s Sunil Fernando Associates, chartered valuers, using 
Discounted Cash Flow methods. In ascertaining the fair value of timber a physical verification was carried covering all the estates.
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14.2.1  Information about Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

non financial asset Valuation  Unobservable Range of unobservable Relationship of  
 technique inputs inputs (probability unobservable inputs to  
   weighted average) fair value

Consumable managed biological assets DCF Discounting rate 17.5%  The higher the discount  
    rate, the lesser the fair  
    value
   Optimum rotation 25-35 Years Lower the rotation  
  (Maturity)  period, the higher the fair  
    value
  Volume at rotation 25-85 cu. ft. The higher the volume, the  
    higher the fair value
  Price per cu.ft. Rs.450/- to Rs.1,800/- The higher the price  
    per cu. ft., the higher the  
    fair value

other key assumptions used in valuation
1. The harvesting is approved by the PMMD and Forest Department based on the forestry development plan
2. The price adopted are net of expenditure
3. Though the replanting is a condition precedent for harvesting, yet the cost are not taken in to consideration. 

The valuations, as presented in the external valuation models based on net present values, take into account the long term exploitation of the timber 
plantations. Because of the inherent uncertainty associated with the valuation at fair value of the biological assets due to the volatility of the variables, 
their carrying value may differ from their realisable value. The Board of Directors retains their view that commodity markets are inherently volatile and 
that long term price projections are highly unpredictable. Hence, the sensitivity analysis regarding selling price and discount rate variations as included in 
this note allows every investor to reasonably challenge the financial impact of the assumptions used in the LKAS 41 against his own assumptions.

14.2.2  Sensitivity Analysis 
Sensitivity variation sales price
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to price changes with regard to the average sales prices applied. Simulations 
made for timber show that a rise or decrease by 10% of the estimated future selling price has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:

Company Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 
managed timber -10% 0 +10%

As at 31 March, 2015 89,250 98,336 103,285 
As at 31 December, 2013 65,177 73,485 85,215 

Sensitivity variation discount rate 
Values as appearing in the Statement of Financial Position are very sensitive to changes of the discount rate applied. Simulations made for timber 
show that a rise or decrease by 1.5% of the estimated future selling price has the following effect on the net present value of biological assets:
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Company Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 
 -1.5% 0 +1.5%

As at 31 March, 2015 102,366 98,336 97,762 
As at 31 December, 2013 75,254 73,485 70,741 

No biological assets have been pledged as securities for 15 months period ended 31 March 2015 (2013 - nil).
There are no capital expenditure commitments for biological assets as at the reporting dates.

15 inVeStmentS in SUBSiDiaRieS
Unquoted investments % Holding no of Shares Value Rs ‘000
as at 31 march/December 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
     Company Company

Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. 60 60 1,800,000 1,800,000 18,000 18,000 
Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd. 100 100 3,000,000 3,000,000 31,881 31,881 
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. 100 100 9,000,000 9,000,000 260,000 260,000 
Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. 51 - 14,999,999 - 150,000 - 
Carrying amount     459,881 309,881 

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC invested in Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd., from the inception of that company and hold a 51% share of  Hayleys 
Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd.

Subsidiaries principal activity  % equity interest

Kalupahana Power Company (Pvt) Ltd. Generates hydro power 60
Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd. Manufactures instant tea 100
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd. Exports of bulk & retail packed tea 100
Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd. Manufacturing instant tea and tea extracts 51

16 intanGiBle aSSetS 
  Consolidated 
    Computer 
Cost   Goodwill  Software 2014/15 2013 
    Rs’000 Rs’000 Rs’000 Rs’000

As at 1 January   33,310 4,520 37,830 36,584
Addition during the period   - 240 240 1,246
As at 31 March/December   33,310 4,760 38,070 37,830

ammortisation and impairment
As at 1 January   - 3,509 3,509 2,863
Amortisation for the period   - 373 373 646
As at 31 March/December   - 3,882 3,882 3,509
Carrying amount   33,310 878 34,188 34,321
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Key assumptions used in the VIU calculations
Gross margins
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the gross margins achieved in the year preceding the budgeted year 
adjusted for projected market conditions.

Discount Rates
The discount rate used in the risk free rate, adjusted by the addition of an appropriate risk premium.

inflation
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted cost inflation, is the inflation rate, based on projected economic conditions.

Volume Growth
Volume growth has been budgeted on a reasonable and realistic basis by taking in to account the growth rates of one of four years immediately 
subsequent to the budgeted year based on Industry growth rates. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project 
future cash flows after the fifth year.

The carrying value of goodwill represents the goodwill on acquisition of Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.
There has been no permanent impairment of intangible assets that requires a provision.

17 INVENTORIES
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Input materials   63,233 43,775 62,722 43,467 
Nurseries   34,195 29,650 34,195 29,650 
Harvested crop   353,070 589,802 352,536 588,642 
Bulk tea and raw materials   353,396 146,854 - - 
Finished goods   2,871 3,549 103 210 
Spares and consumables   67,282 62,391 11,910 13,186 
   874,047 876,021 461,466 675,155 
Provision for obsolete inventories   (7,914) (11,677) (6,441) (8,178)
   866,133 864,344 455,025 666,977 

The carrying amount of inventories pledged as securities for bank facilities obtained amounted to Rs.353 m (2013 - Rs. 589 m) and Rs. 603 m (2013 - 
Rs.782 m) by the Company and the Group respectively .
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18 tRaDe anD otHeR ReCeiVaBleS
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Trade receivables   663,664 588,635 133,565 73,802 
Lease rent paid in advance   16,514 15,477 16,514 15,477 
Employee advances and receivables   50,026 42,746 49,575 42,412 
Advance company tax recoverable   5,159 5,159 5,159 5,159 
ESC recoverable   2,555 6,151 - - 
WHT recoverable   5,543 4,946 1,923 1,345 
Other current assets   18,963 32,215 14,991 25,410 
    762,424 695,329 221,727 163,605 
Provision for impairment in trade and other receivables   (25,220) (2,926) (1,437) (1,815)
    737,204 692,403 220,290 161,790 

18.1 Movement in the Provision for Impairment

At beginning of the year   (2,926) (2,428) (1,815) (2,428)
Reversal/(charge) for the period   (22,294) (498) 378 613
At end of the period   (25,220) (2,926) (1,437) (1,815)

18.2 The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
 past due but not impaired
 total 0-60 days 61-120 days 121-180 days 181-365 days > 365 days 
Balance as at 31 march 2015 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

Company 133,565 133,565 - - - -
Group 663,664 609,066 6,493 540 47,565 -

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on seven-day payment terms for the company.
No loans over Rs. 20,000/- have been given to Directors or officers of the Company.
The carrying amount of debtors pledged as securities for bank facilities obtained amounted to Rs.134 m (2013 - Rs. 73.8 m) and Rs.627.5 m (2013 - Rs. 
574.6 m) by the Company and the Group respectively .
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19 otHeR finanCial aSSetS anD liaBilitieS
19.1 Other Financial Assets
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts   - - 
total financial instruments at fair value   - - - - 

available for sale financial instruments
 investment in unquoted companies
Mabroc International (Pvt) Ltd   732 732 - - 
Mabroc Japan   4,567 4,567 - - 
total available for sale instruments   5,299 5,299 - - 
total other financial assets   5,299 5,299 - - 
Provision for falling value of investment   (5,299) (5,299) - 
total current   - - - - 
total non current   - - - - 

20 CaSH anD CaSH eQUiValentS
20.1 Short-Term Deposits 
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Short term fixed deposits   40,021 200,138 - 200,000
    40,021 200,138 - 200,000

20.2 Favourable Balances
Cash in hand   182 828 122 397
Cash at bank   54,020 50,719 2,437 19,139
    54,202 51,547 2,559 19,536

20.3 Unfavourable Balances
Bank overdraft   (51,190) (16,297) (51,190) (5,253)
    (51,190) (16,297) (51,190) (5,253)

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the 
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

The securities pledged have been disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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21 StateD Capital
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Issued & fully paid-ordinary shares 34,000,000 (2013  - 34,000,000) 
 ordinary shares and 01 Golden share   340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000
    340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000

The holders of ordinary shares and Golden share are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share 
at meetings of the Company. Special rights of the Golden share are given in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the Company.

22 inteReSt-BeaRinG BoRRoWinGS
22.1 Long-Term Interest Bearing Borrowings

as at 31 march/December          2014/15 2013 
    Union pan asia  HnB DfCC nDB  amana total total 

    Bank Bank     Bank   

    Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Group

As at 1 January    56,283 - - 90,011 1,853 - 148,147 153,996

Obtained during the 15 months/12 months    - 27,295 242,746 - - 150,000 420,041 56,283

Repayments during the 15 months/12 months    (16,870) (12,684) - (66,956) (1,853) - (98,363) (62,132)

As at 31 March/December    39,413 14,611 242,746 23,055 - 150,000 469,825 148,147

Payable within one year     

 (Transferred to current liabilities)    (14,332) (6,855) - (13,723) - (2,770) (37,680) (49,820)

payable after one year    25,081 7,756 242,746 9,332 - 147,230 432,145 98,327

analysis of long term borrowings by year of Repayment

Repayable within one year from year-end    14,332 6,855 - 13,723 - 2,770 37,680 49,820

Repayable between 2 and 5 years from year-end    25,081 7,656 206,334 9,332 - 116,223 364,726 98,327

Repayable later than 5 years from year-end    - - 36,412 - - 31,007 67,419 -

    39,413  14,611 242,746 23,055 - 150,000 469,825 148,147
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as at 31 march/December          2014/15 2013 
        DfCC nDB amana total total 

          Bank   

       Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Company
As at 1 January       90,011 1,853 - 91,864 136,825

Obtained during the 15 months/12 months       - - 150,000 150,000 -

Repayments during the 15 months/12 months       (66,956) (1,853)  (68,809) (44,961)

As at 31 March/December       23,055 - 150,000 173,055 91,864

Payable within one year       (13,723) - (2,770) (16,493) (35,749)

(Transferred to current liabilities)       - -
payable after one year       9,332 - 147,230 156,562 56,115

analysis of long term Borrowings By Year of Repayment
Repayable within one year from year-end       13,723 - 2,770 16,493 35,749

Repayable between 2 and 5 years from year-end       9,332 - 116,223 125,555 56,115

Repayable later than 5 years from year-end       - - 31,007 31,007 -

        23,055 - 150,000 173,055 91,864

22.1 Long-Term Interest Bearing Borrowings - Continued
lender loan outstanding Rate of monthly  terms of Repayments  
  interest instalment
as at 31 march/December 2014/15 2013 per annum  
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 %  Rs.

22.1.1 National Development Bank 
(Under aDB line of Credit)
Term Loan 2 - 1,853 9.51 370,590  120 monthly instalments commenced  
     on 30.06.2004 

NDB Total - 1,853 

22.1.2 DFCC Bank
(Under aDB line of Credit)
Term Loan 1 20,533 34,533 7.5 933,330  90 monthly instalments  
     commenced on 31.08.2009
Term Loan 2 - 40,000 11.64 952,381  84 monthly instalments   
     commenced on31.07.2010
(Under e-friends loan Scheme)
e-Friends Loan 1 - 4,164 6.5 378,572  84 monthly instalments commenced  
     on  31.12.2007

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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lender loan outstanding Rate of monthly  terms of Repayments  
  interest instalment
as at 31 march/December 2014/15 2013 per annum  
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 %  Rs.

e-Friends Loan 2 1,272 7,633 6.5 424,048  84 monthly instalments commenced  
     on 31.07.2008
e-Friends Loan 3 1,250 3,335 6.5 138,961  84 monthly instalments commenced  
     on 31.01.2009
e-Friends Loan 4 - 346 6.5 173,333  60 monthly instalments commenced  
     on 31.03.2009
DFCC Total 23,055 90,011 

22.1.3 Amana Bank - Facility 
   SLIBOR with a   72 monthly instalments commenced 
Disbursement 1 50,000 - cap of 14%   on 14.12.2015 as per agreed schedule 
   and floor of   
    7.25%  
Disbursement 2 100,000 - SLIBOR with a   72 monthly instalments commenced  
   cap of 14%   on 19.03.2016 as per agreed schedule 
   and floor of   
   7.25%    
Amana Bank - Total 150,000 - 
Company - total 173,055 91,864 

22.1.4 Subsidiary - Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.
Union Bank
Term Loan USD 39,413 56,283 LIBOR+3.5%  A monthly instalment of  
    with a floor  USD 8,958.33 commencing 
    rate of 4.5%    from 31.01.2014 
pan asia Bank
Term Loan USD 14,611 - One month   36 monthly instalments commenced 
    LIBOR + 4%   on 11.05.2014 as per agreed schedule
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd - Total 54,024 56,283 
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22.2 Subsidiary - Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd
lender loan outstanding Rate of  terms of Repayments  
  interest 
as at 31 march/December 2014/15 2013 per annum  
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 %  Rs.

Hatton national Bank plC
 Term Loan 1 240,000 - AWPLR  20 quarterly instalment of   
     Rs.12,000,000/- commencing   
     from 23.01.2017
 Term Loan 2 2,746 - AWPLR  20 quarterly instalments of   
     Rs.137,282/- commenced    
     on 23.01.2017 
HGBL - Total 242,746 - 
Group-total 469,825 148,147 

22.3 Short-Term Interest Bearing Borrowings
Subsidiary - mabroc teas (pvt) ltd
as at 31 march/December     2014/15 2013 
     total total 
lender    Currency Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Sampath Bank PLC    USD - 57,623 
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd    USD 320,101 256,207 
Hatton National Bank PLC    USD 215,672 23,953 
CITI Bank     USD 186,888 176,112 
total     722,661 513,895 

The securities pledged for these facilities have been disclosed in Note 30 to the Financial Statements.

23 DefeRReD inCome  
Grants and Subsidies  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Capital Grants
As at 1 January   612,310 608,399 611,343 607,432 
Grants received during the 15 months/12 months   21,744 3,911 21,744 3,911 
As at 31 March/December   634,054 612,310 633,087 611,343 

amortisation
As at 1 January   136,106 119,637 135,975 119,532 
Amortisation for the 15 months/12 months   19,591 16,469 19,559 16,443 
As at 31 March/December   155,697 136,106 155,534 135,975 
Net carrying amount at 31 March/December   478,357 476,204 477,553 475,368 

 G4 - eC 4
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Grants were received from the Plantation Reform Project (PRP), Plantation Human Development Trust, Ministry of Community Development, Asian 
Development Bank, Social Welfare Project, Estate Infrastructures Development Project, Plantation Development Support Project, Ceylon Electricity 
Board, Tea Board and Rubber Development Division of Ministry of Plantations Industry.

The amount spent is capitalised under relevant classification of improvement to leasedhold property and property, plant & equipment. 
Corresponding grant component is reflected under deferred grants and subsidies and amortised over the useful life span of the asset.

24 DefeRReD tax liaBilitY / (aSSetS)
   Consolidated
as at 31 march/December  2014/15 2013
   temporary tax effect temporary tax effect 
   Difference  Difference 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

As at 1st January   2,262,749 363,132 1,931,521 301,387 
Amount originating during the period/year   173,644 30,111 331,228 61,745 
As at 31 March/December    2,436,393 393,243 2,262,749 363,132 

Deferred tax liability
Temporary difference of property, plant and equipment   3,754,370 614,603 3,249,489 525,889 
(including mature and immature plantation)
Temporary difference of biological asset   105,005 10,500 83,426 8,343 
As at 31 March/December   3,859,375 625,103 3,332,915 534,232 

Defrred tax assets
Temporary difference of retirement benefit obligation   (1,122,820) (178,810) (1,046,403) (166,172)
Provision for bad debts   (23,783) (5,796) (1,111) (250)
Provision for stocks   (906) (221) - - 
Carried forward tax losses   (275,473) (47,033) (22,652) (4,678)
As at 31 March/December   (1,422,982) (231,860) (1,070,166) (171,100)
As at 31 March/December   2,436,393 393,243 2,262,749 363,132 
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   Company
as at 31 march/December  2014/15 2013
   temporary tax effect temporary tax effect 
   Difference  Difference 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

As at 1 January   2,062,422 320,232 1,745,216 271,119 
Amount originating during the period/year   151,738 22,671 317,206 49,113 
As at 31 March/ December   2,214,160 342,903 2,062,422 320,232 

Deferred tax liability
Temporary difference of property, plant and equipment   3,446,262 543,131 3,024,457 476,654 
(including mature and immature plantation)
Temporary difference of biological asset   105,005 10,500 83,426 8,343 
As at 31 March/ December   3,551,267 553,631 3,107,883 484,997 

Defrred tax assets
Temporary difference of retirement benefit obligation   (1,101,269) (173,560) (1,027,537) (161,940)
Carried forward tax losses   (235,838) (37,168) (17,924) (2,825)
As at 31 March/ December   (1,337,107) (210,728) (1,045,461) (164,765)
As at 31 March/ December   2,214,160 342,903 2,062,422 320,232 

The effective tax rate used to calculate deferred tax liability for all the temporary differences other than Biological Asset as at 31 March, 2015 is 15.76% 
(2013-15.76%) for the company.

The effective tax rate used to calculate deferred tax liability for Biological Asset as at 31 March, 2015 is 10% (2013-10%) for the company.

25 RetiRement Benefit oBliGationS
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

movement in the Retirement Benefit obligations
As at 1 January   1,046,403 1,025,142 1,027,537 1,007,583 

Current service cost   89,128 81,661 87,649 79,666 
Interest cost   98,171 102,689 95,955 100,758 
Acturial (gain)/loss from experience adjustment   26,073 (38,750) 26,100 (37,579)
    213,372 145,600 209,704 142,845 
    1,259,775 1,170,742 1,237,241 1,150,428 
Benefit paid by the plan   (136,905) (124,339) (135,971) (122,891)
As at 31 March/ December   1,122,870 1,046,403 1,101,270 1,027,537 

LKAS 19 requires the use of actuarial techniques to make a reliable estimate of the amount of retirement benefit that employees have earned in return 
for their service in the current and prior periods and discount that benefit using the Projected Unit Credit Method in order to determine the present 
value of the retirement benefit obligation and the current service cost. This require an entity to determine how much benefit is attributable to the 
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current and prior periods and to make estimates about demographic variables and financial variables that will influence the cost of the benefit. The 
following key assumptions were made in arriving at the above figure.

According to the actuarial valuation report issued by the actuarial valuer as at 31 March 2015 the actuarial present value of promised retirement 
benefits amounted to Rs. 1,101,270,000/-. If the company had provided for gratuity on the basis of 14 days wages & half months salary for each 
completed year of service, the liability would have been Rs. 964,954,000/-. Hence, there is a contingent asset of Rs. 136,316,000/- which would 
crystallise only if the company ceases to be a going concern.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan obligation in future years. 

   Company
as at 31 march/December     2014/15 2013 
     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Within the next 12 months     78,343 65,174 
Between 2 and 5 years     140,098 142,257 
Beyond 5 years     882,829 820,106 
     1,101,270 1,027,537 

The weigted average duration of the Defind Benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is Staff 12.3 years and Workers 11.00 Years 
The Present Value of Retirement Benefit Obligation is carried on annual basis.
The key assumptions used by Messers.NMG Consulting include the following.

 2014/15 2013

(i)  Rate of Interest 10% 10%
(ii) Rate of Salary Increase
   Workers 22% (every two years) 22% (every two years)
  Staff 10% (per annum) 10% (per annum)
(iii) Retirement Age
  Workers 60 years 60 years
  Staff 60 years 60 years
(iv) Daily Wage Rate
  Tea Rs. 450/- Rs. 450/-
  Rubber Rs. 450/- Rs. 450/-

Sensitivity analysis 
Values appearing in the financial statements are very sensitive to the changes in financial and non-financial assumptions used. A sensitivity was 
carried out as follows:

Company

a one percentage point change in the discount rate.     +1% -1%
31 March 2015     996,868 1,224,751 
31 December 2013     933,562 1,138,443 

a one percentage point change in the salary / wage increment rate.     +1% -1%
As at 31 March 2015     1,166,570 1,041,381 
As at 31 December 2013     1,081,813 977,667 
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26 liaBilitY to maKe leaSe paYment
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Gross liability
As at 1 January   1,900,087 1,843,903 1,900,087 1,843,903 
Increase due to re-assessment of liability   - 115,562 - 115,562 
Repayment during the 15 months/12 months   (59,378) (59,378) (59,378) (59,378)
As at 31 March/ December   1,840,709 1,900,087 1,840,709 1,900,087

Finance cost allocated to future periods   (1,394,291) (1,452,480) (1,394,291) (1,452,480)
Net Liability   446,418 447,607 446,418 447,607 

payable within one year
Gross liability   59,378 59,378 59,378 59,378 
Finance cost allocated to future periods   (6,831) (6,831) (6,831) (6,831)
Net liability transferred to current liabilities   52,547 52,547 52,547 52,547 

payable within two to five years
Gross liability   237,511 237,511 237,511 237,511 
Finance cost allocated to future periods   (81,212) (81,212) (81,212) (81,212)
Net liability   156,299 156,299 156,299 156,299 

payable after five years
Gross liability   1,543,820 1,603,198 1,543,820 1,603,198 
Finance cost allocated to future periods   (1,306,247) (1,364,436) (1,306,247) (1,364,436)
Net liability   237,573 238,762 237,573 238,762 
Net liability payable after one year   393,871 395,060 393,871 395,060 

Liability to make lease payment as above was previously titled as “Net Liability to lessor”. The Change was in terms of the Statement of Alternative 
Treatment (SoAT) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka on 21 August 2013. 

According to the re-asessment, the base rental payable per year has increased from Rs.19,598,000/-  to Rs.59,377,972/-.

The Statement of Recommended Practice (SoRP) for Right-to-use Land on Lease was approved by the Council of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka on 19 December 2012. Subsequently, the amendments to the SoRP along with the modification to the title as Statement fo 
Alternative Treatment (SoAT) were approved by the Council on 21August 2013. The Company has reassessed the liability up to financial year 2013 and 
not reassessed after that as this was not mandatory requirement. However, if the liability is reassessed according to the alternative treatment (SoAT) 
on the assumption that the lease rent is increased constantly by GDB Deflator of 4% and discounted at a rate of 13%, liability would be as follows. 

   Rs.’000

Gross liability   2,047,712
Finance charge   1,551,090
Net liability   496,622

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.

Financial Reports
Notes to the Financial Statements



Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
Annual Report 2014/15 - G4 Reporting

195

27 tRaDe anD otHeR paYaBleS
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Trade payables   64,479 44,628 5,176 5,799 
Other payables and accruals   155,077 206,768 136,294 192,418 
Staff payables   199,464 262,460 198,761 261,898 
Unclaimed dividends   11,356 10,086 11,356 10,086 
As at 31 March/December    430,376 523,942 351,587 470,201 

28 inCome tax
28.1 INCOME TAX RECEIVABLE
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

As at 1 January   812  674 
Transferred from income tax payable   877 812 - 674 
Transfer to income tax payable   (674) - (674)
As at 31 March/December    1,015 812 - 674 

28.2 INCOME TAX PAYABLE
  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

income tax payable
As at 1 January   7,352 15,646 - 13,761 
Transferred from income tax receivable   (674) - (674) - 
Subsidiaries/Parent taxation on current period’s profit   7,060 23,333 1,920 12,793 
Additional provision in respect of previous years   6,271 - 8,090 - 
Cash paid during the period   (9,167) (31,312) (2,907) (27,228)
ESC,WHT,ACT set-off against income tax   (3,939) (1,127) (343) - 
Transferred to income tax receivable   877 812 - 674 
As at 31 March/December   7,780 7,352 6,086 - 
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29 RelateD CompanY BalanCeS
  Consolidated
as at 31 march/December  2014/15 2013
   Receivable payable Receivable payable 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

other related companies
DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.   - 1,161 - 57
Dipped Products PLC   26,891 - 100,441 -
DPL Premier Gloves (Pvt) Ltd.   42,000 - -
Grossart (Pvt) Ltd.   5 - - -
Hanwella Rubber Products Ltd.   20,939 - - -
Hayleys PLC   36 2,489 - -
Hayleys Agriculture Holdings Ltd.   20 3,346 - 2,239
Hayleys Agro Fertilizers (Pvt) Ltd.   - 7,250 - 3,637
Hayleys Agro Farms (Pvt) Ltd.   - 162 - -
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC.   - 1,269 2,462 -
Hayleys Business Solution Ltd   - 12 - -
Hayleys Leisure Holding (Pvt) Ltd   - 782 - -
Hayleys Global Bevarage (Pvt) Ltd   - - 26,169 -
Hayleys Consumer Products Ltd   552 - - -
Amaya Leisure PLC   1 - - -
CMA CGM Lanka (Pvt)Ltd   2 - - -
Culture Club Resorts (Pvt) Ltd   80 - - -
Diesel & Motor Engineering PLC   48 - - -
Haycarb PLC   8 - - -
Hunas Falls Hotels PLC   49 - - -
The Kingsbury PLC   681 - - -
Hayleys PLC   38 - - -
Hayleys Industrial Solutions (Pvt) Ltd.   - 691 - -
Logiventure (Pvt) Ltd   - 79 - -
MIT Cargo (Pvt) Ltd.   - 39 - -
Total   91,350 17,280 129,072 5,933

  Company
as at 31 march/December  2014/15 2013
   Receivable payable Receivable payable 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Subsidiaries
Kalupahana Power Co. (Pvt) Ltd.   143 - 15,684 -
Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd.   - 12,310 - 12,382
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd.   - - 750 115
Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd   5,344 - - 
Total    5,487 12,310 16,434 12,497
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29 RelateD CompanY BalanCeS (CONTD.)
  Company
as at 31 march/December  2014/15 2013
   Receivable payable Receivable payable 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

other related companies
DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.   - 1,161 - 57
Dipped Products PLC   26,891 - 100,441 -
DPL Premier Gloves (Pvt) Ltd.   42,000 - - -
Grossart (Pvt) Ltd.   5 - - -
Hanwella Rubber Products Ltd.   20,939 - - -
Hayleys PLC   - 1,586 - -
Hayleys Agriculture Holdings Ltd.   - 3,257 - 2,239
Hayleys Agro Fertilizers (Pvt) Ltd.   - 7,250 - 3,637
Hayleys Agro Farms (Pvt) Ltd.   - 162 - -
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC.   - - 2,462 -
Hayleys Global Bevarages (Pvt) Ltd   - - 26,169 -
Total   89,835 13,416 129,072 5,933

The carrying amount of receivables pledged as securities for bank facilities obtained amounts to Rs.90 m (2013 - Rs. 100 m).

30 aSSetS pleDGeD aS SeCURitY
Following assets have been pledged as security for liabilities:
Company
 2014/15
nature of liability facility outstanding Security 
 (Rs. m) (Rs. m) 

overdraft
Bank of Ceylon 75.0 NIL  Concurrent mortgage over stock in trade and debtors.
Hatton National Bank PLC 50.0 NIL Promissory Note.
Sampath Bank PLC 30.0 NIL Concurrent mortgage over stock in trade and debtors.

term loan
DFCC Bank PLC 131.3 23 Primary mortgage over the Leasehold Rights of  
   Halgolla, We Oya, Polatagama and Ederapola estates  
   and a letter of undertaking from DPL Plantations   
   (Pvt) Ltd., was given to subordinate management fee 
   and dividends in a default situation of Term Loans. 
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30 aSSetS pleDGeD aS SeCURitY (CONTD.)
Subsidiary - mabroc teas (pvt) ltd
 2014/15
nature of liability facility outstanding Security 
 (Rs. m) (Rs. m) 

term loan
Union Bank of Colombo PLC 56.28 39 Primary mortgage over tea bag machine .
Pan Asia Bank Corporation PLC 27.30 15 Primary floating mortgage bond over Envelop   
   attachment for tea bag machine.

overdraft
Sampath Bank PLC 10 Nil Hypothecation bond totalling Rs.200 m over stock   
   and book debts.
National Development Bank PLC 50 Nil Primary mortgage of Rs. 50 m over stock in trade .

Short - term borrowings - foreign Currency loans Currency facility outstanding Security 
   (Rs. m) 

Hatton National Bank PLC USD 3.5 215.67 Promisory Note.
Citi Bank N. A. USD 2.0 186.89 Corporate guarantee from Kelani Valley  
    Plantations PLC.

Subsidiary - Hayles Global Beverarages (pvt) ltd

as at 31 march/December 2014/15
nature of liability facility outstanding Security 
 (Rs. m) (Rs. m) 

term loan
Hatton National Bank PLC 243 243 Negative pledge over project assets.
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31 RelateD paRtY DiSCloSUReS
Company Relationship name of Director  nature of transaction amount (paid)/ Received 
for the 15 months/12 months ended      2014/15 2013 
31 march/December     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

(a) parent and ultimate parent company
The Company has controlling related party relationship with its parent company DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.

(i)  Hayleys PLC Ultimate  A M Pandithage Office space
 Parent S C Ganegoda together with other
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma related facilities,
  L T Samarawickrama finance and secretarial
   services  (50,761) (52,961)
(ii)  DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. Parent A M Pandithage Cost of facilities and
  S Siriwardana related services rendered (1,109) (1,327)
  S C Ganegoda
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 
  W G R Rajadurai 

(B) transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel includes, members of the Board of Directors of the Company and key employees holding directorships in the subsidiary 
and other related Companies.

(i) loans to Directors
 No loans have been given to the Directors of the Company.

(ii) Key management personnel Compansation

for the 15 months/12 months ended 31 march/December     2014/15 2013 
     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Directors’ emoluments     12,524 19,539
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31 RelateD paRtY DiSCloSUReS (CONTD.)

(C) transactions with Subsidiaries
Company Relationship name of Director  nature of transaction amount (paid)/ Received 
for the 15 months/12 months ended      2014/15 2013 
31 march/December     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

(i) Kalupahana Power Co. (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary W G R Rajadurai Share of revenue  2,053 1,945
  S Siriwardana
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 

(ii) Kelani Valley Instant Tea (Pvt) Ltd. Subsidiary A M Pandithage Sale of black tea  1,275 1,279
  W G R Rajadurai Manufacturing charges  5,626 6,142
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 

(iii)  Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary A.M.Pandithage Sales of tea  66,690 42,214
  W G R Rajadurai  
   
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma Purchase of tea  (9,297) (4,493)

(iv)  Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary A M Pandithage Investment in shares  (150,000) -
  DR. K.I. M Ranasoma
  W G R Rajadurai 

The Company has sub leased an extent of 8 acres, 2 roods and 6.1 perches in Kalupahana Estate to Kalupahana Power Co. (Pvt) Ltd.

The Company has sub leased an extent of 1.0127 hectares in Ingestre Estate and 2.2247 hectares in Blinkbonnie Estate to Hayleys Global Beverages (Pvt) Ltd .

(D) transactions with other related Companies

(i) Dipped Products PLC Intermediary  
 Ultimate Parent A M Pandithage Sale of latex  190,733 420,381
  F Mohideen Purchase of skim crepe  (11,570) (13,086)
  S C Ganegoda Cost of facilities and
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma related services rendered (72) (21)

(ii) Venigros (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Sale of latex  - 257,686
  S C Ganegoda
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 

(iii) Hanwella Rubber Products Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of skim crepe  (14,323) (13,820)
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma Sale of latex  196,975 -

(iv) Grossart (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Sale of latex  18,363 21,770
  S C Ganegoda
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 

(v) DP Premeir Gloves Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Sale of latex  203,773 -
  Dr. K I M Ranasoma 
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(D) transactions with other related Companies
Company Relationship name of Director  nature of transaction amount (paid)/ Received 
for the 15 months/12 months ended      2014/15 2013 
31 march/December     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

(vi) Hayleys Industrial Solutions (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of engineering  
  S C Ganegoda items and repair charges  (1,296) (1,438)

(vii) Hayleys Agro Fertilizers (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of fertilizers  (62,955) (95,681) 
  S C Ganegoda

(viii) Hayleys Agriculture Holdings Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of chemicals  (20,610) (20,889) 
  S C Ganegoda

(ix) Hayleys Power Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Cost of engineering items - (1,604)
   service charges  (537) -

(x) Hayleys Travels & Tours (Pvt) Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Cost of air tickets and 
  S C Ganegoda related charges  (3,271) (5,100)

(xi) MIT Cargo (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Handling, clearing and  
  S C Ganegoda courier charges  (495) (414)

(xii) Puritas (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Maintenance of effluent  
   treatment plants and  
   water purification  (17,617) -

 (xiii) Logiventures (Pvt) Ltd. Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of security seals (100) (119) 
  S C Ganegoda

(xiv) Hayleys Consumer Products Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of consumer  
  S C Ganegoda products  (18) (27)

(xv) Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC Common Directors A M Pandithage Share of regional office and  
  W G R Rajadurai office maintenance cost
  DR. K I M Ranasoma   Receipt  10,783 7,277
  L N De S Wijeyeratne   Payment  (794) (1,734)
   Green Leaf supplies
      Receipt  4,728 7,102
      Payment  - (5,816)

(xvi) Hayleys Business Solutions  Common Directors A M Pandithage Payment of executive  
   International (Pvt) Ltd  S C Ganegoda payroll processing  (679) (445)
  

(xvii) The Kingsbury PLC Common Directors A M Pandithage Hotel charges  (55) (37)
  S C Ganegoda
  L T Samarawickrama
  L N De S Wijeyeratne 

(xviii) Logiwiz Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Storage & handling charges (162) -
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31 RelateD paRtY DiSCloSUReS (CONTD.)
(D) transactions with other related Companies Contd.
Company Relationship name of Director  nature of transaction amount (paid)/ Received 
for the 15 months/12 months ended      2014/15 2013 
31 march/December     Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

(xix) Hayleys Agro Farms (Pvt) Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of chemicals  (2,657) -

(xx) Kandyan Resorts (Pvt) Ltd Common Directors A M Pandithage Purchase of furniture’s  (978) -

There are no related party transactions and balances other than those disclosed above and in Note 29 to the Financial Statements

32 ContinGent liaBilitieS
(i) The Minister of Finance announced at the interim budget proposal on 29 January 2015, an additional one off tax (super gain tax) of 25% to be 

charged on profits of entities earned in excess of Rs. 2,000 m for the year of assessment 2013/2014. It will also apply to group of companies, 
where aggregate before income tax profits of the holding company and all subsidiaries exceed Rs. 2,000 m. Hayleys PLC being the ultimate 
holding company of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC made a pre-tax profit exceeding the above threshold for the year of assessment 2013/2014 and 
accordingly may be liable to pay such additional tax in the future. However, in the absence of clarity on the computation of such taxes and the 
portion applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries are not determinable as at the date these financial statements were authorised for issue.

(ii) Contingent liabilities that may result, depending on the timing of the taxability of certain fair value adjustments is amounts to approximately  
Rs. 2,500,000/- (2013 - Rs. 1,500,000/-)

33 Capital expenDitURe CommitmentS
There were no material capital commitments as at the reporting date. However, the budgeted capital expenditure approved but, not committed by 
the Company for the financial period 2015/16 amounts to Rs .437,452,000/-.
 

34 eVentS oCCURRinG afteR tHe Date of Statement of finanCial poSition
No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which require adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial Statements.
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35 aDDitional DiSCloSUReS foR pReSentinG 15 montHS anD 12 montHS finanCial peRfoRmanCe foR tHe peRioD 
2014/15 

           ConSoliDateD CompanY
Summarised income statement for the period:   01.01.2014- 01.01.2014- 01.01.2014- 01.01.2014- 
   31.03.2015 31.12.2014 31.03.2015 31.12.2014 
   15 months 12 months 15 months 12 months 
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Revenue   8,647,349 6,980,145 4,939,780 3,989,826
Cost of sales   (7,908,047) (6,398,750) (4,519,040) (3,689,840)
Gross profit   739,302 581,395 420,740 299,986
Gain on change in fair value of biological assets   24,851 - 24,851 -
Other income   78,822 61,527 95,434 77,571
Administrative expenses   (520,036) (416,418) (303,452) (239,506)
Distribution expenses   (97,733) (45,063) - -
Results from operating activities   225,206 181,441 237,573 138,051
Finance income   10,013 8,946 9,826 8,912
Finance expenses   (53,783) (41,424) (14,984) (11,033)
Interest paid to Government on finance lease   (79,029) (58,166) (79,029) (58,166)
net finance cost   (122,799) (90,644) (84,187) (60,287)
profit before tax   102,407 90,797 153,386 77,764
Tax expense   (49,912) (32,484) (36,795) (18,565)
profit for the period   52,495 58,313 116,591 59,199
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36 SeGmental analYSiS
Consolidated
 tea Rubber others Unallocated total
 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

Segmental assets
Non-current assets 2,798,273 2,238,933 2,143,760 1,821,494 133,833 205,700 128,004 142,679 5,203,870 4,408,806 
Current assets 1,422,063 1,323,895 93,633 253,023 9,974 6,948 264,255 354,450 1,789,925 1,938,316 
Total assets 4,220,336 3,562,828 2,237,393 2,074,517 143,807 212,648 392,259 497,129 6,993,795 6,347,122 

Segmental liabilities
Non-current liabilities 1,514,609 1,221,624 372,669 350,677 18,741 20,022 914,467 786,803 2,820,486 2,379,126 
Current liabilities 1,056,980 869,114 76,534 108,127 3,489 29,161 182,511 163,384 1,319,514 1,169,786 
Total liabilities 2,571,589 2,090,738 449,203 458,804 22,230 49,183 1,096,978 950,187 4,140,000 3,548,912 

non-interest bearing  
 liabilities
Deferred taxation - - - - - - 393,243 363,132 393,243 363,132 
Retirement benefit 
 obligation 909,698 848,274 190,378 180,994 86 191 22,708 16,944 1,122,870 1,046,403 
Trade & other payables 309,046 324,471 76,534 108,127 2,016 11,758 42,780 79,586 430,376 523,942 
Total depreciation 152,328 102,230 98,322 67,022 6,564 5,250 - - 257,214 174,502 
Lease amortisation 17,473 12,740 16,460 12,502 - - - 146 33,933 25,388 
Capital expenditure 652,041 221,499 383,356 291,196 8,881 5,875 18,683 34,748 1,062,961 553,318 

Company
Segmental assets
Non-current assets 2,053,526 1,928,697 2,143,760 1,821,494 40,985 107,220 587,885 452,558 4,826,156 4,309,969 
Current assets 413,336 557,460 93,633 253,023 1,972 734 264,255 383,265 773,196 1,194,482 
Total assets 2,466,862 2,486,157 2,237,393 2,074,517 42,957 107,954 852,140 835,823 5,599,352 5,504,451 

Segmental liabilities
Non-current liabilities 1,184,754 1,136,563 372,669 350,677 269 269 914,467 786,803 2,472,159 2,274,312 
Current liabilities 232,187 282,401 76,534 108,127 87 87 194,821 191,564 503,629 582,179 
Total liabilities 1,416,941 1,418,964 449,203 458,804 356 356 1,109,288 978,367 2,975,788 2,856,491 

non-interest bearing  
 liabilities 
 Deferred taxation  -  - - - 342,903 320,232 342,903 320,232 
Retirement benefit  
 obligation 888,184 829,599 190,378 180,994 - - 22,708 16,944 1,101,270 1,027,537 
Trade & other payables 232,187 282,401 76,533 108,127 87 87 42,780 79,586 351,587 470,201 
Total depreciation 104,289 77,444 98,322 67,022 932 746 - - 203,543 145,212 
Lease amortisation 17,473 12,740 16,460 12,502 - - - 146 33,933 25,388 
Capital expenditure 169,731 141,052 383,356 291,196 8,881 5,816 18,683 34,445 580,651 472,509 

 Information in respect of geographical segments was considered not significant enough to be disclosed as explained under segment reporting in Accounting Policies.
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37 finanCial RiSK manaGement oBJeCtiVeS anD poliCieS
The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee 
contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. 
The Group has loans and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The 
Group also holds available-for-sale investments and enters into derivative transactions (Mainly Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts). Accordingly the 
Group has exposure to namely Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Currency Risk and Market Risks from its use of financial instruments.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring 
and managing risk. 

37.1 Financial Risk Management Framework
The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s financial risk management framework which 
includes developing and monitoring the Group’s financial risk management policies.

The Group financial risk management policies are established to identify, quantify and analyse the financial risks faced by the Group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor financial risks and adherence to limits. Financial risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. 

The KVPL Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s financial risk management policies and procedures and 
reviews the adequacy of the financial risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. 

37.2 Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and 
arise principally from the Group’s receivable from customers and from its financing activities including deposits with banks and financial institutions 
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. 

37.2.1 Trade and Other Receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Group’s credit policy is monitored at the Board 
level. The new customers are analysed individually for credit worthiness before Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are 
offered. Group review includes external ratings, when available and in some cases, bank references, purchases limit etc. which also subject to under 
review on quarterly basis. The past experience of the Management is considered when revisions are made to terms and conditions. 

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date is Rs. 737 m (2013 – Rs. 692 m).

KVPL has a minimal credit risk of its trade receivables as the repayment is guaranteed within seven days by the tea and rubber auction systems. 
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37.2.2 Investments
Credit risks from invested balance with the financial institutions are managed by the Board of Directors. Investments of surplus funds are made 
only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to them. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore 
mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty’s failure.

The Group held short term investments of Rs. 40 m as at 31 March 2015 (2013 – Rs. 200 m) which represents the maximum credit exposure on these 
assets. 

37.2.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Group held cash at bank and in hand of Rs. 54 m as at 31 March 2015 (2013 – Rs. 52 m) which represents its maximum credit exposure on these 
assets.  Respective credit ratings banks in which Group cash balances held are as follows., 

 G  Sampath Bank PLC – AA- (lka)
 G  Hatton National Bank PLC – AA- (lka)
 G  Bank of Ceylon – AA+ (lka)
 G  Citi Bank N. A.  – AAA (lka)
 G  Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd – AAA (lka)
 G  Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC Bank – BBB (lka)
 G  Union Bank – BB+ (lka)
 G National Development Bank PLC - AA- (lka)
 G Amana Bank - BB (lka)

37.3. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Group’s reputation.

The Group does not concentrate on a single financial institution, thereby minimising the exposure to liquidity risk through diversification of funding 
sources. The Group aims to fund investment activities of the individual and Group level by funding the long-term investment with long term financial 
sources and short term investment with short term financing. Where necessary the Group consults the Treasury Department and Strategic Business 
Development Unit in Parent Company for scrutinising the funding decisions. 
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The Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Groups financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

as at 31 march 2015 on Demand less than 3  3 to 12 2 to 5 >5 years total 
  months  months  years    
 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

Group
Interest bearing loans & borrowing - 516,748 243,593 364,726 67,419 1,192,486 
Trade & other payables 61,528 367,149 1,699 - - 430,376 
  61,528 883,897 245,292 364,726 67,419 1,622,862 

Company
Interest bearing loans & borrowing - 4,489 12,004 125,555 31,007 173,055 
Trade & other payables - 351,570 17 - - 351,587 
  - 356,059 12,021 125,555 31,007 524,642 

as at 31 march 2013 on Demand less than 3  3 to 12 2 to 5 >5 years total 
  months  months  years    
 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

Group
Interest bearing loans & borrowing - 13,046 553,468 95,528 - 662,042 
Trade & other payables - 508,794 15,148 - - 523,942 
  - 521,840 568,617 95,528 - 1,185,984 

Company
Interest bearing loans & borrowing - 8,829 26,921 56,115 - 91,864 
Trade & other payables - 469,965 236 - - 470,201 
  - 478,794 27,156 56,115 - 562,065 

37.4 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices 
comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk & other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial instrument affected by market risk 
include loans & borrowings, deposits, available for sale investment & derivative financial instruments.

37.4.1  Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest 
rates. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. The Group has not 
engaged in any interest rate swap agreements.

The Group held long-term borrowings with floating interest rates of Rs. 447 m (2013 – Rs. 56 m) which represents its maximum credit exposure on these liabilities. 
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interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. 
With all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:

     increase/  effect on 
     decrease in  profit  
      interest rate before tax  
      Rs.’000

Group
2014/15     +1% 5,385 
     -1% (5,385)
2013     +1% - 
     -1% - 

Company
2014/15     +1% 5,385 
     -1% (5,385)
2013     +1% - 
     -1% - 

37.4.2 Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the 
Group. The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings. These currencies primarily are USD and AUD. 

The Group hedges its exposure to fluctuation on the transaction of its foreign operations mainly by forward contracts. 

foreign Currency Sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD and AUD exchange rates, with all other variables held 
constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. 

     increase/  effect on 
     decrease in  profit  
      interest rate before tax  
      Rs.’000

Group
2014/15
USD     5% (12,686)
AUD     5% 136 
USD     -5% 12,686 
AUD     -5% (136)
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     increase/  effect on 
     decrease in  profit  
      interest rate before tax  
      Rs.’000

2013
USD     5% (7,743)
USD     -5% 7,743 

37.4.3 Equity Price Risk
The Group’s listed & unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment 
securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. 
Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt & equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investment within 
the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decision are approved by the Board. Equity price risk is not material to the 
Financial Statements. However, the Company does not hold any investment in quoted shares as at reporting date.  

37.4.4 Capital Management
The Group’s policy is to retain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor & market confidence and to sustain future development of the 
business. Capital consists of share capital, reserves, retain earning & non-controlling interest of the Group. The Board of Directors monitors the return 
on capital, interest covering ratio, dividend to ordinary shareholders. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting date is as follows.

  Consolidated Company
as at 31 march/December   2014/15 2013 2014/15 2013 
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000

interest bearing borrowing
Current portion of long term interest bearing borrowings   37,680 49,820 16,493 35,749 
Payable within 2 and 5 years   432,145 98,327 156,562 56,115 
Short term Interest bearing borrowings   722,661 513,895 - - 
    1,192,486 662,042 173,055 91,864 

 
Equity   2,853,794 2,798,210 2,623,564 2,647,960 
Equity and debts   4,046,280 3,460,252 2,796,619 2,739,824 
Gearing ratio   29% 19% 6% 3%
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Ten Year Summary

 15 months  to 12 months to 
period ended 31 march 31 December
 2014/15 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 
 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

trading Results
Revenue 8,647,349 6,790,012 6,518,253 6,033,498 3,883,637 2,860,004 3,108,571 2,827,974 2,330,297 1,918,465
Gross profit 739,302 885,720 1,156,106 905,883 595,955 134,964 455,435 560,263 435,401 262,902
Profit before tax 102,407 465,485 680,956 545,947 355,690 (27,783) 300,276 435,267 291,403 151,632
Profit after tax 52,495 391,693 560,732 461,363 326,152 (40,565) 278,765 410,010 255,849 151,974
Balance Sheet
funds employed
Stated capital 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000
Revenue reserves 2,355,056 2,435,888 2,228,473 1,813,716 1,492,786 1,216,593 1,378,208 1,289,356 993,445 715,711
Total equity attributable  
 to equity holders of  
 the company 2,695,056 2,775,888 2,568,473 2,153,716 1,832,786 1,556,593 1,718,208 1,629,356 1,333,445 1,055,711
Non-controlling interest 158,739 22,322 16,667 17,162 14,642 22,324 20,274 8,792 10,753 11,487
Liability to make lease  
 payment 393,871 395,060 427,914 428,976 429,869 362,854 367,813 372,602 377,159 381,539
Interest bearing borrowings 432,145 98,327 97,588 136,825 226,414 379,978 449,423 370,685 285,932 190,230
Bank overdraft 51,190 16,297 1,865 4,772 13,158 473 116,766 2,582 1,348 15,019
  3,731,001 3,307,894 3,112,507 2,741,451 2,516,869 2,322,222 2,672,484 2,384,017 2,008,637 1,653,986
assets employed
Non current assets 5,203,870 4,408,806 4,019,663 3,738,736 3,463,306 3,132,622 2,978,262 2,519,202 2,221,273 2,075,427
Current assets 1,789,925 1,938,316 2,054,898 1,758,879 1,411,867 954,630 1,101,238 1,115,810 754,288 500,806
Current liabilities (1,268,324) (1,153,489) (1,146,763) (1,088,079) (847,986) (468,207) (353,441) (357,364) (245,471) (231,610)
Retirement benefit  
 obligations (1,122,870) (1,046,403) (1,025,142) (980,001) (871,408) (732,912) (578,457) (527,716) (424,478) (344,963)
Deferred tax liability (393,243) (363,132) (301,387) (211,247) (158,032) (120,836) (128,927) (119,638) (91,806) (65,679)
Negative goodwill /  
 revaluation reserve - - - - - - - - - (89,152)
Deferred income (478,357) (476,204) (488,762) (476,837) (480,878) (443,075) (346,191) (246,277) (205,169) (190,843)
Capital employed 3,731,001 3,307,894 3,112,507 2,741,451 2,516,869 2,322,222 2,672,484 2,384,017 2,008,637 1,653,986
Key indicators
Gross profit margin % 8.5 13.0 17.7 15.0 15.3 4.7 14.7 19.8 18.7 13.7
Current ratio (times) 1.36 1.66 1.79 1.61 1.64 2.04 2.34 3.10 3.06 2.03
Turnover to capital  
 employed (times) 2.3 2.1 2.1 2.2 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2
Return on shareholders’ fund % 2.2 13.8 21.8 21.3 17.5 (2.7) 16.1 25.5 19.2 14.2
Earning per share (Rs.) 1.77 11.30 16.51 13.49 9.43 (1.25) 8.11 12.20 7.55 4.54
Net assets per share (Rs.) 79.27 81.64 76.03 63.85 54.34 46.44 50.43 47.92 39.22 31.05
Dividend per share (Rs.) 1.00 3.5 6.0 5.0 4.0 1.0 3.5 5.5 3.5 2.0
Dividend payout ratio % 56 31 36 37 42 - 43 45 46 44
Price earnings (Times) 40.62 6.93 4.85 6.7 17.0 - 5.9 4.6 7.0 5.9
Market value (Rs.) 71.90 78.30 80.00 90.00 159.90 53.00 47.50 56.25 53.00 27.00

Annexure
Ten Year Summary
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Investor Information

1. StoCK exCHanGe liStinG
The ordinary shares of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC are listed with the Colombo Exchange. The audited Company and Consolidated Statement of 
Profit or Loss for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2015 and the audited Statement of Financial Position of the Company and of the Group as at the 
date have been submitted to the Colombo Stock Exchange within three months of the Statement of Financial Position date.

2. oRDinaRY SHaReHolDeRS aS at 31 maRCH 2015
number of shareholders 14,062

 Residents non-Residents total
  no. of no. of  no. of no. of  no. of no. of 

  Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares %

 1 - 1000  13,909 1,754,828 5.161 5 2,800 0.008 13,914 1,757,328 5.168
 1001 - 10,000  114 353,800 1.041 1 2,500 0.007 115 356,300 1.048
 10,001 - 100,000  22 714,026 2.100 3 106,219 0.312 25 820,245 2.413
 100,001 -1,000,000  3 1,046,334 3.077 2 493,122 1.451 5 1,539,456 4.528
 Over 1,000,000  3 29,526,671 86.843 - - - 3 29,526,671 86.843
   14,051 33,395,359 98.222 11 604,641 1.778 14,062 34,000,000 100.000

 Residents non-Residents total
no. of Shares held  no. of no. of  no. of no. of  no. of no. of 

  Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares % Shareholders Shares %

Individuals   13,993 2,573,309 7.569 9 518,422 1.525 14,002 3,091,731 9.093
Institutions   58 30,822,050 90.653 2 86,219 0.253 60 30,908,269 90.907
   14,051 33,395,359 98.222 11 604,641 1.778 14,062 34,000,000 100.00

3. maRKet ValUe
The market value of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC ordinary shares :
 2014/15 2013

Highest - Rs 87.00 (17 January 2014) 90.00 (25 March & 4 June 2013)
Lowest - Rs 66.00 (17 March 2015) 70.00 (12 July & 18 December 2013)
period end - Rs 71.90  78.30

4. DiViDenD paYment
The fist and final proposed dividend of Rs. 1/- per share is to be declared on 08 May 2015 and payable on 09 July 2015. (2013 - Rs. 3.50)

5. SHaRe tRaDinG
    2014/15 2013

Number of transactions    979 991
Number of shares traded    678,666 276,046
Value of shares traded (Rs.)    51,245,858.30 22,924,405.60
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6. fiRSt tWentY SHaReHolDeRS aS at 31 maRCH 2015

    no. of   no. of  
    Shares as at  Shares as at 
 name of Shareholder    31.03.2015 %  31.12.2013 %

 1  DPL Plantations (Private) Limited   24,626,900 72.43 24,200,000 71.18
 2  People’s Leasing & Finance Plc /Mr.L.P.Hapangama   2,821,756 8.30 2,821,756 8.30 

 Mr.L.P.Hapangama   400 0.00 400 0.00
 3  Bank of Ceylon A/c Ceybank Unit Trust   2,078,015 6.11 1,996,750 5.87
 4  M H L Holdings (Private) Limited (former name - Mabroc Holdings Pvt Ltd )  471,005 1.39 512,746 1.51
 5  Bank of Ceylon A/c Ceybank Century Growth Fund   464,529 1.37 463,085 1.36
 6  Mr.T.T.T.Al-Nakib   343,122 1.01 344,122 1.01
 7  Mr.H.A.A.H.Algharabally   150,000 0.44 150,000 0.44
 8  Mr.H.G.Carimjee (Deceased)   110,800 0.33 110,800 0.33
 9  Dr.D.Jayanntha   76,500 0.23 76,500 0.23
 10 Mr.M.I.Abdul Hameed   70,600 0.21 70,600 0.21
 11  Gampaha District Co-Operative Rural Bank Union Ltd   66,300 0.20 66,300 0.20
 12  Cargo Boat Development Company PLC   58,800 0.17 58,800 0.17
 13  Mr.M.M.Udeshi & H.M.Udeshi   51,032 0.15 81,536 0.24
 14  Mrs.R.S.L.De Mel   50,000 0.15 50,000 0.15
 15  Mr.K.C.Viganarajah   46,500 0.14 46,500 0.14
 16  HSBC International Nominees Ltd-SSBT-Deutsche Bank   45,000 0.13 45,000 0.13
 17  Harnam Holdings SDN BHD   41,219 0.12 10,000 0.03
 18  Seylan Bank PLC/ Thirugnanasambandar Senthilverl   25,202 0.07 - -
 19  Miss.F.A.Adamaly   20,000 0.06 20,000 0.06
 20  Miss .Z.A.Adamaly   20,000 0.06 20,000 0.06
20   Dr. M.E.R. Harrison   20,000 0.06 20,000 0.06
20   Mr. H.Wickremesinghe   20,000 0.06 20,000 0.06
  TOTAL    31,677,680 93.17 31,184,895 91.72

7. The Percentage Of Ordinary Shares Held By The Public Was 27.57% (2013 - 28.82%) Of The Issued Share Capital As At 31 March 2015.

Investor Information Contd.
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eneRGY ConVeRSion faCtoRS

Fuel Factor Measure Conversion factor Per unit energy (GJ)
Electricity 1 kWh 277.78

Petrol Energy per Litre [ 0.785 Kg/Litre * 10,900 kcal/Kg 
*(4.18400 × 10-6 GJ/Kcal) ]

Density - Petrol 0.785 Kg/Litre

Energy 1 Litres = 10,900 kcal/Kg

Energy 1 kcal/kg = 4.1868 kJ/kg

Energy 1 Kcal = 4.18400 × 10-6

Diesel Energy per Litre [ 1.0832 Kg/Litre * 10,500 kcal/Kg 
*(4.18400 × 10-6 GJ/Kcal) ]

Density - Petrol 1.0832 Kg/Litre

Energy 1 Litres = 10,500 kcal/Kg

Energy 1 kcal/kg = 4.1868 kJ/kg

Fuel wood Energy per m3 [ 720 Kg/m3 * 3,800 kcal/Kg 
*(4.18400 × 10-6 GJ/Kcal) ]

Density - Firewood 720 Kg/m3

Energy 3,800 kcal/Kg

Energy 1 Kcal = 4.18400 × 10-6
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finanCial teRmS
Accounting Policies
The Specific principles, bases, conventions, 
rules and practices adopted by an enterprise in 
preparing and presenting Financial Statements.

Accrual Basis
Recording revenues & expenses in the 
period in which they are earned or incurred 
regardless of whether cash is received or 
disbursed in that period.

Actuarial Gains and Losses
Is the effects of difference between the 
previous actuarial assumptions and what has 
actually occurred and the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions.

Agricultural Activity
Is the management by an entity of the biological 
transformation and harvest of biological assets 
for sale or for conversion in to agricultural 
produce or in to additional biological assets.

Agricultural Produce
Is the harvested product of the entity’s 
biological assets

Amortisation
The systematic allocation of the depreciable 
amount of an intangible asset over its useful life.

Available for Sale
Non derivative financial asset that are 
designated as available for sale or are not 
classified as loans and receivable, held to 
maturity investment or financial assets at fair 
value through profit and loss.

AWDR
Average Weighted Deposit Rate

AWPLR
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate

Basic Earnings Per Share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Bearer biological Assets
Biological assets those are not to be harvested 
as agricultural produce or sold as biological 
assets. The biological assets other than the 
consumable biological assets.

Biological Assets
A living animal or plant

Biological Transformation
It comprises the process of growth, 
degeneration, production, and procreation 
that cause qualitative or quantitative change 
in a biological assets

Borrowings
All interest-bearing liabilities.

Capital Employed
Total equity, non-controlling interest and 
interest bearing borrowings.

Capital reserves
Reserves identified for specific purposes 
and considered not of the entity, directly or 
indirectly, including any director (whether 
executive or otherwise) of that entity available 
for distribution.

Cash Equivalents
Liquid investments with original maturity 
periods of three months or less

CASL
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka

CEA
Central Environmental Authority

Contingent Liability
A possible obligation that arises from past 
events whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the enterprise.

Consumable Biological Assets
The biological assets those that are to be 
harvested as agricultural produce or sold as 
biological assets.

CSR
Corporate Social Responsibility

Current Ratio
Current assets divided by current liabilities. A 
measure of liquidity.

Current Service Cost
Is the increase in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation resulting from 
employee service in the current period

DCF Method
Discounted Cash Flow method

Debt to Equity Ratio
Borrowing divided by Equity

Deferred Taxation
The tax effect of timing differences deferred to 
/from other periods, which would only qualify 
for inclusion on a tax return at a future date

Derivative
Is a financial instrument or other contract 
whose prices is dependent upon or derived 
from one or another underline asset.

Dividends
Distribution of profits to holders of equity 
investments.

Glossary
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Dividend Cover
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by dividend. Measures the number of 
times dividend is covered by distributable profit

Dividend Payout
Dividend per share as a percentage of the 
earnings per share

Dividend Yield
Dividend per share as a percentage of the 
market price. A measure of return on investment

EBIT
Earnings Before Interest and Tax

EBITDA
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation 
and Amortisation.

Equity Accounted Investees
An entity, including an unincorporated entity 
such as a partnership, over which the investor 
has significant influence and that is neither a 
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Effective Tax Rate
Income tax expenses divided by profit from 
ordinary activities before tax

Enterprise Value-EV
Market capitalisation plus MV of Debt, Minority 
Interest & Preference shares minus total cash 
& cash equivalent.

Enterprise Multiple-EM
Enterprise value divided by earnings before 
Interest Tax Depreciation & Amortisation 
(EBITDA)

EPS
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by the number of ordinary shares in 
ranking for dividend.

Equity
Shareholders’ fund.

Equity Instruments
Is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of a entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity Method
The equity method is a method of accounting 
whereby the investment is initially recognised 
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition changes in the investor’s share of 
net assets of the investee. The profit or loss of 
the investor includes the investor’s share of 
the profit or loss of the investee.

ERP
Enterprise Resources Planning

ETP-Ethical Tea Partnership
An initiative in ethical sourcing approved by 
UK based tea packing companies to work in 
partnership with producers to demonstrate that 
ethical conditions exist within the tea industry.

EVA
Economic Value Addition
The return earned beyond the cost of capital.
(Weihted Average Cost of Capita into Capital 
Invested minus Net Operating Profit)

Financial Instrument
Is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Fair Value
Fair Value is the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged between a 
knowledgeable or liability settled between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction.

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
A financial asset/liability acquired/incurred 
principally for the purpose of selling or 
repurchasing it in the near term, part of a 
portfolio of identified financial instruments 
that are managed together and for which 
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern 
of short – term profit taking, or a derivative 
(except for a derivative that is a financial 
guarantee contract)

Financial Asset
Any asset that is cash, an equity instrument of 
another entity or a contractual right to receive 
cash or another financial asset from another 
entity

Financial Instrument
Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset 
of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
to another entity

Financial Liability
Any liability that is a contractual obligation 
to deliver cash or another financial asset to 
another entity

Forward Currency Contract
A forward contract in the forex market that 
locks in the price at which an entity can buy 
or sell a currency on a future date. Also known 
as "outright forward currency transaction", 
"forward outright" or "FX forward".

FSC™
Forest Stewardship Council

Gearing
Proportion of total interest-bearing 
borrowings to capital employed

Gearing Ratio
Interest bearing capital divided by total 
capital invested (interest bearing and non-
interest bearing).

Annexure
Glossary
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Interest Cover
Profit before tax plus net finance cost divided 
by net finance cost. Measure of an entity’s 
debt service ability.

HACCP
Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point System. 
Internationally accepted food safety standard.

IAS
International Accounting Standards.

IFRIC
International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards.

JEDB
Janatha Estate Development Board

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel are those 
persons having authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, 
including any director (whether executive ot 
otherwise) of that entity.

LIBOR
London Inter- Bank Offered Rate

Market capitalisation
Number of shares in issue multiplied by the 
market value of a share at the period date

Market Value Added-MVA
The difference of market capitalisation and 
book value of share capital.

NBV
Cost less accumilated depreciation or 
amortisation

Net Assets Per Share
Shareholders’ funds divided by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares in issue. A 
basis of share valuation

Non-controlling interest
The interest of individual shareholders,in a 
company more than 50% of which is owned by 
a holding company .

Other comprehensive income
Items of income and expenses that are not 
recognised in profit or loss as required or 
permitted by other SLFRS’s

Price earnings ratio
Market price of a share divided by earnings per 
share as reported at that date

Related parties
Parties who could control or significantly 
influence the financial and operating policies 
of the business

Retirement benefits
-Present Value of a Defined Benefit 
Obligation
Is the present value of expected future 
payments required to settle the obligation 
resulting from employee service in the current 
and prior periods.

-Current Service Cost
Is the increase in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation resulting from 
employee service in the current period.

-Interest Cost
Is the increase during a period in the present 
value of a defined benefit obligation which 
arises because the benefits are one period 
closer to settlement.

-Actuarial Gains and Losses
Is the effect of difference between the 
previous actuarial assumptions and what has 
actually occurred and effects of changes in 
actuarial assumption.

Return on Equity
Attributable profits to the shareholders 
divided by shareholders funds

Return on Capital Employed
Profit before tax plus net interest cost divided 
by capital employed.

Return on Assets
Profit before tax plus net interest cost divided 
by total assets.

Revenue Reserves
Reserves considered as being available for 
distributions and investments

Segments
Constituent business units grouped in terms 
of similarity of operations and location

SIC
Standing Interpretations Committee

SLFRS / LKAS
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
corresponding to International Financial 
Reporting Standards

SoRP
Statement of Recommended practice

Subsidiary
A subsidiary is an entity, including an 
unincorporated entity such as a partnership, 
that is controlled by another entity (known as 
the parent).

Glossary Contd.
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SLAS
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. Also known 
as LKAS and SLFRS

Total Borrowing
Total borrowing consist of interest-bearing 
liabilities, fair-value derivatives, accrued 
interest expenses and prepaid interest 
income, and trade receivables with resources.

UITF
Urgent Issue Task Force of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Value Addition
The quantum of wealth generated by the 
activities of the group measured as the 
difference between turnover and the cost of 
materials and services bought in.

Working Capital
Capital required to finance day-to-day 
operations computed as the excess of current 
assets over current liabilities

non-finaCial teRmS
AGM
Annual General Meeting

COP
The cost of productions. This generally refers to 
the cost of producing per kilo of produce (Tea /
Rubber)

CQC-QMS-Ceylon tea Quality Certification-
Quality Management System
A legal declaration by the tea commissioner 
to a registered tea manufacture in modern 
quality management systems that the 
building, equipment and manner of operation 
of the tea factory are of excellent standard to 
manufacture made tea of good quality.

Crop
The total produce harvested over a given 
period of time (usually during a financial year).

CRTA
Colombo Rubber Traders’ Association

Extent In Bearing
The extent of land form which crop is being 
harvested

Field
A unit extent of land. Estates are divided into 
fields in order to facilitate management.

FLO- Fair trade Labeling Organisation 
International
A leading standard setting and certification 
organisation for labeling fair trade established 
in 1997 in Germany

GSA
The gross sales average. This is the average 
sales price obtained (over a period of time, for 
a kilo of produce) before any deductions such 
as brokerage, etc.

GRI
Global Reporting Initiatives

Immature Plantation
The extent of plantation that is under-
development and is not being harvested.

Infilling
A method of filed development whereby 
planting of individual plants is done in order 
to increase the yield of a given field, whilst 
allowing the field to be harvested

ISO
International Standards Organisation

ISO 22000
International standard for food safety 
management system (FSMS) released by ISO 
in September 2005.

Mature Plantation
The extent of plantation from which crop is 
being harvested.

NSA
The Net Sales Average. This is the average sale 
price obtained (over a period of time) after 
deducting brokerage fees, etc.

Replanting
A method of field development where an 
entire unit of land is taken out of “bearing” 
and developed by way of uprooting the 
existing trees/bushes and replanting with new 
trees/bushes.

Seedling tea
Tea grown from a seed.

SLSPC
Sri Lanka State Plantations Corporation

TASL
Tea Association of Sri Lanka.

Turnover Per Employee
Consolidated turnover of the company for the 
year divided by the number of employees

VP tea
Vegetatively propagated tea.ie. Tea grown 
from a cutting of a branch of tea plant

YPH
The average crop per unit extent of land over a 
given period of time (usually kgs. Per hectare 
per year)

5S
A Japanese management technique on the 
organisation of the work place.
5S stands for Seiri (Sorting), Seiton 
(organising), Seiso (cleaning) ,Seiketsu 
(standardisation), Shitsuke (Sustenance).

KVAL.N0000
CSE stock code for the company
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Kelani ValleY plantationS plC
CompanY no. pQ 58

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting 
of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, will be held at the Registered Office of 
the Company, No.400, Deans Road, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka, on Monday, 
29June 2015 at 3.00 p.m. and the business to be brought before the 
meeting will be:

1) To consider and adopt the Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
and the Statements of Accounts for the Fifteen Months ended 31 
March 2015, with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2) To declare a dividend as recommended by the Directors.

3) To re-elect Mr. A M Pandithage, who retires by rotation at the Annual 
General Meeting, a Director.

4) To re-elect Dr. K I M Ranasoma who retires by rotation at the Annual 
General Meeting, a Director.

5) To re-elect Mr. S Siriwardana, who retires by rotation at the Annual 
General Meeting, a Director.

6) To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to Charities, 
for the financial year 2015/2016.

7) To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the 
auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, who are 
deemed to have been re-appointed as Auditors in terms of Section 
158 of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 for the financial year 
2015/2016.

8) To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.

note :
(1) A Shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

instead of himself and a proxy need not be a shareholder of 
the Company. A Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose. The 
instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered 
Office No. 400, Deans Road, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka by 3.00 p.m. on 
25 June 2015.

(2) It is proposed to post ordinary dividend warrants on 9 July 2015 and 
in accordance with the rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, the 
shares of the Company will be quoted ex-dividend with effect from 
30 June 2015.

By Order of the Board

Kelani ValleY plantationS plC
Hayleys Group Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Secretaries

Colombo
28 May 2015
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I/We*.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
being a shareholder/ shareholders* of KELANI VALLEY PLANTATIONS PLC hereby appoint,

1 .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Of ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................or failing him/them,*

2. ABEYAKUMAR MOHAN PANDITHAGE (Chairman of the Company) of Colombo, or failing him, one of the Directors of the Company as my/our* proxy 
to attend and vote as indicated hereunder for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 
held on Monday, 29 June 2015 and at every poll which may be taken in consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof:

 For Against
1) To consider and adopt the Annual Report of the Board and the Statements of Accounts for the Fifteen Months 
 ended 31 March 2015 with the Report of the auditors thereon.

2) To declare a dividend as recommended by the Directors.

3) To re-elect Mr. A M Pandithage, who retires by rotation at the Annual General  
Meeting, a Director.

4) To re-elect Dr. K I M  Ranasoma, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director

5) To re-elect Mr. S Siriwardana, who retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, a Director

6) To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to Charities, for the financial year 2015/2016

7) To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered  
Accountants, who are deemed to have been re-appointed as auditors in terms of Section 158 of the Companies

 Act No.7 of 2007 for the financial year 2015/2016.

(**) The proxy may vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the Meeting. 

As witness my/our* hands this .................................. day of ...............................................2015

Witnesses :  .........................................................................     
 .........................................................................     .....................................................................
 .........................................................................  Signature of Shareholder 
  
  
NOTE : : * Please delete the inappropriate words.

1. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
2. Instructions as to completion appear on the reverse
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inStRUCtionS aS to Completion

1. To be valid, this Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, No.400, Deans Road, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka by 3.00 
p.m. Thursday , 25 June, 2015.

2.  In perfecting the Form of Proxy, please ensure that all details are legible.

3. If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman of the Company (or failing him, one of the Directors) as your proxy, please insert the 
relevant details at 1 overleaf and initial against this entry.

4. Please indicate with an X in the space provided how your proxy is to vote on each resolution. If no indication is given, the proxy in his discretion 
will vote as he thinks fit. Please also delete (**) if you do not wish your proxy to vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the 
Meeting.

5. In the case of a Company / Corporation, the proxy must be under its Common Seal which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed 
by its Articles of Association.

6. Where the Form of Proxy is signed under a Power of Attorney (POA) which has not been registered with the Company, the original POA together 
with a photocopy of same or a copy certified by a Notary Public must be lodged with the Company along with the Form of Proxy.

Form of Proxy Contd.
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LEGAL FORM   G4 - 7  
A Public Limited Company, incorporated in Sri Lanka 
on 18 June 1992.
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